State Purchasing Bureau

STATE OF NEBRASKA servICE CONTRACT AMENDMENT 1526 K Street, Suite 130

Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

OR
P.O. Box 94847
PAGE ORDER DATE Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847
10f3 09/22/14 Telephone: (402) 471-6500
BUSINESS UNIT BUYER Fax: (402) 471-2089
65080008 MICHELLE THOMPSON (AS) CONTRACT NUMBER
VENDOR NUMBER: 1850215 38349 04
VENDOR ADDRESS:

HEALTH FITNESS CORPORATION
1650 W 82ND ST FL 11
MINNEAPOLIS MINNESOTA 55431-1419

THE CONTRACT PERIOD IS:
JULY 01, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2015

THIS SERVICE CONTRACT HAS BEEN AMENDED PER THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

THIS CONTRACT IS NOT AN EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT TO FURNISH THE SERVICES SHOWN BELOW, AND DOES NOT PRECLUDE
THE PURCHASE OF SIMILAR SERVICES FROM OTHER SOURCES.

THE STATE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO EXTEND THE PERIOD OF THIS CONTRACT BEYOND THE TERMINATION DATE WHEN
MUTUALLY AGREEABLE TO THE VENDOR/CONTRACTOR AND THE STATE OF NEBRASKA.

Original/Bid Document 2787 Z1

Contract to supply and deliver a Wellness Program for Nebraska State Employees to the State of Nebraska as per the
attached specifications for the contract period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. The contract may be renewed for one (1)
additional one (1) year period when mutually agreeable to the vendor and the State of Nebraska. The State reserves the right
to extend the period of this contract beyond the termination date when mutually agreeable to the vendor and the State of

Nebraska.

The State may request that payment be made electronically instead of by state warrant. ACH/EFT Enrollment Form can be
found at: <http://www.das.state.ne.us/accounting/forms/achenrol.pdf>

The Contractor is required and hereby agrees to use a federal immigration verification system to determine the work eligibility
status of employees physically performing services within the State of Nebraska. A federal immigration verification system
mean the electronic verification of the work authorization program authorized by the lllegal Immigration Reform and
Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. 1324a, known as E-Verify Program, or an equivalent federal program designed by the
United States Department of Homeland Security or other federal agency authorized to verify the work eligibility status ofa
newly hired employee. ’

The contractor, by signature to the Request For Proposal, certifies that the contractor is not presently debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency from participating in
transactions (debarred). The contractor also agrees to include the above requirements in any and all subcontracts into which
it enters. The contractor shall immediately notify the Department if, during the term of this contract, contractor becomes
debarred. The Department may immediately terminate this contract by providing contractor written notice if contractor
becomes debarred during the term of this contract.

If the Contractor is an individual or sole proprietorship, the following applies:

1. The Contractor must complete the United States Citizenship Attestation Form, available on the Department of
Administrative Services website at: <http://das.nebraska.gov/Ib403/attestation_form.pdf>

2. If the Contractor indicates on such attestation form that he or she is a qualified alien, the Contractor agrees to provide the
US Citizenship and Immigration Services documentation require to verify the Contractor's lawful presence in the United States
using the Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements (SAVE) Program.

3. The Contractor understands and agrees that lawful presence in the United States is required and the Contractor may be
disqualified or the contract terminated if such lawful presence cannot be verified as required by Neb. Rev. Stat. §4-108.

The contract resulting from the Request for Proposal shall incorporate the following documents:
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State Purchasing Bureau

STATE OF NEBRASKA serviCE CONTRACT AMENDMENT 1526 K Street, Suite 130

Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

OR
P.O. Box 94847
PAGE ORDER DATE Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847
20f3 09/22/14 Telephone: (402) 471-6500
BUSINESS UNIT BUYER Fax: (402) 471-2089
65080008 MICHELLE THOMPSON (AS) CONTRACT NUMBER
VENDOR NUMBER: 1850215 38349 04

1. Amendment to Contract Award with the most recent dated amendment having the highest priority;
2. Contract Award and any attached Addenda;

3. The signed Request for Proposal form and the Contractor' s proposal,

4. Amendments to RFP and any Questions and Answers; and

5. The original RFP document and any Addenda.

These documents constitute the entirety of the contract.

Unless otherwise specifically stated in a contract amendment, in case of any conflict between the incorporated documents,
the documents shall govern in the following order of preference with number one (1) receiving preference over all other
documents and with each lower numbered document having preference over any higher numbered document: 1) Amendment
to Contract Award with the most recent dated amendment having the highest priority, 2) Contract Award and any attached
Addenda, 3) the signed Request For Proposal form and the Contractor' s proposal 4) Amendments to RFP and any Questions
and Answers, 5) the original RFP document and any Addenda.

Any ambiguity in any provision of this contract which shall be discovered after its execution shall be resolved in accordance
with the rules of contract interpretation as established in the State of Nebraska.
Once Requests for Proposal are opened they become the property of the State of Nebraska and will not be returned.

It is understood by the parties that in the State of Nebraska' s opinion, any limitation on the contractor' s liability is
unconstitutional under the Nebraska State Constitution, Article XIII, Section Ill and that any limitation of liability shall not be
binding on the State of Nebraska despite inclusion of such language in documents supplied by the contractor' s bid response.

Vendor Contact: Amy Brammer
Office Phone: 940-384-9900
Cell Phone: 612-751-6043

Fax: 940-383-1127

E-Mail: amy.brammer@hfit.com

THIS IS THE FIRST RENEWAL OF THE CONTRACT AS AMENDED. (06/25/2014 ked)
AMENDMENT ONE (1) AS ATTACHED. (07/30/2014 ked)

AMENDMENT TWO (2) AS ATTACHED. (09/22/2014 ked)

Unit of Unit Extended
Line  Description Quantity Measure Price Price
31 DISEASE MANAGEMENT 1,862,871.0700 $ 1.0000 1,862,871.07
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15
32 GAPS IN CARE 400,000.0000 $ 1.0000 400,000.00
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15
33 BIOMETRICS 453,772.1000 $ 1.0000 453,772.10
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15
34 REPORTING 360,000.0000 $ 1.0000 360,000.00
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15
35 HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT 470,000.0000 $ 1.0000 470,000.00
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STATE OF NEBRASKA service coNTRACT AMENDMENT

PAGE ORDER DATE
09/22/14

30f3
BUYER

BUSINESS UNIT
65080008 MICHELLE THOMPSON (AS)

VENDOR NUMBER: 1850215

State Purchasing Bureau
1526 K Street, Suite 130
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

OR
P.O. Box 94847
Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847
Telephone: (402) 471-6500
Fax: (402) 471-2089

CONTRACT NUMBER
38349 04

Unit of Unit Extended
Line  Description Quantity Measure Price Price
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15
36 HEALTH ADVISING/COACHING- 920,000.0000 $ 1.0000 920,000.00
PHONE/SEMINARS
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15
Total Order 4,466,643.17
-~ 4 .2
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AMENDMENT TWO
Contract 38349 O4
Wellness Program for Nebraska State Employees for the State of Nebraska
Between
The State of Nebraska and Health Fitness Corporation

This Amendment (the “Amendment”) is made by the State of Nebraska and Health Fitness
Corporation; parties to Contract 38349 O4 (the “Contract’), and upon mutual agreement and
other valuable consideration the parties agree to and hereby replace and supersede Section lll.
Terms and Conditions, A. General as follows effective September 22, 2014

A.

GENERAL
The contract resulting from this Request for Proposal shall incorporate the following

documents:

1. Amendment to Contract Award with the most recent dated amendment having
the highest priority;

2. Contract Award and any attached Addenda,;

3. Business Associates Agreement (BAA) or any other service amendments or
attachments;

4. The Request for Proposal form and the Contractor’s Proposal, signed in ink

5. Amendments to RFP and any Questions and Answers; and

6. The original RFP document and any Addenda.
These documents constitute the entirety of the contract.

Unless otherwise specifically stated in a contract amendment, in case of any conflict
between the incorporated documents, the documents shall govern in the following order
of preference with number one (1) receiving preference over all other documents and
with each lower numbered document having preference over any higher numbered
document: 1) Amendment to Contract Award with the most recent dated amendment
having the highest priority, 2) Contract Award and any attached Addenda, 3) Business
Associates Agreement (BAA) or any other service amendments or attachments, 4) the
signed Request for Proposal form and the Contractor’'s Proposal, 5) Amendments to
RFP and any Questions and Answers, 6) the original RFP document and any Addenda.

Any ambiguity in any provision of this contract which shall be discovered after its
execution shall be resolved in accordance with the rules of contract interpretation as
established in the State of Nebraska.

Once proposals are opened they become the property of the State of Nebraska and will
not be returned.




This amendment and any attachments hereto will become part of the Contract. Except as set
forth in this Amendment, the Contract is unaffected and shall continue in full force and effect in
accordance with its terms. If there is conflict between this amendment and the Contract or any
earlier amendment, the terms of this amendment will prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the date of
execution by both parties below.

State of Ne/b/r@& Contractor: Health Fitness Corporation
By./’/é:\ By: \/Am Q ()A/Aﬂ—«__
Name: Bo Botelho Name:_Steven A. Alavi

Title: Materiel Administrator Title:_Chief Financial Officer

Date: 41/2’9/ //? Date:_Septemher 16_2014



STATE OF NEBRASKA
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

THIS BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) amends and is made a

part of all Services Agreements (as defined below) between Health Fitness Corporation
(“‘Business Associate”) and State of Nebraska ("Company”) on behalf of the Group Health
Plans sponsored by Company (the “Plan”). This Agreement is effective September 22, 2014
or upon the effective date of the underlying Services Agreement, whichever is later (“Effective
Date”). This Agreement supersedes and replaces any prior Business Associate Agreements

between the parties.
1. Definitions.
a. Catch-all definitions. The following terms used in this Agreement shall

have the same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA Rules: Breach, Covered Entity,
Data Aggregation, Designated Record Set, Disclose or Disclosure, Electronic
Protected Health Information, Health Care Operations, Minimum Necessary, Notice
of Privacy Practices, Protected Health Information or PHI, Required By Law,
Secretary, Security Incident, Subcontractor, Unsecured Protected Health
Information, and Use. Other capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this
Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed in the HIPAA Rules.

b. Specific definitions.

) “Business Associate” shall generally have the same meaning as the
term "Business Associate" at 45 CFR 160.103, and in reference to the party to this
Agreement, shall mean the party identified above as Business Associate.

(2) “Business Associate Functions” means functions performed by
Business Associate on behalf of the Plan in the course of providing or arranging for
plan administration services which involve the creation, receipt, maintenance or
transmission of PHI by Business Associate or its agents or Subcontractors. It is
anticipated that the services provided by Business Associate will be performed as
part of the Plan's “health care operations” as defined in the HIPAA Rules.

(3) “HIPAA Rules” shall mean the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification,
and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164. A reference in this
Agreement to a section in the HIPAA Rules means the section as in effect or as
amended at the time the section is to be applied.

4) “Individual” shall generally have the same meaning ascribed in the
HIPAA Rules and shall refer only to Individuals who are covered persons under the
Plan.

(5) “Services Agreements” means all agreements whether now in effect
or hereafter entered into, between Company and Business Associate for the
performance of Business Associate Functions by Business Associate on behalf of
the Plan.




2. Purpose. The Plan is a Covered Entity under HIPAA. The HIPAA Rules require the
Plan to obtain, and Business Associate to provide, satisfactory written contractual
assurances before Business Associate may create, receive, maintain, or Disclose PHI to
perform Business Associate Functions on behalf of the Plan. This Agreement is entered
into to provide the contractual assurances required under the HIPAA Rules.

3. Obligations _of Business Associate. As an express condition of performing
Business Associate Functions, Business Associate agrees to:

a. Not Use or Disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by this
Agreement or as otherwise Required by Law.

b. Use appropriate safeguards, and comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164
with respect to Electronic Protected Health Information, to prevent Use or Disclosure
of PHI other than as provided for in this Agreement.

c. Report to the Plan's designated privacy official, without unreasonable delay
but in no event more than three (3) business days after discovery by Business
Associate, any Use or Disclosure of PHI not provided for by this Agreement of which
Business Associate becomes aware, including any Breach of Unsecured Protected
Health Information as required at 45 CFR 164.410, and any Security Incident of
which it becomes aware, together with any remedial or mitigating action taken or
proposed to be taken with respect thereto. If Business Associate does not have
available complete information in satisfaction of 45 CFR 164.410(c) within three (3)
business days of discovery of the impermissible Use or Disclosure, Business
Associate shall provide all information it has at such time, and immediately update
the Plan with additional information as it becomes available through prompt
investigation. This Agreement serves as Business Associate's notice to the Plan
that attempted but unsuccessful Security Incidents regularly occur and that no
further notice will be made by Business Associate unless there has been a
successful Security Incident or altempts or patterns of attempts that Business
Associate determines to be suspicious.

Business Associate shall cooperate with the Plan in mitigating any harmful effects of
any impermissible Use or Disclosure. In the case of a Breach as determined to exist
in the sole discretion of the Plan which was due to a violation of this Agreement by
Business Associate, Business Associate shall pay for the reasonable costs of
investigation, mitigation and notification to affected Individuals. As an alternative to
Business Associate reimbursing Company and the Plan for the costs of notification,
the Plan may elect to have Business Associate directly provide the notifications to
Individuals for breaches caused by Business Associate, provided that Company and
the Plan shall have final approval of all content of notifications to Individuals.

d. In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 164.308(b)(2), ensure that
any Subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit PHI on behalf of
Business Associate agree in writing to the same restrictions, conditions, and
requirements that apply to Business Associate with respect to such information.

e. Within ten (10) business days of request by an Individual or notification by the
Plan, make available to the Individual such Individual's PHI maintained by Business
Associate in a Designated Record Set in accordance with 45 CFR 164.524. The




parties agree that Individuals will be directed to Business Associate to make all
requests for access to PHI. Business Associate will provide such access according
to its own procedures for such access in accordance with the requirements of
45 CFR 164.524. If the requested PHI is maintained in one or more Designated
Record Sets electronically and if the Individual requests an electronic copy of such
PHI, Business Associate must provide the Individual with access to PHI in the
electronic form and format requested by the Individual, if it is readily producible in
such form and format: or, if not, in a readable electronic form and format as agreed
to between Business Associate and the Individual. Business Associate shall provide
the requested information directly to the Individual, along with a notice to the
Individua! that a copy of the individual's request has been furnished to the Plan and
that the Plan may provide additional information to the Individual in response to the
request.

If the Individual's request covers records not maintained by Business Associate,
Business Associate shall notify the Plan within three (3) days of the request. The
Plan will be responsible for providing access or otherwise responding directly to the
Individual pursuant to the HIPAA Rules with respect to PHI not in the possession of
Business Associate or an agent or subcontractor of Business Associate. Business
Associate may charge the Individual reasonable fees related to this access, as
determined by Business Associate, but only in such amounts as permitted by the
HIPAA Rules. The Plan authorizes Business Associate to require payment of such
fees from the Individual prior to releasing any records.

f. Business Associate agrees to receive requests for amendment and amend
PHI as required by 45 CFR 164.526 on the Plan's behalf for as long as such
information is maintained by Business Associate. The parties agree that Individuals
will be directed to Business Associate to make all such requests for amendment of
PHI. Business Associate will amend such PHI according to its own procedures for
such amendment in accordance with the requirements of 45 CFR 164.526. |If the
Individual's request covers records not maintained by Business Associate, Business
Associate shall notify the Plan within three (3) days of such request. The Plan will
be responsible for amending or otherwise responding directly to the Individual
pursuant to the HIPAA Rules with respect to PHI not in the possession of Business
Associate or an agent or contractor of Business Associate. Business Associate shall
notify the Plan of any amendments made to PHL.

g. Business Associate agrees to process all requests for disclosure accounting
by Individuals for as long as such information is maintained by Business Associate.
Individuals will be directed to Business Associate to make all such requests.
Business Associate will provide the accounting that is required under 45 CFR
164.528 on the Plan's behalf directly to the Individual. Business Associate will
provide such accounting according to its own procedures for such accounting in
accordance with the requirements of 45 CFR 164.528.

Business Associate shall notify the Plan within three (3) days of any request made
by an Individual for a disclosure accounting. The Plan will be responsible for
responding directly to the Individual (or the Individual's personal representative)
pursuant to 45 CFR 164.528 with respect to disclosures of PHI by persons or entities
other than Business Associate or a subcontractor or agent of Business Associate.




Business Associate shall provide directly to the Individual the requested accounting
of disclosures made by Business Associate or a subcontractor or agent of Business
Associate, along with a notice to the Individual that a copy of the Individual's request
has been furnished to the Plan and that the Plan may provide additional information
to the Individual in response to the request.

h. Make its internal practices, books and records relating to this Agreement
available to the Secretary of HHS and to the Plan for purposes of determining the
Plan's and Business Associate's compliance with the HIPAA Rules.

i. So that the Plan may meet its obligations to evaluate requests for restrictions
and confidential communications in connection with the disclosure of PHI under
45 CFR 164.522, Business Associate and the Plan agree that, to the extent that
communications are within the control of Business Associate, Business Associate
will perform these evaluations on behalf of the Plan. Business Associate will
evaluate such requests according to its own procedures for such requests, in
accordance with the requirements of 45 CFR 164.522, and shall implement such
appropriate operational steps as are required by its own procedures. Such
evaluation will not relieve the Plan of any additional and independent obligations to
evaluate restrictions or implement confidential communications where requested by
an Individual. Accordingly, Business Associate will evaluate requests for restrictions
and requests for confidential communications, and will respond to these requests as
appropriate under Business Associate's procedures. The Plan agrees that it will not
agree to such restriction or request that would affect Business Associate without the
approval of Business Associate, so that Business Associate can determine whether
it can reasonably administer the request.

i So that the Plan may meet its obligation to evaluate complaints from
Individuals regarding their privacy rights or privacy practices of the Plan or Business
Associate, the parties agree that Individuals shall be directed to submit any such
complaint to Business Associate for review and evaluation. Business Associate will
evaluate such complaints according to its own procedures for complaints, and shall
implement appropriate operation steps as are required by its own procedures. The
Privacy Officer of the Plan shall cooperate with Business Associate in the evaluation
of any such complaint. Business Associate shall provide a copy of all complaints to
the Plan within three (3) days of receipt by Business Associate. If the complaint
appears to involve handling of PHI by the Plan, Plan Sponsor, or other Business
Associate of the Plan, Business Associate shall notify the Plan and it shall be the
Plan's responsibility to review and evaluate the complaint.

k. Limit the Uses and Disclosures of, or requests for, PHI for purposes
described in this Agreement to the Minimum Necessary to perform the required
Business Associate Functions. Business Associate shall comply with any additional
requirements for the determination of Minimum Necessary as are required from time
to time by the HIPAA Rules, as amended, or through additional guidance published
by the Secretary.

l. To the extent Business Associate is expressly obligated under the Services
Agreements to carry out one or more of the Plan's obligation(s) under Subpart E of
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Disclose PHI as follows:

45 CFR Part 164, comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to the Plan
in the performance of such obligation(s).

m. Except for the specific Uses and Disclosures for the Business Associate's
own management and administration or to carry out the legal responsibilities of
Business Associate, Business Associate shall not Use or Disclose PHI in a manner
that would violate the HIPAA Rules if done by the Plan.

Permitted Uses and Disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall only Use or

a. Business Associate may Use or Disclose PHI as Required by Law.

b. Business Associate may Use or Disclose PHI as necessary to carry out
Business Associate Functions.

C. Business Associate may Use PHI for the proper management and
administration of Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of
Business Associate.

d. Business Associate may Disclose PHI for the proper management and
administration of Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of
Business Associate, provided the Disclosures are Required by Law, or Business
Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is
Disclosed that the information will remain confidential and be Used or further Disclosed
only as Required by Law or for the purposes for which it was Disclosed to the person,
and the person notifies Business Associate in writing of any instances of which it is
aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached or
compromised.

e. if specifically identified as a Business Associate Function in the Services
Agreements, Business Associate may provide Data Aggregation services relating to
the Health Care Operations of Covered Entity.

f. If de-identification is listed as a Business Associate Function in the Services
Agreements, or if Business Associate is expressly permitted to de-identify PHI and use
data thus de-identified for its own uses in the Services Agreements, Business
Associate may Use PHI to de-identify the information in accordance with 45 CFR
164.514(a)-(c). Business Associate may use de-identified data only for the purposes
specified in the Services Agreements.

Responsibilities of the Plan. The Plan agrees to:

a. Notify Business Associate promptly of any restriction on the Use or
Disclosure of PHI that the Plan has agreed to or is required to abide by under
45 CFR 164.522, to the extent such restriction may affect Business Associate's Use
or Disclosure of PHI.

b. Notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, the permission
by an Individual to Use or Disclose PHI, to the extent that such changes may affect
Business Associate's Use or Disclosure of PHI.




c. Provide Business Associate with a copy of any amendment to PHI which is
accepted by Covered Entity under 45 CFR 164.526 which Covered Entity believes
will apply to PHI maintained by Business Associate in a Designated Record Set.

d. Not request Business Associate to Use or Disclose PHI in any manner that
would not be permissible under the HIPAA Rules if done by the Plan, with exception
for any Data Aggregation services permitted under Section 4.

6. Compliance with Electronic Transactions Rule. |f Business Associate conducts
in whole or part electronic Transactions (as defined in 45 CFR 160.103) on behalf of
Covered Entity for which the Secretary of HHS has established standards, Business
Associate will comply, and will require any Subcontractor involved with the conduct of such
Transactions to comply, with each applicable requirement of the Electronic Transactions
Rule at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 162 and of any operating rules adopted by the Secretary of
HHS with respect to Transactions.

7. Supervening Law. Upon the enactment of any law or regulation affecting the Use
or Disclosure of PHI, or the publication of any decision of a court of the United States or of
this state relating to any such law, or the publication of any interpretive policy or opinion of
any governmental agency charged with the enforcement of any such law or regulation, the
parties agree to amend this Agreement in such manner as is necessary to comply with such
law or regulation. If the parties are unable to agree on an amendment within thirty (30)
days, either party may terminate the Services Agreements on not less than thirty (30) days’
written notice to the other.

8. Liability and Indemnification. Each party shall be responsible for the acts and
omissions of its own agents, employees and contractors. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
and notwithstanding any limitation of liability or disclaimer of damages in the Services
Agreements or elsewhere, to the extent that the Secretary determines that Business
Associate is acting as an agent of the Plan under the Services Agreements or this
Agreement, Business Associate shall indemnify Company and the Plan for any fines, civil
monetary penalties or monetary resolutions incurred by Company or the Plan, plus
reasonable attorneys' fees of Company and the Plan, arising out of or relating to the actions
or omissions of Business Associate which constitute a breach of this Agreement by
Business Associate. This indemnification is in addition to any additional indemnification
provided by Business Associate in the Services Agreement.

9, Term and Termination.

a. Term. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and shall
continue in effect until all obligations of the parties have been met, including return or
destruction of all PHI in Business Associate's possession (or in the possession of
Business Associate’s agents and Subcontractors), unless sooner terminated as
provided herein. It is expressly agreed that the terms and conditions of this
Agreement designed to safeguard PHI shall survive expiration or other termination of
the Services Agreements and shall continue in effect until Business Associate has
performed all obligations under this Agreement and has either returned or destroyed all
PHI.

b. Termination. Company may immediately terminate this Agreement and the
Services Agreements, if Company and/or the Plan makes the determination that




10.

Business Associate has breached a material term of this Agreement. Alternatively,
Company may choose to provide Business Associate with written notice of the
existence of an alleged material breach, and afford Business Associate an
opportunity to cure the alleged material breach upon mutually agreeable terms.
Failure to take reasonable steps to cure the breach is grounds for the immediate

termination of this Agreement.

c. Business Associate Obligations Upon Termination. Upon termination of
this Agreement for any reason, Business Associate, with respect to PHI received
from the Plan, or created, maintained, or received by Business Associate on behalf
of the Plan, shall:

(i) Retain only that PHI which is necessary for Business Associate to
continue its proper management and administration or to carry out its
legal responsibilities or as to which Business Associate reasonably
determines such PHI is technically incapable of being returned or
destroyed;

(ii) Return to the Plan or, if not provided for in the Services Agreements,
destroy the PHI retained under 8.c.(i) that the Business Associate
maintains in any form;

(i) ~ Continue to use appropriate safeguards and comply with Subpart C of
45 CFR Part 164 with respect to Electronic Protected Health
Information retained by Business Associate to prevent Use or
Disclosure of the PHI, other than as provided for in this Section, for as
long as Business Associate retains the PHI,

(iv)  Not Use or Disclose the PHI retained by Business Associate other
than for the purposes for which such PHI was retained and subject to
the same conditions set out at Sections 4.c. and 4.d. which applied
prior to termination; and

(v)  Return to the Plan or, if not provided for in the Services Agreements,
destroy the PHI retained by Business Associate under Section 8.c.(i)
when it is no longer needed by Business Associate for its proper
management and administration or to carry out its legal
responsibilities, except where Business Associate reasonably
determines such PHI is not technically capable of being returned or
destroyed.

Miscellaneous.

a. Applicability. For purposes of this Agreement, and as applicable to the
Business Associate Functions of Business Associate under the Services Agreements
covered by this Agreement, references to the Plan shall include the nhamed Plan and all
other group health plans subject to HIPAA and sponsored by Company that participate
in an organized health care arrangement.

b. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate and
the Plan or Company hereunder shall survive termination of this Agreement




according to the terms hereof and the obligations imposed on the Plan or Company
and Business Associate under the HIPAA Rules.

o Interpretation; Amendment. This Agreement shall be interpreted and
applied in a manner consistent with the Plan's and Business Associate's obligations
under the HIPAA Rules. All amendments shall be in writing and signed by both
parties, except that this Agreement shall attach to additional Services Agreements
entered into between the parties in the future without the necessity of amending this
Agreement each time. This Agreement is intended to cover the entire Business
Assoaciate relationship between the parties, as amended, from time to time, through
Services Agreements or other means.

d. Waiver. A waiver with respect to one event shall not be construed as
continuing, or as a bar to or waiver of any right or remedy as to subsequent events.

e. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing express or implied in this Agreement
is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than
the parties and their respective successors or assigns, any rights, remedies or
obligations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has caused this Agreement to be duly

executed in its name and on its behalf.

Company:
State of Nebraska

Signature:

Printed Name: b Dotk
Mmsteatol

Date Signhed: _7 j '7/ /qf SEL

Title: Matecio\

DOCS/1204654 1

Business Associate:
Health Fitness Corporation

Signature: %%é

Printed Name: _Paul Lotharius
Title: President & CEO

Date Signed: September 9, 2014
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THE CONTRACT PERIOD IS:
JULY 01, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2015

THIS SERVICE CONTRACT HAS BEEN AMENDED PER THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

THIS CONTRACT IS NOT AN EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT TO FURNISH THE SERVICES SHOWN BELOW, AND DOES NOT PRECLUDE
THE PURCHASE OF SIMILAR SERVICES FROM OTHER SOURCES.

THE STATE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO EXTEND THE PERIOD OF THIS CONTRACT BEYOND THE TERMINATION DATE WHEN
MUTUALLY AGREEABLE TO THE VENDOR/CONTRACTOR AND THE STATE OF NEBRASKA.

Original/Bid Document 2787 Z1

Contract to supply and deliver a Wellness Program for Nebraska State Employees to the State of Nebraska as per the
attached specifications for the contract period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. The contract may be renewed for one (1)
additional one (1) year period when mutually agreeable to the vendor and the State of Nebraska. The State reserves the right
to extend the period of this contract beyond the termination date when mutually agreeable to the vendor and the State of

Nebraska.

The State may request that payment be made electronically instead of by state warrant. ACH/EFT Enrollment Form can be
found at: <http://www.das.state.ne.us/accounting/forms/achenrol.pdf>

The Contractor is required and hereby agrees to use a federal immigration verification system to determine the work eligibility
status of employees physically performing services within the State of Nebraska. A federal immigration verification system
mean the electronic verification of the work authorization program authorized by the lllegal Immigration Reform and _
Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. 1324a, known as E-Verify Program, or an equivalent federal program designed by the
United States Department of Homeland Security or other federal agency authorized to verify the work eligibility status of a
newly hired employee.

The contractor, by signature to the Request For Proposal, certifies that the contractor is not presently debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency from participating in
transactions (debarred). The contractor also agrees to include the above requirements in any and all subcontracts into which
it enters. The contractor shall immediately notify the Department if, during the term of this contract, contractor becomes
debarred. The Department may immediately terminate this contract by providing contractor written notice if contractor
becomes debarred during the term of this contract.

If the Contractor is an individual or sole proprietorship, the following applies:

1. The Contractor must complete the United States Citizenship Attestation Form, available on the Department of
Administrative Services website at: <http://das.nebraska.gov/lb403/attestation_form.pdf>

2. If the Contractor indicates on such attestation form that he or she is a qualified alien, the Contractor agrees to provide the
US Citizenship and Immigration Services documentation require to verify the Contractor's lawful presence in the United States
using the Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements (SAVE) Program.

3. The Contractor understands and agrees that lawful presence in the United States is required and the Contractor may be
disqualified or the contract terminated if such lawful presence cannot be verified as required by Neb. Rev. Stat. §4-108.

The contract resulting from the Request for Proposal shall incorporate the following documents:
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State Purchasing Bureau

STATE OF NEBRASKA servICE CONTRACT AMENDMENT 1526 K S, Sue 130

Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

— OR

P.O. Box 94847
PAGE ORDER DATE Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847
20f3 07/30/14 Telephone: (402) 471-6500

BUSINESS UNIT BUYER Fax: (402) 471-2089
65080008 MICHELLE THOMPSON (AS) CONTRACT NUMBER
38349 04

VENDOR NUMBER: 1850215

1. Amendment to Contract Award with the most recent dated amendment having the highest priority;
2. Contract Award and any attached Addenda;

3. The signed Request for Proposal form and the Contractor' s proposal,

4. Amendments to RFP and any Questions and Answers; and

5. The original RFP document and any Addenda.

These documents constitute the entirety of the contract.

Unless otherwise specifically stated in a contract amendment, in case of any conflict between the incorporated documents,
the documents shall govern in the following order of preference with number one (1) receiving preference over all other
documents and with each lower numbered document having preference over any higher numbered document: 1) Amendment
to Contract Award with the most recent dated amendment having the highest priority, 2) Contract Award and any attached
Addenda, 3) the signed Request For Proposal form and the Contractor' s proposal 4) Amendments to RFP and any Questions
and Answers, 5) the original RFP document and any Addenda.

Any ambiguity in any provision of this contract which shall be discovered after its execution shall be resolved in accordance

with the rules of contract interpretation as established in the State of Nebraska.
Once Requests for Proposal are opened they become the property of the State of Nebraska and will not be returned.

Itis understood by the parties that in the State of Nebraska' s opinion, any limitation on the contractor' s liability is
unconstitutional under the Nebraska State Constitution, Article XIII, Section Il and that any limitation of liability shall not be
binding on the State of Nebraska despite inclusion of such :;!anQUage in documents supplied by the contractor' s bid response.

Vendor Contact: Amy Brammer
Office Phone: 940-384-9900
Cell Phone: 612-751-6043

Fax: 940-383-1127

E-Mail: amy.brammer@hfit.com

THIS IS THE FIRST RENEWAL OF THE CONTRACT AS AMENDED (06/25/2014 ked)

AMENDMENT ONE (1) AS ATTACHED (07/30/2014 ked)

Unit of Unit Extended
Line  Description Quantity Measure Price Price

31 DISEASE MANAGEMENT 1,862,871.0700 $ 1.0000 1,862,871.07
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

32 GAPS IN CARE 400,000.0000 $ 1.0000 400,000.00
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

33 BIOMETRICS 380,000.0000 $ 1.0000 380,000.00
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

34 REPORTING 360,000.0000 $ 1.0000 360,000.00
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

35 HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT 470,000.0000 $ 1.0000 470,000.00

WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

BUYER INITIALS
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STATE OF NEBRASKA service coNTRACT AMENDMENT

PAGE ORDER DATE
30f3 07/30/14
BUSINESS UNIT BUYER
65080008 MICHELLE THOMPSON (AS)
VENDOR NUMBER: 1850215

State Purchasing Bureau
1526 K Street, Suite 130
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

OR
P.O. Box 94847
Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847
Telephone: (402) 471-6500
Fax: (402) 471-2089

CONTRACT NUMBER
38349 O4

Unit Extended

Unit of
Line  Description Quantity Measure P
36 HEALTH ADVISING/COACHING- 920,000.0000 $

PHONE/SEMINARS
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

Total Order

Price
920,000.00

rice
1.0000

4,392,871.07

BUYER INITIALS
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AMENDMENT ONE
38349 04
Wellness Program for Nebraska State Employees for the State of Nebraska
Between
The State of Nebraska and Health Fitness Corporation

This Amendment (the “Amendment”) is made by the State of Nebraska and Health Fitness
Corporation, parties to Contract 38349 O4 (the “Contract”), and upon mutual agreement and
other valuable consideration the parties agree to and hereby amend the contract as follows:

1. The current vendor contact is removed in its entirety and replaced with:

Vendor Contact: Amy Brammer
Office Phone: 940-384-9900
Cell Phone: 612-751-6043
Fax: 940-383-1127

Email: amy.brammer@hfit.com

This amendment and any attachments hereto will become part of the Contract. Except as set
forth in this Amendment, the Contract is unaffected and shall continue in full force and effect in
accordance with its terms. If there is conflict between this amendment and the Contract or any
earlier amendment, the terms of this amendment will prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the date of
execution by both parties below.

State of Nebraska Contractor: Health Fitness Corporation

<l }—7 T

) 8 N
By: / O = —
Name: Bo Botelho Name:_Brian Gagne ( ,-
Title: Materiel Administrator Title:_chief Operations Officer

Date: 2 i et . '7 Date:_July 23. 2014




AMENDMENT ONE
38349 04
Wellness Program for Nebraska State Employees for the State of Nebraska
Between
The State of Nebraska and Health Fitness Corporation

This Amendment (the “Amendment”) is made by the State of Nebraska and Health Fitness
Corporation, parties to Contract 38349 O4 (the “Contract”), and upon mutual agreement and
other valuable consideration the parties agree to and hereby amend the contract as follows:

1. The current vendor contact is removed in its entirety and replaced with:

Vendor Contact: Amy Brammer
Office Phone: 940-384-9900
Cell Phone: 612-751-6043
Fax: 940-383-1127

Email: amy.brammer@hfit.com

This amendment and any attachments hereto will become part of the Contract. Except as set
forth in this Amendment, the Contract is unaffected and shall continue in full force and effect in
accordance with its terms. If there is conflict between this amendment and the Contract or any
earlier amendment, the terms of this amendment will prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the date of
execution by both parties below.

State of Nebraska Contractor; Health Fithess Corporation
//% " ¥ ) P
By _ - By: [ AN~ e al

Name: Bo Botelho

Title: Materiel Administrator

Date: ;/7 “«)4

Name:_Brian Gagne A .

Title:_chief Operations Officer

Date:_July 23, 2014




State Purchasing Bureau

STATE OF NEBRASKA SERVICE CONTRACT AWARD 1526 Kk Street, Suite 130

Lincoln, Nebraska 68508
.
P.O. Box 94847
PAGE ORDER DATE Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847

10f2 06/25/14 Telephone: (402) 471-6500
BUSINESS UNIT BUYER Fax: (402) 471-2089
65080008 MICHELLE THOMPSON (AS)
VENDOR NUMBER: 1850215 CONTRACT NUMBER
38349 04
VENDOR ADDRESS:

HEALTH FITNESS CORPORATION
1650 W 82ND ST FL 11
MINNEAPOLIS MINNESOTA 55431-1419

AN AWARD HAS BEEN MADE TO THE VENDOR/CONTRACTOR NAMED ABOVE FOR THE SERVICES AS LISTED BELOW FOR THE
PERIOD:

JULY 01, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2015

THIS CONTRACT IS NOT AN EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT TO FURNISH THE SERVICES SHOWN BELOW, AND DOES NOT PRECLUDE
THE PURCHASE OF SIMILAR SERVICES FROM OTHER SOURCES.

THE STATE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO EXTEND THE PERIOD OF THIS CONTRACT BEYOND THE TERMINATION DATE WHEN
MUTUALLY AGREEABLE TO THE VENDOR/CONTRACTOR AND THE STATE OF NEBRASKA.

Original/Bid Document 2787 Z1

Contract to supply and deliver a Wellness Program for Nebraska State Employees to the State of Nebraska as per the
attached specifications for the contract period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. The contract may be renewed for one (1)
additional one (1) year period when mutually agreeable to the vendor and the State of Nebraska. The State reserves the right
to extend the period of this contract beyond the termination date when mutually agreeable to the vendor and the State of

Nebraska.

The State may request that payment be made electronically instead of by state warrant. ACH/EFT Enroliment Form can be
found at: <http://www.das.state.ne.us/accounting/forms/achenrol.pdf>

The Contractor is required and hereby agrees to use a federal immigration verification system to determine the work eligibility
status of employees physically performing services within the State of Nebraska. A federal immigration verification system
mean the electronic verification of the work authorization program authorized by the lllegal Immigration Reform and
Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. 1324a, known as E-Verify Program, or an equivalent federal program designed by the
United States Department of Homeland Security or other federal agency authorized to verify the work eligibility status of a
newly hired employee.

The contractor, by signature to the Request For Proposal, certifies that the contractor is not presently debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency from participating in
transactions (debarred). The contractor also agrees to include the above requirements in any and all subcontracts into which
it enters. The contractor shall inmediately notify the Department if, during the term of this contract, contractor becomes
debarred. The Department may immediately terminate this contract by providing contractor written notice if contractor
becomes debarred during the term of this contract.

If the Contractor is an individual or sole proprietorship, the following applies:

1. The Contractor must complete the United States Citizenship Attestation Form, available on the Department of
Administrative Services website at: <http://das.nebraska.gov/Ib403/attestation_form.pdf>

2. If the Contractor indicates on such attestation form that he or she is a qualified alien, the Contractor agrees to provide the
US Citizenship and Immigration Services documentation require to verify the Contractor's lawful presence in the United States
using the Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements (SAVE) Program.

3. The Contractor understands and agrees that lawful presence in the United States is required and the Contractor may be
disqualified or the contract terminated if such lawful presence cannot be verified as required by Neb. Rev. Stat. §4-108.

The contract resulting from the Request for Proposal shall incorporate the following documents:
1. Amendment to Contract Award with the most recent dated amendment having the highest priority;
2. Contract Award and any attached Addenda;

3. The signed Request for Proposal form and the Contractor' s proposal; B
q\\ ’ y 271y
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State Purchasing Bureau

STATE OF NEBRASKA SERVICE CONTRACT AWARD 1526 K Street, Suite 130

Lincoln, Nebraska 68508
OR
P.O. Box 94847
PAGE ORDER DATE Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847
2 0f 2 06/25/14 Telephone: (402) 471-6500

BUSINESS UNIT BUYER Fax: (402) 471-2089
65080008 MICHELLE THOMPSON (AS)
CONTRACT NUMBER
VENDOR NUMBER: 1850215 38349 O4

4. Amendments to RFP and any Questions and Answers; and
5. The original RFP document and any Addenda.

These documents constitute the entirety of the contract.

Unless otherwise specifically stated in a contract amendment, in case of any conflict between the incorporated documents,
the documents shall govern in the following order of preference with number one (1) receiving preference over all other
documents and with each lower numbered document having preference over any higher numbered document: 1) Amendment
to Contract Award with the most recent dated amendment having the highest priority, 2) Contract Award and any attached
Addenda, 3) the signed Request For Proposal form and the Contractor' s proposal 4) Amendments to RFP and any Questions
and Answers, 5) the original RFP document and any Addenda.

Any ambiguity in any provision of this contract which shall be discovered after its execution shall be resolved in accordance
with the rules of contract interpretation as established in the State of Nebraska.
Once Requests for Proposal are opened they become the property of the State of Nebraska and will not be returned.

Itis understood by the parties that in the State of Nebraska' s opinion, any limitation on the contractor' s liability is
unconstitutional under the Nebraska State Constitution, Article XIII, Section Il and that any limitation of liability shall not be
binding on the State of Nebraska despite inclusion of such language in documents supplied by the contractor' s bid response.

Vendor Contact: Scott Kinzer, Vice President, Business Development
Phone: 425-868-2910 i
Cellular: 425-870-3260

Fax: 425-868-2910

E-Mail: scott.kinzer@hfit.com

THIS IS THE FIRST RENEWAL OF THE CONTRACT AS AMENDED. (06/25/2014 ked)

: .. Unit of Unit Extended
S Deseription Quantity Measure Price Price

31 DISEASE MANAGEMENT 1,862,871.0700 $ 1.0000 1,862,871.07
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

32 GAPSIN CARE 255,000.0000 $ 1.0000 255,000.00
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

33 BIOMETRICS 318,920.0000 $ 1.0000 318,920.00
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

34 REPORTING 152,975.0000 $ 1.0000 152,975.00
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

35 HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT 131,800.0000 $ 1.0000 131,800.00
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15

36 HEALTH ADVISING/COACHING- 718,080.0000 $ 1.0000 718,080.00
PHONE/SEMINARS
WELLNESS OPTIONS FY14-15
Total Order 3,439,646.07

4
BUYER INITIALS
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STATE OF NEBRASKA SERVICE CONTRACT AWARD S 16t Floar

Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

OR
P.O. Box 94847
PAGE ORDER DATE Linooin. Nebraska 685094847
10F 4 | 03/27/09 Telephone: (402) 471-2401
BUSINESS UNIT ! BUYER Fax: (402) 471-2089
65080008 i RUTH GRAY CONTRACT NUMBER

VENDOR NUMBER: 1850215 ' 38349 04
VENDOR ADDRESS:

HEALTH FITNESS CORPORATION
1650 W 82ND ST FL 11
MINNEAPOLIS MN 55431-1419

AN AWARD HAS BEEN MADE TO THE VENDOR/CONTRACTOR NAMED ABOVE FOR THE SERVICES AS LISTED BELOW FOR THE

PERIOD:
APRIL 01, 2009 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2014

THIS CONTRACT IS NOT AN EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT TO FURNISH THE SERVICES SHOWN BELOW, AND DOES NOT PRECLUDE
THE PURCHASE OF SIMILAR SERVICES FROM OTHER SOURCES.

THE STATE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO EXTEND THE PERIOD OF THIS CONTRACT BEYOND THE TERMINATION DATE WHEN
MUTUALLY AGREEABLE TO THE VENDOR/CONTRACTOR AND THE STATE OF NEBRASKA.

QOriginal/Bid Document 2787 Z1

Contract to provide a Wellness Program for Nebraska State Employees for a pericd effective April 1, 2009
through June 30, 2014, with the option to renew for two (2) addlt:onal one {1) year periods as mutually agreed
upon by all partles

The contract shall incorporate the following previously submatted documents

. Contract Award; )

. Any Contract Amendments in order of significance;

. Any Request for Proposal Addenda and/for Amendments to mclude Questions and Answers;
. The original RFP document; . .

. The signed Request for Proposal form; and
. The Contractor's Proposal.

DN BWN =

CONTACT: Scott Kinzer, Vice President, Business Development _' ;
PHONE: 425-868-2910 G
CELLULAR: 425-870-3260

FAX: 425-868-2910

EMAIL: scott.kinzer@hfit.com

' e TN Unitof Unit Extended

Line Descripton: -~ . .' Qty - Measure . .. Price Price
1 Implemeritation B SR ST 34250 EEEE > B 1;'0000 34,250.00

W_,e'l'lness Options FY09-10

2 Health Risk Assessment S U t2aa30 0§ 10000 124430.00
Woellness Options FY09-10
3 Health Advising/Coaching- 403915 $ 1.0000 403,915.00

MATERIEL ADMINIS T RATTIN 7




STATE OF NEBRASKA SseRrvVICE CONTRACT AWARD
I

PAGE ORDER DATE
20F4 03/27/09
BUSINESS UNIT BUYER
65080008 RUTH GRAY
VENDOR NUMBER: 1850215
Unit of
Line Description Qty Measure
Phone/Seminars
Weliness Options FY09-10
4 Disease Management 1335514.28 $
Wellness Options FY09-10
5 Gaps in Care 238680 %
Wellness Options FY08-10
6 Reporting 144300 $
Wellness Options FY09-10 o
7 Health Risk Assessment 124430 $
Wellness Options FY10-11 ' i
8  Heaith Advising/Coaching- i é58265 $
Phone/Seminars S
Weillness Options FY10-11
9  Disease Management | 147225406 §
Weliness Options FY10-11 P
10 Gaps in Care i 238680 $
Wellness Options FY10-11 e
11 Biometrics at :2'51:30:0 $
Weliness Opti.(;ns,;lz?:h 0—11 “ ‘ o
i ’ ©ogadz0

12 Reporting =~ :
"1 Wellness Options FY10-11

3° . Hoalth Risk Assessment

Wellness Options FY1 1-1'2

14 Health Advising/Coaching-
Phone/Seminars

Wellness Options FY11-12

15 Disease Management

673900

1592389.99

$

State Purchasing Bureau
301 Centennial Mail South, 1st Floor
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508
OR
P.O. Box 94847
Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847
Telephone: (402) 471-2401
Faxc (402) 471-2089

CONTRACT NUMBER

38349 04

Unit Extended
Price Price
1.0000 1,335,514.28
1.0000 238,680.00
1.0000 144,300.00
1.0000 124,430.00
1.0000 658,265.00
1.0000 1,472,254.06
1.0000 238,680.00
1.0000 261,800.00

144,300.00

"-'5124,430.00

1.0000 673,900.00
1.0000 1,592,389.99

LG

BUYER INITIALS



STATE OF NEBRASKA servICE CONTRACT AWARD
e

PAGE ORDER DATE
30F4 03/27/09
BUSINESS UNIT BUYER
65080008 RUTH GRAY
VENDOR NUMBER: 1850215
Unit of
Line Description Qty Measure

Wellness Options FY11-12

16 Gaps in Care 238680 $
Woellness Options FY11-12

17 Biometrics 289200 $
Wellness Options FY11-12

18 Reporting 144300 $
Wellness Options FY11-12

19 Health Risk Assessment 128020 $
Wellness Options FY12-13 _

20 Healih Advising/Coaching- . 714850 $
Phone/Seminars :2

Wellness Options FY12-13

21 Disease Management 21722329.02 $
Wellness Options FY12-13 -

22 Gaps in Care 7 246840 $
Wellness Options FY12-13 : : _

23 Biometrics : 3_@94:00 $
Wellness Options FY12-13 | _ 4: : |

24 Reporting (& - . L 148550 - $o

~ Wellness Q}gﬁt.ions' FY12—1 3 o o L
25 - Health Risk Assessment 131800,

26

p WEIInESSOptlonsFY13_14 :

' Heaith Advising/Coaching-:

Phone/Seminars

Wellness Options FY13-14

27

Disease Management

Wellness Cptions FY13-14

1862871.07

C7isos0

State Purchasing Bureau
301 Centennial Mail South, 1st Floer
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508
OR
P.0. Box 94847
Lincaln, Nebraska 68509-4847
Telephone: (402) 471-2401
Fax: (402) 471-2089

CONTRACT NUMBER

38349 04

Unit Extended
Price Price
1.0000 238,680.00
1.0000 299,200.00
1.0000 144,300.00
1.0000 128,020.00
1.0000 714,850.00
1.0000 1,722,329.02
1.0000 246,840.00
1.0000 309,400.00

1.0000 148,550.00

. 131,800.00

©1.0000 718,080.00

1.0000 1,862,871.07

£6
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STATE OF NEBRASKA SERVICE CONTRACT AWARD S Coaneang Bureal - Floor

Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

OR
PAGE ORDER DATE P.O. Box 94847
Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847
4Q0F 4 03/27/09 Telephone: (402) 471-2401
BUSINESS UNIT BUYER Fax: (402) 471-2089
65080008 RUTH GRAY CONTRACT NUMBER
VENDCOR NUMBER: 1850215 38348 04

Unit of Unit Extended
Line Description Qty Measure Price Price
28 Gaps in Care 255000 $ 1.0000 255,000.00
Wellness Options FY13-14
29 Biometrics 318920 5 1.0000 318,920.00

Wellness Options FY13-14

30 Reporting 152975 $ 1.0000 152,975.00
Weilness Options FY13-14

Total Order 14,963,353.42

BUYER INITIALS



Request for Proposal Number 2787 Z1
Contract Number 38349 O4
Proposal Opening: February 20, 2009

In accordance with Nebraska Revised Statutes 884.712.05(3), the following material(s) has not
been included due to it being marked proprietary.

Health Fitness Corporation

Section IV. — Item D, Question 5

Technical Proposal — Corporate Overview, Item H
Exhibit 1 — Disaster Recovery Plan

Exhibit 4 — HA Participant Profile

Exhibit 6 — Coach/Participant Interactions

Exhibit 8 — Sample Preventative Care and Gaps in Care Messages
Exhibit 10 — Integration Diagram

Exhibit 11 — INSIGHT Health Assessment

Exhibit 12 — Worksite Screening Overview

10. Exhibit 13 — Established Marketing Campaigns

1. Exhibit 14 — Standard Health Management Reports

12. Exhibit 15 — Results Calculator and ROI Analysis Report
13. Exhibit 18 — Sample Implementation Plan

14. Exhibit 19 — HealthFitness Team Biographies

15. Exhibit 20 — Health Management Plan

CoNOoORWN =

In accordance with Federal U.S. Copyright Law Title 17 U.S.C. Section 101 et seq., Title 18
U.S.C. 2319, the following material(s) has not been included due to them being copyrighted.

Health Fitness Corporation

Table of Contents

Section lll. Terms and Conditions

Certificate of Insurance

Disaster Recovery Plan

Section IV. Project Description and Scope of Work

Technical Proposal

Cost Proposal Requirements

Pricing/Fee Footnotes: Assumptions

Form A Bidder Contact Sheet

10. Exhibit 2 — eHealth Platform Overview

1. Exhibit 3 — eHealth Configurations

12. Exhibit 5 — INSIGHT Health Assessment Scientific Validity References
13. Exhibit 7 — HealthFitness Program brochures

14. Exhibit 9 — Disease Management Condition/Health Coaching Model
15. Exhibit 16 — eHealth Eligibility File Requirements

16. Exhibit 17 — HealthFitness eHealth Security

17. Exhibit 17 — Data Privacy Policies and Procedures

CoNoORLNMA



Empowered
- Results

Response to Request for Proposal

RFP#278771

Wellness Program for Nebraska State Employees
Prepared for State of Nebraska (State Purchasing Bureau)
February 19, 2009

sx HealthFithess.

Empowered.Results.
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This section has been removed
due to copyright.

Certain materials are not being provided because they are copyrighted
per U.S. Copyright Law Title 17 U.S.C §§ 101 et seq.,: However,
documents may be viewed at 1526 K Street, Suite 130, Lincoln, NE
68508 between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, except
state holidays.




ll. Terms and Conditions




This section has been removed
due to copyright.

Certain materials are not being provided because they are copyrighted
per U.S. Copyright Law Title 17 U.S.C §§ 101 et seq.,: However,
documents may be viewed at 1526 K Street, Suite 130, Lincoln, NE
68508 between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, except
state holidays.




Certificate of Insurance




This section has been removed
due to copyright.

Certain materials are not being provided because they are copyrighted
per U.S. Copyright Law Title 17 U.S.C §§ 101 et seq.,: However,
documents may be viewed at 1526 K Street, Suite 130, Lincoln, NE
68508 between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, except
state holidays.




Disaster Recovery Plan




This section has been removed
due to copyright.

Certain materials are not being provided because they are copyrighted
per U.S. Copyright Law Title 17 U.S.C §§ 101 et seq.,: However,
documents may be viewed at 1526 K Street, Suite 130, Lincoln, NE
68508 between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, except
state holidays.

|




IV. Project Descr/Scope of Work




This section has been removed
due to copyright.

Certain materials are not being provided because they are copyrighted
per U.S. Copyright Law Title 17 U.S.C §§ 101 et seq.,: However,
documents may be viewed at 1526 K Street, Suite 130, Lincoln, NE
68508 between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, except
state holidays.




Technical ,_u«ouowm_




This section has been removed
due to copyright.

Certain materials are not being provided because they are copyrighted
per U.S. Copyright Law Title 17 U.S.C §§ 101 et seq.,: However,
documents may be viewed at 1526 K Street, Suite 130, Lincoln, NE
68508 between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, except
state holidays.




Cost Proposai




This section has been removed
due to copyright.

Certain materials are not being provided because they are copyrighted
per U.S. Copyright Law Title 17 U.S.C §§ 101 et seq.,: However,
documents may be viewed at 1526 K Street, Suite 130, Lincoln, NE
68508 between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, except
state holidays.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

Health Fitness Corporation, a Minnesota corporation (also referred to as “we,” “us,” “our,” the “Company,” or
“Health Fitness™), is a leading provider of population health improvement services and programs to corporations,
hospitals, communities and universities located in the United States and Canada. We currently manage 231
corporate fitness center sites, 170 corporate health management sites and 97 unstaffed health management

programs.

We provide staffing services as well as a comprehensive menu of programs, products and consulting services
within our Health Management and Fitness Management business segments. Our broad suite of services enables
our clients' employees to live healthier lives, and our clients to control rising healthcare costs, through participation
in our assessment, education, coaching, physical activity, weight management and wellness program services,
which can be offered as follows: (i) through on-site fitness centers we manage; (ii) remotely via the web and; (iii)
through telephonic health coaching.

You may contact us at our executive offices at 1650 West 82™ Street, Suite 1100, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55431,
telephone number (952) 831-6830. We maintain an internet website at www.hfit.com.

BUSINESS MODEL

Major corporations, hospitals and universities invest in fitness centers and health improvement programs for several
reasons. First, it is widely understood that healthier employees are more productive, experience reduced levels of
stress and are absent from work less often due to illness. At the same time, companies are struggling to deal with
the rising cost of employee healthcare, which has historically increased at double-digit rates. According to a recent
government report, U.S. spending on prescription drugs, hospital care and other health services is expected to
double to $4.1 trillion over the next decade, up from $2.1 trillion in 2006. This dramatic increase in expected
healthcare costs is primarily attributed to an aging population and poor lifestyle choices relating to diet and
exercise. Many companies realize that they may be able to decrease the financial burden of employee healthcare
and lost productivity by making health improvement programs a strategic business priority. We believe the
services we offer will help employees make better lifestyle behavior choices, thus improving their health, in
addition to helping companies decrease the rate of spending on employee healthcare costs.

To capitalize on the growth opportunities within the employer marketplace, we organized our business into two
segments: Fitness Management Services and Health Management Services. Within each of these business
segments, we provide two types of service: (i) Staffing Services, and (ii) Program and Consulting Services. Our
decision to move to segment reporting was based on (i) the evolution of our Health Management segment, and
management’s belief that the future growth of our Company may depend on our Health Management segment; (ii)
management’s belief that total revenue and gross profit from our Health Management segment may outpace the
total revenue and gross profit from our legacy Fitness Management segment; (iii) management has invested
significant resources to hire additional service and account management staff to handle the growth we have
experienced, and expect to experience in the future; (iv) management has invested, and expects to continue
investing resources to enhance the functionality of our web-based software system to appeal to a wider range of
current and new customers for both of our operating segments, and (v) on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis, we
manage the performance of our business by reviewing internally-generated financial reports that detail revenue and
gross profit results for each segment.



Following is a description of the services we offer within each segment:

Fitness Management Services

The Fitness Management segment of our business involves the management of fitness centers that have been
developed and equipped by corporations and other organizations for their employees. Historically, corporations
developed these fitness centers as a way to attract and retain productive employees. More recently, these same
corporations have come to realize that a fitness center can play an integral role in modifying unhealthy lifestyle
behaviors and improving work productivity.

In terms of size, we believe we are the largest provider of corporate fitness center management services in the
United States. Currently, we manage 231 corporate sites, including two sites located in Canada, all of which
accounted for approximately 61% and 66% of our 2007 and 2006 revenue, respectively. From a sales perspective,
we generally obtain new corporate customers by submitting a proposal, which answers specific questions regarding
our management philosophies and pricing structures.

Our Fitness Management segment derives its revenue from the following services:

Staffing Services. We have agreements with corporations and other organizations to staff and manage fitness
centers they have developed for use by their employees. We derive revenue from these services through the
reimbursement of staff costs, including wages, taxes and benefits, and reimbursement of our costs to provide
liability insurance to protect our customers against injury claims. We also receive a management fee to cover the
cost of regional and corporate support services. Costs of revenue are comprised of staff wages, employer taxes and
employee benefits, in addition to fitness center operating expenses we may contractually agree to pay.

In 2007, 2006 and 2005, revenue from our Fitness Management staffing services accounted for 56.8%, 62.4% and
69.6%, respectively, of total consolidated revenue.

Program and Consulting Services. At many of our managed fitness centers, we generate additional revenue from
members through the delivery of fee-for-service fitness and wellness program services. These services primarily
include personal training, weight loss programs, seminars, special classes and massage therapy. Costs of revenue
are comprised of commissions we pay our staff for selling and delivering these program services, in addition to the
cost of inventory when products are sold in connection with a service.

Within our fitness management consulting practice, companies that are planning new fitness centers may employ us
to develop floor plans and interior design plans, select and source fitness equipment and design fitness programs.
For companies that desire to develop a commercial fitness center, we can perform a comprehensive analysis of
market potential for the center. Services can include demographic analysis, market analysis, and multiple-year
financial business plan development.

In 2007, 2006 and 2005, revenue from our Fitness Management program and consulting services accounted for
3.8%, 4.0% and 4.4%, respectively, of total consolidated revenue.

Health Management Services

The Health Management segment of our business involves the delivery of services to help corporations and other
organizations assess the health characteristics of their employees. We also provide health education services to
employees dealing with multiple health risks to improve their lifestyle behaviors.

This segment of our business has experienced the fastest rate of growth, with 2007 revenue growing approximately
29% over 2006, and 2006 revenue growing approximately 49% over 2005. This growth is attributed to our past
and recent investments to strategically enhance this segment, which has improved our ability to meet the increasing
market demand for health improvement services, as well as meet the increasing needs of our customers. Currently,
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we manage 170 corporate health management sites and 97 unstaffed health management programs, which
accounted for approximately 39% and 34% of our 2007 and 2006 revenue, respectively. In this segment, we
generally obtain new corporate customers by submitting a proposal, which answers specific questions regarding our
management philosophies and pricing structures.

Our Health Management segment derives its revenue from the following services:

Staffing Services. We have agreements with corporations and other organizations to staff and manage the delivery
of health promotion programs, lifestyle coaching services, and injury prevention and treatment services. These
relationships may or may not involve the management of an on-site fitness center. We derive revenue from these
services through the reimbursement of staff costs, including wages, taxes and benefits, and reimbursement of our
cost to provide liability insurance to protect our customers against injury claims. We also receive a management
fee to cover the cost of regional and corporate support services. Costs of revenue are comprised of staff wages,
employer taxes and employee benefits, in addition to operating expenses we may contractually agree to pay.

In 2007, 2006 and 2005, revenue from our Health Management staffing services accounted for 22.6%, 21.5% and
22.3%, respectively, of total consolidated revenue.

Program and Consulting Services. We offer a comprehensive menu of products and services to assess the health
risks of our customer’s employees, and manage specific health risks by delivering programs to educate and coach
participants to improve lifestyle behaviors. We derive program revenue from participant fees we charge for our e-
Health platform; paper and web-based health risk assessments; biometric screenings to assess blood profiles and
body composition; and face-to-face, web-based and telephonic health coaching services. We also derive revenue
from data collection and reporting services as it relates to the demonstration of program effectiveness. Revenue
from these program services are generally paid by our corporate customer, although they may ask their employees
to share in the cost. Our costs of revenue for these services are mainly comprised of supply expenses and the direct
cost of staff wages, taxes and benefits.

Within our health management consulting practice, we provide corporations and other organizations with a
comprehensive analysis of the effectiveness of employee health improvement programs, with a focus on
demonstrating a return on investment. We also provide a suite of occupational health consulting services, including
injury prevention program design, work-hardening programs, injury treatment, return-to-work programs and
regulatory compliance consulting.

In 2007, 2006 and 2005, revenue from our Health Management program and consulting services accounted for
16.7%, 12.1% and 3.7%, respectively, of total consolidated revenue.

CONTRACT DURATION

In each of our business segments, the duration of staffing and program service agreements may widely vary, from
those that are month-to-month, to those that have a term of five years. A typical staffing services contract carries a
term of three years, with revenue recognized upon delivery of service. Contract duration for program and
consulting services generally ranges from month-to-month up to three years, depending on the scope of services to
be delivered. Revenues for these services are recognized upon delivery of service.




SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

We assess and manage the performance of each business segment by reviewing internally-generated reports that
detail revenue and gross profit results for each of our customer sites. This information is used to formulate plans
regarding the future prospects of our business, and aids in our determination of how we will invest our resources to
ensure we achieve our future revenue and profitability targets.

The following table provides an analysis of business segment revenue and gross profit for each of the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
Revenue
Fitness Management Services
Staffing Services $39,747,239 $39,670,546 $38,226,444
Program and Consulting Services 2,679,881 2,574,463 2,392,272
42,427,120 42,245,009 40,618,716
Health Management Services
Staffing Services 15,819,481 13,669,201 12,267,973
Program and Consulting Services 11,711,450 7,664,330 2,055,516
27,530,931 21,333,531 14,323,489
Total Revenue
Staffing Services 55,566,720 53,339,747 50,494,417
Program and Consulting Services 14,391,331 10,238,793 4,447,788
$69,958,051 $63,578,540 $54,942,205
Gross Profit
Fitness Management Services
Staffing Services $8,643,280 $8,861,829 $8,772,194
Program and Consulting Services 1,155,217 1,129,585 810,401
9,798,497 9,991,414 9,582,595
Health Management Services
Staffing Services 3,974,348 3,399,875 3,499,117
Program and Consulting Services 5,868,032 4,239,295 735,462
9,842,380 7,639,170 4,234,579
Total Gross Profit
Staffing Services 12,617,628 12,261,704 12,271,311
Program and Consulting Services 7,023,249 5,368,880 1,545,863
$19,640,877 $17,630,584 $13,817,174

With respect to segment asset allocation in accordance with SFAS 131, management believes the Company
does not have assets that are related solely to each segment, except for the segmentation of goodwill for annual
impairment testing, and thus has not allocated assets to our reportable segments for the following reasons:

a.

The Company is a service business that depends heavily on the joint efforts of our staff to operate and
grow each segment of our business.

We do not maintain a large asset infrastructure. The tangible and intangible assets we do own,
including the web-based software system we acquired from HealthCalc, are deployed across both
segments of our business to generate segment revenue and gross profit results.

Our future growth plans involve a tighter integration between our Fitness and Health Management
segments, resulting in opportunities to cross-sell our fitness and health management services to existing
customers within each segment. It is difficult to ascertain which assets are responsible for segment
results.

We do not separate assets into our reportable segments for internal accounting and reporting purposes.
Management believes an arbitrary allocation of assets to each reportable segment would not result in
meaningful information about our business.




GROWTH STRATEGY

In the long-term, we believe that we can enhance our position as the leading integrator of fitness and health
management services for corporations and other large organizations. Key elements of our growth strategy include:

e Pursue both aggressive organic growth and strategic opportunities in our Health Management business
segment. We believe the market for population health management programs will continue to grow.

e Pursue new customers in our Fitness Management business segment to expand market share. As the largest
provider of corporate fitness management services, we believe we can continue to add new customers, and
sell additional fitness services to our current customers. However, this segment operates in a mature
market, and price competition is common.

e Maximize opportunities to sell our Fitness Management customers on adopting the services we offer in our
integrated Health Management model.

e Pursue strategic opportunities that provide operational capabilities and long-term financial value.

We intend to continue investing in our Health Management business segment commensurate with the addition of
new business, including investments in people, systems and infrastructure in order to enhance our ability to scale,
gain greater cost efficiencies and provide a broader base of services.

OPERATIONS

In our Fitness Management segment, we have one Vice President of Account Services, who has management
responsibility for all of our geographical regions in the United States. Each region is managed by a Regional Vice
President, who is responsible for fitness center and wellness program staffing, service quality, financial
performance, client relationships and the introduction of new service capabilities to our customers.

In our Health Management segment, we have one Vice President of Account Services, who manages all activities
related to our health management customers. We also have Regional Vice Presidents who are directly responsible
for program implementation, service delivery, financial performance and client relationships.

The Vice President of each segment reports to a Senior Vice President of Account Services, who in turn reports
directly to our Chief Operations Officer. These two positions have primary operational management responsibility
for our entire business.

Our corporate office provides centralized administrative support, including accounting and finance, human
resources and payroll, information technology systems, sales and marketing, and executive management functions,
including the offices of the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer, who also retains responsibility as

our head of sales.

All expenses related to the operating areas noted above are contained in the Operating Expenses section of our
Statements of Operations contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

SALES AND MARKETING

We market our services to corporations, members of the fitness centers we manage and to individuals eligible to
participate in their corporate health improvement program. Our sales force actively pursues new corporate
customers for each segment of our business, which spans a wide variety of industries. Our sales force is primarily
responsible for identifying potential corporate customers and sales lead partners, and managing the overall sales
process. Our corporate marketing department supports the marketing needs of our sales function, in addition to
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developing point of sale materials for fitness center programs and collateral materials designed to solicit
participation in a health improvement program.

SEASONALITY

In our Fitness Management segment, we do not experience any seasonal fluctuations in the realization of new
business, or recognition of revenue. In our Health Management business segment, we may experience seasonal
fluctuations in the realization of new business, which will generally be timed with the start of a client’s benefit plan
year. We have also found that the early stage of certain health management engagements result in a higher rate of
revenue recognition due to the delivery of on-site biometric screening services. Thereafter, revenue will decrease
to a lower level until we deliver a second phase of biometric screening services to assess health improvement,
which is generally one year after the initial phase of screenings.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

All research and development activities pertaining to the maintenance of our e-Health technology platform, as well
as activities leading up to establishing technological feasibility for significant e-Health platform enhancements, are
expensed as incurred.

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP

We had one customer that provided 9.8%, 10.3% and 11.9% of our total revenue in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. For this customer, we provide fitness center management and employee wellness administration
services for approximately 50 locations. The agreement with this customer was recently renewed and expires on
December 31, 2009, and will automatically renew for successive one year periods unless either party delivers
written notice at least 90 days prior to termination. We believe that our relationship with this customer is good.

COMPETITION

Within the business-to-business fitness management services industry, there are relatively few national competitors.
However, virtually all markets are home to regional providers that manage several sites within their geographic
areas. The principal method of competition among fitness management service providers is price, and our target
client base has generally been price-sensitive. With our national presence and almost 30 years of history,
management belicves that we are recognized as a leading provider of corporate fitness management services, that
we have a cost-effective business model, and that we are well positioned to compete in this industry.

Within the business-to-business health management services industry, there has been a trend toward consolidation
as companies establish a better position to compete for the growth that is expected in this industry. Disease
management and managed care companies have made acquisitions of health management companies within the past
twenty-four months. To effectively compete with these organizations, which are larger and have access to more
resources, we have made considerable investments into the development of our corporate health management
business model. Our December 2005 acquisition of HealthCalc.Net, Inc. and the development of our web-based
and telephonic health coaching services have enabled us to more effectively compete with these larger companies.
With additional strategic investments to augment our current capabilities, we believe we can build a sustainable
competitive advantage in order to compete for new business opportunities against these larger competitors.




PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

We have three registered trademarks, “Insight”®, “It Pays To Be Healthy”® and “Live For Life”® that are used in
connection with the sale and delivery of our fitness and health management services. We do not have any other
significant proprietary rights.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Management believes there is no significant government regulation which materially limits our ability to provide
fitness and health management services to our corporate, hospital, community and university-based clients.
Although our occupational health, health risk assessment and health coaching services, in addition to the group
health plan we sponsor for our employees, are subject to the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, we do not believe that these regulations have a material impact on our
activities.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS

We provide services to companies located in Canada through our wholly-owned subsidiary Health Fitness
Corporation of Canada, Inc. Revenue recognized from our Canadian customers totaled approximately $241,000,
$259,300 and $277,600 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Although we invoice
these customers in their local currency, we do not believe there is a risk of material loss due to foreign currency
translation.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2007, we had 878 full-time and 2,931 part-time and on-call employees, of which 117 were
employed at our corporate, divisional and regional offices. The remainder is primarily engaged in providing our
staffing and programs services to our Fitness and Health Management customers. Management believes our
relationship with employees is good.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or as referred to herein as the SEC, including annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and other reports from time to time. We are an electronic
filer and the SEC maintains an Internet site at www.sec.gov that contains the reports, proxy, information statements
and other information filed electronically. The public may read and copy any materials filed by us with the SEC at
the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The public may also obtain
information from the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, we maintain at
our website (www.hfit.com), and make available free of charge, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable
after such information is filed electronically with the SEC. The information provided on our website is not a part of
this report, and is therefore not incorporated by reference unless such information is otherwise specifically
referenced elsewhere in this report.

OUTLOOK AND TRENDS

Within our Health Management business segment, the high cost of employee health care and lost employee
productivity has become a key concern for many corporations. According to published reports, annual health care
costs are expected to continue to increase at double digit rates for the next several years due to a number of factors,
including an aging workforce, unhealthy populations entering the workforce and obesity-related medical conditions
due to poor nutrition and a lack of exercise. We believe that, as part of a broader strategy to reduce health care
costs and lost productivity, many companies will be interested in addressing the health needs of employees, and
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their dependents and retirees, and will also desire to implement specific strategies to help “at-risk” individuals. We
believe that we can provide the products, services, expertise and personnel to effectively meet this need.

Within our Fitness Management segment, recessionary pressures in recent years have negatively affected the
corporate landscape, which has negatively affected the prices we offer to induce renewal of customer agreements,
and to obtain new customers. Although we believe that price competition will not materially affect results of
operations, we believe that price competition will continue for the foreseeable future. In addition, we have
customers that operate in industries that are experiencing negative financial and competitive pressures.
Specifically, in 2007 we experienced the termination of fitness management services at a large automotive
company. Although we believe that the loss of this business will not materially affect our results of operations,
additional large contract terminations from customers operating in a troubled industry may have a material adverse
effect on our results of operation.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The foregoing discussion in this Item 1 and the discussion contained in Item 7 of this Form 10-K contain various
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Forward-looking statements are based on current
expectations or beliefs concerning future events. Such statements can be identified by the use of terminology such
as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “could,” “possible,” “plan,” “project,” “will,”
“forecast” and similar words or expressions. Our forward-looking statements generally relate to growth strategies,
demand for our services, financial results, marketing efforts, competitive conditions and cash requirements.
Although it is not possible to foresee all of the factors that may cause actual results to differ from our forward-
looking statements, such factors include, among others, the risk factors that follow. However, investors are
cautioned that all forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties.

We may not be able to implement our growth strategy successfully. Our growth strategy is based on becoming the
leading integrator of fitness and health management services for corporations and other large organizations. The
key elements of our strategy are to pursue growth in our Health Management business segment, pursue new
customers in our Fitness Management business segment, sell our Fitness Management customers on adopting the
services we offer in our integrated Health Management model, and pursue strategic opportunities that provide
operational and financial value. Our ability to implement each of these elements depends largely upon our ability
to make strategic investments in our Health Management business segment to fund this growth, and the success of
those investments. If we do not have sufficient resources to make the necessary investments, or do not successfully
make these investments, our growth strategy will be adversely affected and we may not be able to increase our
revenues or profitability. Similarly, if we are unable to implement any of the elements of our growth strategy, our
growth may be adversely affected.

We may experience difficulty managing growth, including attracting qualified staff. We have experienced
substantial growth during the past few years, both organically and by acquisition. Our ability to grow in the future
will depend on a number of factors, including the ability to obtain new customers, expand existing customer
relationships, develop additional fitness and health improvement programs and services and hire and train qualified
staff. We may experience difficulty in attracting and retaining qualified staff in various markets to meet growth
opportunities. Further, in order to attract qualified staff, we may be required to pay higher salaries and enhance
benefits in more competitive markets, which may result in a material adverse effect on our results of operation and
financial condition. Sustaining growth may require us to sell our services at lower prices to remain competitive,
which may result in a material adverse effect on our results of operation and financial condition. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to manage expanding operations effectively or that we will be able to maintain or
accelerate our growth, and any failure to do so may result in a material adverse effect on our results of operation
and financial condition.

We may not be able to successfully cross-sell our health management programs to our fitness management
customers. A part of our growth strategy involves continuing and expanding our efforts to sell health management
services to our fitness management customers. Our cross-selling efforts may not be successful since our experience
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indicates that some current customers have different internal departments involved with procuring fitness
management services, on the one hand, and health management services, on the other hand. As a result, we may be
required to establish new relationships with personnel within our customers, which will limit the potential benefit of
established relationships we have developed. We may also be required to overcome different purchasing
requirements and standards to the extent they vary within internal departments of our customers. We may
experience similar difficulties in cross-selling all of our services to foreign operations of our domestic customers. If
we experience significant limitations as a result of the foregoing circumstances, or any other circumstances, we may
not be able to increase our revenues or profitability to the extent we anticipate.

The timing of new and lost staffing service contracts may not be indicative of trends in our business or of future
quarterly financial results. We evaluate our business, in part, by reviewing trends in our financial performance.
We believe an important indicator of our outlook is revenue to be derived from fitness and health management
service contracts we secure with customers. Fitness and health management service contracts are often long-term
contracts (i.e., 3 to 5 years), automatically renew on an annual basis and generally require 30 to 60 days notice to
terminate in order to avoid the automatic renewal provision. Revenue from new contracts often is not recognized
for a period of 90 to 180 days after proposal acceptance due to lead times necessary to execute a contract and hire
staff to begin providing services. Since termination notice periods are considerably less than the time it takes to
begin servicing new contracts, the revenue lost in a reporting period may significantly exceed the revenue gained
from new contracts.

Because of these timing differences, management generally does not view changes in quarterly revenue, whether
sequential or as compared to prior quarter changes, to be indicative of its outlook or trends in our business or to be
reflective of revenue expected in succeeding quarters. Rather, management generally evaluates revenue trends in
our fitness and health management services business based upon 12 to 18-month periods since we believe this helps
to minimize the timing impact from new and terminated contracts. Management cautions investors not to place
undue reliance upon fluctuations in quarterly revenue viewed in isolation from revenue information over longer
periods of time (e.g., comparative trailing 12-month information), and to not view quarterly revenue as necessarily
being indicative of our outlook or results to be expected in future quarters.

We are dependent on maintaining our relationships with third party partners to provide programs and services.
Our growth strategy depends in part upon continuous development and improvement of attractive and effective
fitness and health management programs and services. Our failure to anticipate trends or to successfully develop,
improve or implement such programs or services may have a material adverse effect on our results of operation and
financial condition. We currently contract with certain third party partners to provide a portion of such programs
and services and anticipate that this will continue to be the case. If any of such third party partners no longer makes
these programs and services available to us, there is no assurance that we would be able to replace such third-party
partner programs and services, and if we could not do so, our ability to pursue our growth strategies would be

seriously compromised.

Failure to renew existing customer contracts could have a negative effect on our financial condition and results
of operations. The majority of our contracts are with large corporations for the management of on-site fitness
centers and corporate wellness programs. While the specific terms of such agreements vary, some contracts are
subject to early termination by the corporate customer without cause. Although we have a history of consistent
contract renewals, there can be no assurance that future renewals will be secured. The early termination or non-
renewal of corporate contracts may have a material adverse effect on our results of operation and financial

condition.

Our financial results are subject to discretionary spending of our customers. Our revenue, expenses and net
income are subject to general economic conditions. A significant portion of our revenue is derived from companies
who historically have reduced their expenditures for on-site fitness management services during economic
downturns. Should the economy weaken, or experience more significant recessionary pressures, corporate
customers may reduce or eliminate their expenditures for on-site fitness center management services, and
prospective customers may not commit resources to such services. Also, should the size of a customer’s workforce
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be reduced, we may have to reduce the number of staff assigned to manage a customer’s fitness center. These
factors may have a material adverse effect on our results of operation and financial condition.

We operate within a highly competitive market against formidable companies. We compete for new and existing
corporate customers in a highly fragmented and competitive market. Management believes that our ability to
compete successfully depends on a number of factors, including quality and depth of service, locational
convenience and cost. The market for on-site fitness center management services is price-sensitive, and the health
management market is dominated by competitors that are larger and have more resources and experience. From
time to time, our competitors in either or both of the fitness management and health management markets may put
us at a disadvantage by proposing a substantially lower price than us. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to compete successfully against current and future competitors, or that competitive pressures faced by us will
not have a material adverse effect on our results of operation and financial condition.

We have implemented, on a limited basis, a business model for managing corporate fitness centers on a cost-
neutral or for-profit basis. We have, on a limited basis, implemented a model of managing corporate fitness centers
on a cost-neutral or for-profit basis. In connection with this business model, we have complete responsibility to
generate and account for all fitness center revenues, which are recognized as we provide services. From the
revenue we recognize and collect, we pay for all expenses to operate the fitness center. We derive our management
fee revenue from the profits of the fitness center. The application of this business model may require us to fund
operating losses until enough memberships are sold, and other revenue sources are generated in order to achieve
profitability. We believe it may be necessary to fund operating losses from this type of business model for up to
twenty-four months before the fitness center achieves profitability. Currently, existing contracts representing this
business model do not present a material risk or represent a material contribution to our results of operation.
However, there is no assurance that the number and scope of such contracts will not become material in the future
or that we will be able to manage such centers profitably or to fund losses for these centers until profitability is

achieved.

Failure to identify acquisition opportunities may limit our growth. An important part of our growth has been the
acquisition of complementary businesses. We may choose to continue this strategy in the future. Management’s
identification of suitable acquisition candidates involves risks inherent in assessing the value, strengths,
weaknesses, overall risks and profitability of acquisition candidates. Management may be unable to identify
suitable acquisition candidates. If we do not make suitable acquisitions, we may find it more difficult to realize
growth objectives and to enhance shareholder value.

Future acquisitions may be dilutive to shareholders, cause us to incur additional indebtedness and large one-
time expenses or create intangible assets that could result in significant amortization expense. If we spend
significant funds or incur additional debt, our ability to obtain necessary financing may decline and we may become
more vulnerable to economic downturns and competitive pressures. Management cannot guarantee that we will be
able to successfully complete any future acquisitions, that we will be able to finance acquisitions or that we will
realize any anticipated benefits from completed acquisitions.

We may not realize the anticipated benefits of acquisitions we complete. On December 23, 2005, we acquired
HealthCalc.Net, Inc. In the future, we may acquire other businesses. The process of integrating new businesses

into our operations poses numerous risks, including:

e an inability to assimilate acquired operations, information systems and technology platforms, and internal
control systems and products;

e diversion of management’s attention;

e difficulties and uncertainties in transitioning business relationships from the acquired entity to us; and
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e the loss of key employees of acquired companies.

If we are unsuccessful in integrating other future acquisitions into our operations, we might not realize all of the
anticipated benefits of such acquisitions. In such instances, our acquisitions might not be accretive to our earnings,
the costs of such acquisitions may otherwise outweigh the benefits and the market price of our common stock might
decline.

The loss of any of our key employees could have a material adverse effect on our performance and results of
operations. Our success is highly dependent on the efforts, abilities and continued services of its executive
officers, including Gregg Lehman, Ph.D., our President and Chief Executive Officer, Wesley Winnekins, our Chief
Financial Officer, and other key employees. The loss of any of the executive officers or key employees may have a
material adverse effect on our results of operation and financial condition. We also believe that our future success
will depend on our ability to attract, motivate and retain highly-skilled corporate, regional and site-based personnel.
Although historically we have been successful in retaining the services of our senior management, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to do so in the future.

Our results of operations could be adversely impacted by litigation. Because of the nature of our business, we
may be subject to claims and litigation alleging negligence or other grounds for liability arising from injuries or
other harm alleged by our clients’ employees. We have occasionally been named a defendant in claims relating to
accidents that occurred in the fitness centers we manage. There can be no assurance that additional claims will not
be filed, and that our insurance will be adequate to cover liabilities resulting from any claim.

The indemnification provisions in our management agreements with customers may obligate us to pay claims
that arise from our acts or omissions. A majority of our management agreements include a provision that
obligates us to indemnify and hold harmless the customer and their employees, officers and directors from any and
all claims, actions and/or suits (including attorneys’ fees) arising directly or indirectly from any act or omission of
the Company or its employees, officers or directors in connection with the operation of our business. A majority of
these management contracts also include a provision that obligates the customer to indemnify and hold us harmless
against all liabilities arising out of the acts or omissions of the customer, their employees and agents. We can make
no assurance that claims by our customers, or their employees, officers or directors, will not be made in the course

of operating our business.

Our insurance policies may not provide adequate coverage. We maintain the following types of insurance
policies: commercial general liability, professional liability, automobile liability, commercial property, employee
dishonesty, employment practices, directors and officers liability, workers compensation and excess umbrella
liability. The policies provide for a variety of coverages and are subject to various limitations, exclusions and
deductibles. While we believe our insurance policies are sufficient in amount and coverage for our current
operations, there can be no assurance that coverage will continue to be available in adequate amounts or at a
reasonable cost, and there can be no assurance that the insurance proceeds, if any, will cover the full extent of loss
resulting from any claims.

We could experience a potential depressive effect on the price of our common stock following the exercise and
sale of existing convertible securities. At December 31, 2007, the Company had outstanding stock options and
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 4,032,731 shares of common stock. The exercise of such outstanding stock
options and warrants, and the sale of the common stock acquired thereby, may have a material adverse effect on the
price of our common stock. In addition, the exercise of such outstanding stock options and warrants and sale of such
shares of our common stock could occur at a time when we might otherwise be able to obtain additional equity capital
on terms and conditions more favorable to us.

Our common stock is thinly traded, and subject to volatility. Our common stock is traded on the Over the Counter
Bulletin Board. Investing in OTC securities is speculative and carries a high degree of risk. Many OTC securities
are relatively illiquid, or “thinly traded,” which can enhance volatility in the share price and make it difficult for
investors to buy or sell without dramatically affecting the quoted price or may be unable to sell a position at a later
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date. As a result, an investor may find it more difficult to dispose of or obtain accurate quotations as to the price of
a share of our common stock. If limited trading in our stock continues, it may be difficult for investors to sell their
shares in the public market at any given time at prevailing prices.

Our share repurchase plan could affect our stock price and add volatility. On March 24, 2008, we announced
that our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $2.5 million of the Company’s outstanding common
stock. Any repurchases pursuant to this repurchase plan could affect our stock price and add volatility. The
repurchase plan is at our discretion, and thus there can be no assurance that any repurchases will actually be made
under the plan, nor is there any assurance that a sufficient number of shares of our common stock will be
repurchased to satisfy any market expectations. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that any repurchases
conducted under the plan will be made at the best possible price. The announcement and existence of the share
repurchase plan could also cause our stock price to be higher than it would be in the absence of such a plan and
could potentially reduce the market liquidity for our stock. Additionally, we are permitted to and could discontinue
our share repurchase plan at any time and any such discontinuation could cause the market price of our stock to

decline. ‘

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease approximately 28,000 square feet of commercial office space for our corporate headquarters in Bloomington,
Minnesota, mostly under a lease that expires in December 2012. Our monthly base rent for this office space is
approximately $31,000, plus taxes, insurance and other related operating costs. We also assumed a lease in connection
with our 2005 acquisition of HealthCalc for approximately 8,200 square feet of office space in Dallas, Texas, which
expires in December 2012. Our minimum monthly base rent for this space is approximately $14,000.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are, from time to time, subject to claims and suits arising in the ordinary course of business. Such claims have,
in the past, generally been covered by insurance. Management believes the resolution of other legal matters will
not have a material effect on our financial condition or results of operation, although no assurance can be given
with respect to the ultimate outcome of any such actions. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that our insurance
will be adequate to cover all liabilities that may arise out of claims brought against us.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

The information required by Item 10 relating to directors, our code of ethics, procedures for shareholder
recommendations of director nominees, the audit committee and compliance with Section 16 of the Exchange Act
is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Election of Directors”, “Corporate Governance” and
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” which appear in the Company’s definitive proxy
statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting.

The names, ages and positions of our executive officers are as follows:

Name Age Position
Gregg O. Lehman, Ph.D. 60 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
John E. Griffin 51 Chief Operations Officer
Wesley W. Winnekins 46 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Jeanne C. Crawford 50 Chief Human Resources Officer and Secretary
David T. Hurt 42 Vice President Account Services-Fitness Management
Katherine M. Hamlin - 41 Vice President Account Services-Health Management
Brian J. Gagne 45 Senior Vice President-Account Services
John F. Ellis 48 Chief Information Officer
James O. Reynolds, M.D. 60 Chief Medical Officer

Gregg O. Lehman, Ph.D. has been the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since January 1,
2007. From March 2006 through December 2006 Mr. Lehman served as Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer of INSPIRIS Inc., a Nashville-based specialty care management company that provides care to frail
Medicare Advantage members in long-term care facilities. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Lehman was President and
Chief Executive Officer of Gordian Health Solutions, Inc., a Nashville company dedicated to improving the health
of employees and dependents for employers and health plans. From 1998 to 2003, Mr. Lehman served as President
and Chief Executive Officer of the National Business Coalition on Health, a Washington D.C.-based movement of
ninety employer-led coalitions seeking better quality and more cost-effective healthcare for employees. Mr.
Lehman, who has a Ph.D. and an M.S. from Purdue University in Higher Education Administration, has been a
director of the Company since September 22, 2006.

John E. Griffin has been the Company’s Chief Operations Officer since February 1, 2008. Mr. Griffin is
responsible for overseeing the Company’s information technology, account services functions and operations,
excluding sales and marketing, finance, human resources and research, development and outcomes. Mr. Griffin has
served as President of The Meridian Group, a consulting company he founded that focused on health case financial
forecasting, budgeting, strategic planning and operational management, since August2006 and from
September 1995 to April 2003. From July 2007 through January 31, 2008, the Company engaged Mr. Griffin as an
operations consultant. From April 2003 to July 2006, Mr. Griffin served as Chief Operating Officer of Gordian
Health Solutions, a Nashville-headquartered population health management organization. Mr. Griffin has also
served as Chief Operating Officer of eClickMD, Inc. and Computer Sentry Software, Inc. Mr. Griffin holds a
Doctor of Jurisprudence from the University of Tennessee College of Law and a Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration with a major in accounting. He is a member of the Health Law Section of the Tennessee Bar

Association.

Wesley W. Winnekins has been Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company since February 2001. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Winnekins served as CFO (from January 2000 to February 2001) of University.com,
Inc., a privately held provider of on line learning solutions for corporations. From June 1995 to April 1999 he
served as CFO and vice president of operations for Reality Interactive, a publicly held developer of CD-ROMs and
online training for the corporate market. From June 1993 to May 1995 he served as controller and director of
operations for The Marsh, a Minneapolis-based health club, and was controller of the Greenwood Athletic Club in
Denver from October 1987 to January 1989. From May 1985 to October 1987, he served in the audit practice at
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Arthur Andersen. Mr. Winnekins received a Bachelor’s in Business Administration with a major in Accounting
from Iowa State University. He has passed the CPA exam.

Jeanne C. Crawford has been the Company's Chief Human Resources Officer (formerly titled Vice President -
Human Resources) since July 1998 and Secretary of the Company since February 2001. From July 1996 through
July 1998, Ms. Crawford served as a Human Resource consultant to the Company. From October 1991 through
September 1993, Ms. Crawford served as Vice President of Human Resources for RehabClinics, Inc. a publicly
held outpatient rehabilitation company. From May 1989 through October 1991, Ms. Crawford served as Director
of Human Resources for Greater Atlantic Health Service, an HMO and physicians medical group. From 1979
through 1989, Ms. Crawford served in various human resources management positions in both the retail and
publishing industries. Ms. Crawford graduated cum laude from Temple University with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration, and is a member of the Society for Human Resources Management.

David T. Hurt has served as Vice President Account Services-Fitness Management, where he is responsible for the
operation of accounts within the Company’s Fitness Management business segment, since April 2001. He directs
the overall development and management of Corporate, Hospital, Community and University fitness center
operations. Mr. Hurt has been active in the industry for more than 16 years. His experience in health and fitness
management began in 1988 with the Valley Wellness Center in Harrisonburg, Virginia. In recent years, he has been
involved in the successful development and management of several start-up fitness center projects ranging in size
from 45,000 — 150,000 square feet. Mr. Hurt is a graduate of James Madison University, where he received a
bachelor’s degree in sports management.

Katherine M. Hamlin was appointed as the Company’s Vice President Account Services-Health Management, in
March 2005. In this role, she directs the implementation and management of the Company’s Health Management
accounts. From December 2003 to March 2005, she served as the Company’s Vice President of Marketing.
Previously, Ms. Hamlin spent 15 years with the Health & Fitness Division of Johnson & Johnson Health Care
Systems Inc., a subsidiary of Johnson & Johnson, a business acquired by the Company. Ms. Hamlin was the
Director of Marketing Services and National Sales leading business expansion in the United States and
internationally, while exploring new markets. Ms. Hamlin serves on the board for International Council on Active
Aging (ICAA). She is a member of the Alliance for Work Life Progress (AWLP), National Business Group on
Health (NBGH), American Marketing Association (AMA) and Wellness Councils of America (WELCOA). Ms.
Hamlin has a bachelor’s degree in business with an emphasis in exercise science and sports management from the
University of Tennessee and a Master of Business Administration from East Tennessee State University.
Additionally, Katherine has completed advanced studies in organizational theory from Pepperdine University.

Brian J. Gagne has served as the Company’s Senior Vice President-Account Services since January 2008 and
served as National Vice President-Health Management from August 2006 to December 2007, and as Vice President
of Programs and Partnerships from December 2003 to August 2006. In his current role, he oversees the Company’s
Fitness and Health Management account services function. Mr. Gagne brings more than 16 years of health, fitness
and wellness experience in the corporate, commercial and medical fitness markets. Mr. Gagne joined the Company
after the acquisition of Johnson & Johnson Health Care Systems in December 2003. Prior to Health Fitness, he was
the Director of Integrated Behavioral Solutions and was responsible for the strategic design and development of
patient education programs and tools for the Johnson & Johnson Family of Companies. Mr. Gagne started his
career in 1987 as an Exercise Physiologist at Gottlieb Health & Fitness Center (GHFC). Mr. Gagne has a master’s
degree in exercise physiology and a bachelor’s degree in exercise science from the University of Illinois-Chicago.

John F. Ellis serves as the Company’s Chief Information Officer. Mr. Ellis is formerly a Founder and Chief
Executive Officer of HealthCale.Net, Inc., a company we acquired in December 2005. From January 1995 to
August 1999, Mr. Ellis held a position of Senior Specialist with Perot Systems, an information technology
consulting group. From November 1989 to January 1995, Mr. Ellis held a position of Vice President of
Information Technology at People Karch International, a health and fitness software development services firm.
Mr. Ellis holds a B.S. in Physical Education from The Citadel.
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James O. Reynolds, M.D., has been the Company’s Chief Medical Officer since February 1, 2008. Dr. Reynolds
has oversight of all clinical aspects of the Company’s programs and services and the Company’s Research,
Development and Outcomes division. Dr. Reynolds served from October 2005 to January 2008 as Principal and
Senior Healthcare Consultant for Mercer Human Resource Consulting, a global provider of consulting, outsourcing
and investment services, where he served as a senior clinical consultant on Mercer’s Health and Productivity
Management specialty practice. From September 2003 to October 2005, Dr. Reynolds served as Vice President and
Medical Director, Integrated Care Solutions, for CorSolutions Medical, Inc., a provider of disease management and
related services to employers, health plans and government-sponsored healthcare programs that was acquired by
Matria Healthcare, Inc. in 2005. From January 2001 to September 2003, Dr. Reynolds served as Co-Founder, Chief
Operating Officer and Executive Vice President of Health and Productivity Corporation of America, which was
acquired by CorSolutions in 2003. Prior to these positions, Dr. Reynolds served in various positions in the
healthcare industry, was in private practice as an internal medicine physician, and served as an Associate Professor
of Medicine at the University of Missouri Hospital and Clinics. Dr. Reynolds has Bachelor’s of Science from
Drury College, an M.D. degree from the University of Missouri and is board certified in internal medicine. He is an
active member of the American College of Physicians, American Medical Association, and the American College

of Environmental and Occupational Medicine.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Trading of the Company's common stock is conducted in the over-the-counter markets (often referred to as "pink
sheets") or on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “HFIT.”

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of low and high closing prices for the Company’s
common stock as reported by the OTC Bulletin Board.

Fiscal Year 2007: Low High
Fourth quarter $2.27 $3.20
Third quarter 2.80 3.20
Second quarter 242 3.16
First quarter 2.45 2.98
Fiscal Year 2006: Low High
Fourth quarter $1.52 $2.65
Third quarter 1.48 1.90
Second quarter 1.78 2.40
First quarter 2.18 2.75

The trading volume for the Company’s common shares has historically been relatively limited and a consistently
active trading market for our common stock may not occur on the OTC Bulletin Board or in the “pink sheets.”

On March 24, 2008, the published high and low sale prices for the Company’s common stock were $2.30 and $2.00

per share, respectively. On March 24, 2008, there were issued and outstanding 20,255,834 shares of common stock
of the Company held by 609 shareholders of record (not including shares held in street name).
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DIVIDENDS

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not intend to pay cash dividends
on our common stock in the foreseeable future. However, we have paid dividends to our preferred shareholders as
disclosed herein, but we currently have no preferred stock outstanding. The Company presently expects to retain
any earnings to finance the development and expansion of its business. The payment of dividends, if any, is subject
to the discretion of the Board of Directors, and will depend on the Company’s earnings, financial condition, capital
requirements and other relevant factors.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

For information on our equity compensation plans, refer to Item 12, "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters."

REPURCHASES
We did not engage in any repurchases of our Common Stock during the fourth quarter of 2007.

On March 24, 2008, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $2.5 million of
the Company’s outstanding common stock. Under the plan, the Company may repurchase shares on the open
market in amounts and at times deemed appropriate by management and in accordance with Rule 10b-18 and other
pertinent rules and regulations. Share repurchases will be funded by the Company’s available working capital. The
timing and amount of any such repurchases under the plan will depend on share price, economic and market
conditions and applicable corporate and regulatory requirements. The share repurchase plan is effective on April 1,
2008 and will continue for a period of six months, subject to the Company’s right to announce earlier termination
or an extension of the plan. The Company’s insiders will be prohibited from trading in the company’s stock
throughout the duration of the plan. The plan does not require the Company to repurchase a specific number of
shares, and may be modified, suspended, or discontinued at any time.

SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

There were no unregistered sales of the Company’s equity securities during the fourth quarter or year ended
December 31, 2007 that were not previously disclosed on a Form 8-K.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The data given below as of and for each of the five years in the period ended December 31, 2007, has been derived
from the Company’s Audited Consolidated Financial Statements. In order to understand the effect of accounting
policies and material uncertainties that could affect our presentation of financial information, such data should be
read in conjunction with the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included under Item
8 to this Form 10-K and in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operation included under Item 7 to this Form 10-K.

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA (in
thousands except per share amounts):
REVENUE $ 69,958 $ 63,579 $ 54,942 $ 52,455 $31,479
NET EARNINGS 910 3,025 1,345 1,674 633
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) APPLICABLE TO
COMMON SHAREHOLDERS 910 1,352 1,204 1,588 27)
NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:

Basic $0.05 $0.07 $0.09 $0.13 $0.00

Diluted $0.04 $0.03 $0.08 $0.10 $0.00
BALANCE SHEET DATA (in thousands):
TOTAL ASSETS $35,962 $32,318 $27,585 $20,934 $19,808
LONG-TERM DEBT - -- -- $1,613 $4,350
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $26,478 $23,798 $10,488 $11,484 $9,732
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together
with our financial statements and the related notes appearing under Item 8. Some of the information contained in
this discussion and analysis or set forth elsewhere in this annual report, including information with respect to our
plans and strategy for our business and expected financial results, includes forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. You should review the “Risk Factors” under Item 14 for a discussion of important factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking
statements contained in the following discussion and analysis.

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

As a leading provider of population health improvement services and programs to corporations, hospitals,
communities and universities located in the United States and Canada, we currently manage 231 corporate fitness
center sites, 170 corporate health management sites and 97 unstaffed health management programs.

We provide staffing services as well as a comprehensive menu of programs, products and consulting services
within our Health Management and Fitness Management business segments. Our broad suite of services enables
our clients' employees to live healthier lives, and our clients to control rising healthcare costs, through participation
in our assessment, education, coaching, physical activity, weight management and wellness program services,
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which can be offered as follows: (i) through on-site fitness centers we manage; (ii) remotely via the web; and (iii)
through telephonic health coaching,

In December 2005, we acquired all of the capital stock of HealthCalc.Net, Inc. (“HealthCalc”), a leading provider
of web-based fitness, health management and wellness programs to corporations, health care organizations,
physicians and athletic/fitness centers. We spent most of 2006 integrating HealthCalc’s capabilities into the service
offerings we provide in our two business segments. The discussion of HealthCalc’s financial contribution to our
results of operation for 2006, compared to 2005, is limited to HealthCalc’s 2006 contribution to our revenue and
expense growth. In 2006, the revenue and gross profit derived from HealthCalc’s customers was classified as
Health Management segment activity, as the revenue and gross profit derived from Fitness Management segment
customers of HealthCalc was immaterial.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. Preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related
disclosures. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates and judgments. By their nature, these
estimates and judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Management bases its estimates and
judgments on historical experience, observation of trends in the industry, information provided by customers and
other outside sources and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or

conditions.

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. Critical
accounting policies are those that we believe are both important to the portrayal of our financial condition and
results and are based on estimates that are reasonably likely to change or require our most difficult, subjective or
complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently
uncertain. Management believes the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements:

Segment Reporting — Effective with the fourth quarter of 2006, we made a decision to move to segment reporting
based upon (i) the evolution of our Health Management segment, and management’s belief that the future growth of
our Company may depend on our Health Management segment; (ii) management’s belief that total revenue and
gross profit from our Health Management segment may outpace the total revenue and gross profit from our legacy
Fitness Management segment; (iii) management has invested significant resources to hire additional service and
account management staff to handle the growth we have experienced, and expect to experience in the future; (iv)
management has invested, and expects to continue investing resources to enhance the functionality of our web-
based software system to appeal to a wider range of current and new customers for both of our operating segments,
and (v) on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis, we manage the performance of our business by reviewing
internally-generated financial reports that detail revenue and gross profit results for each segment. As a result of
these factors, we follow FASB Statement No. 131, Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information (“SFAS 131”), for the two segments of our business: Fitness Management and Health Management.
We do not believe that our decision to follow FASB Statement No. 131 will impact the presentation of our financial
information or the ability to compare our financial results to prior periods.

Revenue Recognition — Revenue is recognized at the time the service is provided to the customer. For annual
contracts, monthly amounts are recognized ratably over the term of the contract. Certain services provided to the
customer may vary on a periodic basis. The revenues relating to these services are estimated in the month that the
service is performed. Amounts received from, or billed to customers in advance of providing services are treated as
deferred revenue and recognized when the services are provided. We have contracts with third-parties to provide
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ancillary services in connection with their fitness and wellness management services and programs. Under such
arrangements, the third-parties invoice and receive payments from us based on transactions with the ultimate
customer. We do not recognize revenues related to such transactions as the ultimate customer assumes the risk and
rewards of the contract and the amounts billed to the customer are either at cost or with a fixed markup.

Trade and Other Accounts Receivable — Trade and other accounts receivable represent amounts due from compa-
nies and individuals for services and products. We grant credit to customers in the ordinary course of business. We
generally do not require collateral or any other security to support amounts due. Management performs ongoing
credit evaluations of customers. We maintain allowances for potential credit losses which, when realized, have
been within management’s expectations. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited
due to the large number of customers and their geographic dispersion.

Inventories — Inventories, which consist primarily of health management resource materials and supplies used in
our biometric screenings services, are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using average cost,
which approximates the first-in, first-out method.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price and related costs over the fair value of net assets of
businesses acquired. The carrying value of goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment on an annual
basis or when factors indicating impairment are present. We elected to complete the annual impairment test of
goodwill on December 31 of each year and determined that our goodwill relates to two reporting units for purposes
of impairment testing.

In connection with goodwill impairment testing as of December 31, 2006, and consistent with the guidance
provided in paragraphs 34 and 35 of SFAS 142, Accounting for Goodwill, we allocated our total goodwill of
$14,546,250 to our Fitness and Health Management business segments based upon the ratio of the estimated market
value for each segment to the total estimated market value for the entire company. In connection with this
allocation, 24.4%, or $3,549,285 of our total goodwill was allocated to our Fitness Management segment, and
75.6%, or $10,996,965 was allocated to our Health Management segment. This allocation of goodwill to each
segment will be the base amount that is subject to write-down should we determine that impairment exists in future

years.

Stock-Based Compensation — We maintain a stock option plan for the benefit of certain eligible employees and
directors of the Company. Commencing January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 123R, “Share Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), using the modified prospective method of adoption, which
requires all share-based payments, including grants of stock options, to be recognized in the income statement as an
operating expense, based on their fair values over the requisite service period. The compensation cost we record
for these awards is based on their fair value on the date of grant. The Company continues to use the Black Scholes
option-pricing model as its method for valuing stock options. The key assumptions for this valuation method
include the expected term of the option, stock price volatility, risk-free interest rate and dividend yield. Many of
these assumptions are judgmental and highly sensitive in the determination of compensation expense. Further
information on our share-based payments can be found in Note 8 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements under Item 8 in this Form 10-K.

Valuation of Derivative Instruments — In accordance with the interpretive guidance in EITF Issue No. 05-4, “The
Effect of a Liquidated Damages Clause on a Freestanding Financial Instrument Subject to EITF Issue No. 00-19,
“Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock”,
we originally valued warrants we issued in November 2005 in our financing transaction as a derivative liability.
We had to make certain periodic assumptions and estimates to value the derivative liability. Factors affecting the
amount of this liability included changes in our stock price, the computed volatility of our stock price and other
assumptions. The change in value is reflected in our statements of operations as non-cash income or expense.
Further information regarding our warrant valuation can be found in the section titled “Liquidity and Capital
Resources” and in our Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements under Item 8 in this Form 10-K.

22




Software Development Costs - We expense all costs of software development that we incur to establish
technological feasibility of an enhancement, including activities related to initial planning, functionality design,
health content sourcing and organization, technical performance requirements and assessing integration issues with
the overall software system. Accordingly, software development costs incurred subsequent to the determination of
technological feasibility are capitalized. Capitalization of costs ceases and amortization of capitalized software
development costs commences when the products are available for general release. We amortize our capitalized
software development costs using the straight-line method over the estimated economic life of the product, which is
generally three to five years.

Capitalized software development costs are stated at the lower of amortized cost or net realizable value.
Recoverability of these capitalized costs is determined by comparing the forecasted future revenues from the related
products, based on management’s best estimates using appropriate assumptions and projections at the time, to the
carrying amount of the capitalized software development costs. If the carrying value is determined not to be
recoverable from future revenues, an impairment loss is recognized equal to the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds the future revenues.

Income Taxes — The Company records income taxes in accordance with the liability method of accounting.
Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of
assets and liabilities and federal operating loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the
effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of the enactment. Tax benefits are recognized when
management believes the benefit is more likely than not to be sustained upon review from the relevant authorities.
If the Company were to record a liability for unrecognized tax benefits, interest and penalties would be recorded as
a component of income tax expense. We do not record a tax liability or benefit in connection with the change in
fair value of certain of our warrants. Income taxes are calculated based on management’s estimate of the
Company’s effective tax rate, which takes into consideration a federal tax rate of 34% and an effective state tax rate
of approximately 7%. This normal effective tax rate of 41% is less than the tax rate resulting from income tax
expense we recognized during the year ended December 31, 2007 due to the tax rate effects of compensation
expense for incentive stock options.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Revenue. Revenue increased $6,379,000 or 10.0%, to $69,958,000 for 2007, from $63,579,000 for 2006.

Of this growth in revenue, our Fitness Management segment grew $182,000, which includes growth of $77,000
from staffing services and $105,000 from program and consulting services. The growth in staffing revenue is due
to revenue from new 2007 contracts slightly outpacing revenue losses from terminated contracts. The revenue
growth for program and consulting services is primarily due to higher biometric screening and flu shot services at
our fitness center sites.

Our Health Management segment contributed total growth of $6,197,000, which includes growth of $2,150,000
from staffing services and growth of $4,047,000 from program and consulting services. Overall, the growth in
staffing revenue is attributable to new customers and the expansion of sales to existing customers. The increase in
program and consulting services, compared to last year, was primarily driven by an increase in biometric screening
services, health coaching services, flu shots and eHealth platform sales and customizations.

During the fourth quarter, we obtained six new customer commitments in our Health Management segment that
may realize incremental annualized revenue of approximately $1.3 million. In our Fitness Management segment,
we obtained one new customer commitment that may realize incremental annualized revenue of approximately $0.2
million. The $1.5 million total for potential new, incremental annualized revenue is offset by a potential annualized
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revenue loss of $2.1 million from fitness ($1.8 million) and health ($0.3 million) management contract
cancellations.

For 2007, we obtained 33 new customer commitments in our Health Management segment that may realize
incremental annualized revenue of approximately $8.4 million, which includes approximately $0.7 million of
potential annualized revenue from two existing fitness management customers. In our Fitness Management
segment, we obtained six new customer commitments, and received a commitment to expand our management
services for an existing customer, all of which may realize incremental annualized revenue of approximately $2.9
million. The $11.3 million combined total for this potential incremental annualized revenue will be offset by a
potential annualized revenue loss of $5.4 million, of which $5.1 million and $0.3 million is related to fitness and
health managements contract terminations, respectively. — Approximately $0.7 million of these contract
cancellations is due to our decision to not renew an underperforming fitness management contract.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $2,010,000, or 11.4%, to $19,641,000 for 2007, from $17,631,000 for 2006.

Of this increase in gross profit, our Fitness Management segment declined $193,000, which includes a decline of
$219,000 from staffing services and a slight increase of $26,000 from program and consulting services. This
decline in gross profit is primarily due to the gross profit loss attributable to 2007 staffing contract cancellations,
which had more favorable pricing than the new staffing contracts we secured during 2007.

Our Health Management segment contributed gross profit growth of $2,203,000, which includes growth of
$574,000 from staffing services and growth of $1,629,000 from program and consulting services. This growth in
gross profit is primarily due to the 29.1% health management revenue growth we experienced during 2007.

Total gross margin increased to 28.1%, from 27.7% for the same period last year. Gross margin for our Health
Management segment remained at 35.8% for 2007. This result is due to a gross margin increase for staffing
services, which grew to 25.1%, from 24.9% last year, and a gross margin decrease for programs and consulting
services, which fell to 50.1%, from 55.3% last year. The gross margin decrease for programs and consulting
services is primarily due to a higher level of unproductive staff time for biometric screening and health coaching
services during the fourth quarter. Also contributing to this gross margin decline were flu shots we delivered
during the fourth quarter, which contributed approximately $850,000 in revenue and no gross margin.

Gross margin for our Fitness Management segment fell to 23.1%, from 23.7% for 2006. This result is primarily
due to a gross margin decrease for staffing services, which fell to 21.7%, from 22.3%. This decline is primarily due
to a $300,000 workers compensation premium refund we received in the third quarter of 2006, lower pricing for our
new 2007 contracts, and gross margin loss due to the cancellation of a large automotive contract effective March
31, 2007. We also experienced a gross margin decline for programs and consulting services, which fell to 43.1%,
from 43.9%. This margin decrease is primarily due to lower participant fees for screening and flu shot services we
provided during the fourth quarter to various fitness center management customers.

Operating Expenses and Operating Income. Operating expenses increased $3,827,000 or 27.4%, to $17,781,000
for 2007, from $13,954,000 for 2006.

This increase is due to a $2,225,000, or 26.0% increase in salaries, and a $1,800,000, or 35.7% increase in other
selling, general and administrative expenses. These increases are primarily due to planned investments in
additional staff and other operating expenses within certain operating units, including Research, Development and
Outcomes, Marketing, Technology and Account Services. These expense increases were partially offset by a
$198,000 decrease in amortization expense related to intangibles acquired in a prior acquisition.

Operating margin declined to 2.7% for 2007, from 5.8% for 2006. This decrease is primarily due to planned
investments we made to strengthen our health management service capabilities to support our future growth plans.
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Other Income and Expense. Interest expense increased $28,000 to $36,000 for 2007, from $8,000 for 2006.
This increase was due to the use of our credit line to temporarily fund working capital needs during 2007.

The change in fair value of warrants was $0 for 2007, compared to $841,000 for 2006. This decrease is due to
elimination of liability accounting, in the second quarter of 2006, for the warrants we issued to investors in
connection with our 2005 PIPE financing. Refer to “Critical Accounting Policies”, Valuation of Derivative
Instruments, and the section titled “Liquidity and Capital Resources” contained under this Item 7 for further
discussion of the accounting for this equity transaction.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense decreased $589,000 to $906,000 for 2007, from $1,495,000 for 2006. The
decrease is primarily due to lower operating income in 2007 compared to 2006. Included in income tax expense for
2007 is an additional $99,400 of expense resulting from a change in estimated 2006 income taxes payable.

Our effective tax rate, which excludes the additional tax expense attributable to a change in estimated 2006 income
tax payable, was 44.4% of earnings before income taxes for 2007, compared to 40.6% for 2006, which excludes
from earnings before income taxes the $841,215 gain related to a change in fair value of warrants (see Note 2).
Compared to our normal effective tax rate of 41%, our current effective tax rate is higher due primarily to the non-
deductibility of compensation expense for incentive stock options, which added approximately 4.0% to our
effective tax rate for 2007.

Dividend and Deemed Dividend to Preferred Shareholders. There was no dividend or deemed dividend to
preferred shareholders for 2007, compared to a dividend and deemed dividend to preferred shareholders of $96,000
and $1,576,000, respectively, for 2006. This decrease is attributable to the conversion of our Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock to common stock on March 10, 2006. We do not expect to reduce earnings applicable to common
shareholders for dividends and deemed dividends to preferred shareholders in the upcoming year, since we no
longer have any preferred stock outstanding.

Net Earnings Applicable to Common Shareholders. As a result of the above, net earnings applicable to common
shareholders decreased $442,000 to $910,000 for 2007, from $1,352,000 for 2006. This decrease is attributed to
the operational investments we made during 2007 to strengthen our health management service capabilities.

Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Revenue. Revenue increased $8,636,000 or 15.7%, to $63,578,000 for 2006, from $54,942,000 for 2005.

Of this growth in revenue, our Fitness Management segment contributed total growth of $1,626,000, which
includes growth of $1,444,000 from Fitness Management staffing services and growth of $182,000 from Fitness

Management program services.

Our Health Management segment contributed total growth of $7,010,000, which includes $1,870,000 attributable to
HealthCalc, growth of $1,401,000 from Health Management staffing services and growth of $3,739,000 from

Health Management program services.

During 2006, we added a total of $8.2 million of potential annualized revenue from new contracts, and increases to
existing contracts, in our Health Management business segment. We also added a total of $3.8 million of potential
annualized revenue from new contracts, and increases to existing contracts, in our Fitness Management business
segment. The combined total for this potential annualized revenue is offset by a potential annualized revenue loss
of $2.1 million from 2006 contract cancellations.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $3,813,000, or 27.6%, to $17,630,000 for 2006, from $13,817,000 for 2005.
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Of this increase in gross profit, our Fitness Management segment contributed a total of $409,000, which includes
growth of $90,000 from Fitness Management staffing services and growth of $319,000 from Fitness Management
program services.

Our Health Management segment contributed total gross profit growth of $3,404,000, which includes $1,277,000
attributable to HealthCalc, a gross profit loss of $99,000 from Health Management staffing services and growth of
$2,226,000 from Health Management program services. The decrease in gross profit for Health Management
staffing services is due to pricing incentives to renew existing contracts, and the addition of new contracts with less
favorable pricing than our existing contracts.

As a percent of revenue, gross profit increased to 27.7%, from 25.1% for the same period last year. This increase is
predominantly driven by the increase in gross profit for our Health Management programs revenue, which
increased to 55.3% for 2006, from 35.8% for 2005. Gross profit for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
includes a $313,000 and $225,000 benefit, respectively, related to a refund of workers compensation premiums for
our 2005 and 2004 plan years. Excluding the effect of these premium refunds, gross profit as a percent of revenue
would be 27.2% and 24.7% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Operating Expenses and Operating Income. Operating expenses increased $3,651,000 or 35.4%, to $13,954,000
for 2006, from $10,303,000 for 2005. This increase is attributable to a $2,776,000 increase in salaries and a
$1,328,000 increase in other operating expenses. Of the increase in salaries, $338,000 is attributable to staff
additions we made to improve our fitness and health management contract management, $373,000 is attributable to
stock-based compensation, $1,268,000 is attributable to new staff from our acquisition of HealthCalc and $797,000
is attributable to staff added in our general corporate areas.

Of the increase in other operating expenses, $229,000 is attributable to higher travel and office expenses for our
contract management staff, $312,000 is attributable to HealthCalc and $787,000 is attributable to higher contract
services, legal fees and general office costs for our corporate office. These expense increases were offset by a
$453,000 decrease in amortization expense related to past acquisitions.

As a result of the previously discussed changes in gross profit and operating expenses, operating income increased
$162,000, or 4.6%, to $3,676,000 for 2006, from $3,514,000 for 2005.

Other Income and Expense. Interest expense decreased $18,000 to $8,000 for 2006, from $26,000 for 2005.
This decrease is attributable to lower charges related to the amortization of previously incurred debt issuance costs.

The change in fair value of warrants to a non-cash gain of $841,000 in 2006, from a non-cash loss of $634,000 for
2005, is attributable to a decrease in our stock price from 2005 to 2006. These non-cash amounts are related to
1,530,000 warrants we issued in connection with the sale of $10.2 million of our Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock in November 2005. Refer to “Critical Accounting Policies”, Valuation of Derivative Instruments, and the
section titled “Liquidity and Capital Resources” contained under this Item 7 for further discussion of the accounting

for this equity transaction.

Income Taxes. Current income tax expense decreased $24,000 to $1,495,000 for 2006, from $1,519,000 for 2005.
The decrease is primarily due to a 57.8% increase in earnings before income taxes, adjusted for changes in
permanent and temporary timing differences between book and tax balances for stock option expense, change in
fair value of warrants, depreciation and amortization, prepaid expenses and vacation accruals.

In 2006, we paid cash taxes of $1,503,000, compared to $672,000 for 2005. This increase is attributable to the full
utilization of our operating loss carryforwards.

Our effective tax rate decreased to 33.1% for 2006, compared to 53.0% for 2005. This decrease is primarily
attributable to the change in fair value of warrants between 2005 and 2006, and tax planning we finished in early

2006 to consolidate our state tax reporting obligations.
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Net Earnings. As a result of the above, net earnings for 2006 increased $1,680,000 to $3,025,000, compared to net
earnings of $1,345,000 for 2005.

Dividend and Deemed Dividend to Preferred Shareholders. Dividend to preferred shareholders decreased
$45,000 to $96,000, compared to $141,000 for 2005. Deemed dividends to preferred shareholders increased to
$1,576,000, from $0 for 2005. This decrease in dividends and the increase in deemed dividends to preferred
shareholders is attributable to the conversion of our Series B Convertible Preferred Stock to common stock on
March 10, 2006.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our working capital increased $2,669,000 to $8,460,000 for 2007, from $5,791,000 for 2006. This increase is largely
attributable to increases in cash, accounts receivable, inventory and a decrease in accrued acquisition earnout, which
were offset by an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

In addition to cash flows generated from operating activities, our other primary source of liquidity and working
capital is provided by a $7,500,000 Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (the “Wells Loan”). At our
option, the Wells Loan bears interest at prime, or the one-month LIBOR plus a margin of 2.25% to 2.75% based
upon our Senior Leverage Ratio (effective rate of 7.25% and 8.25% at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively).
The availability of the Wells Loan decreases $250,000 on the last day of each calendar quarter, beginning
September 30, 2003, and matures on June 30, 2009, as amended. Working capital advances from the Wells Loan
are based upon a percentage of our eligible accounts receivable, less any amounts previously drawn. The facility
provided maximum borrowing capacity of $3,250,000 and $4,000,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and no debt was outstanding on those dates. All borrowings are collateralized by substantially all of
our assets. At December 31, 2007, we were not in compliance with a financial covenant. Wells Fargo was made
aware of this noncompliance and has agreed to waive its default rights with respect to this breach. Wells Fargo has
also agreed to continue making capital advances available to us as new loan covenants are negotiated. This
noncompliance had no impact on our liquidity, capital resources or results of operations.

On November 14, 2005 (the “Effective Date™), in a Private Investment in Public Equity transaction (the “PIPE
Transaction”), we issued an aggregate of 1,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B
Stock™), together with warrants to purchase 1,530,000 shares of common stock at $2.40 per share, to a limited
number of accredited investors for aggregate gross proceeds of $10.2 million. After selling commissions and
expenses, we received net proceeds of approximately $9.4 million. The Series B Stock automatically converted
into 5,100,000 shares of our common stock on March 10, 2006, the date the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”) first declared effective a registration statement covering these shares. On the date of this conversion,
we recorded a $1,576,454 deemed dividend to preferred shareholders by recording a reduction to net earnings
applicable to common shareholders in the consolidated statement of operations for the quarter ended March 31,
2006, with a corresponding increase being recorded to additional paid in capital in the consolidated balance sheet as
of March 31, 2006. We used the proceeds from this PIPE Transaction to redeem our Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock and to fund the acquisition of HealthCalc.Net, Inc.

In accordance with the terms of the PIPE Transaction, we were required to file with the SEC, within sixty (60) days
from the Effective Date, a registration statement covering the common shares issued and issuable in the PIPE
Transaction. We were also required to cause the registration statement to be declared effective on or before the
expiration of one hundred twenty (120) days from the Effective Date. We would have been subject to liquidated
damages of one percent (1%) per month of the aggregate gross proceeds ($10,200,000), if we failed to meet these
date requirements. On March 10, 2006, the SEC declared effective our registration statement and, as a result, we
did not pay any liquidated damages for failure to meet the filing and effectiveness date requirements. We could
nevertheless be subject to the foregoing liquidated damages if we fail (subject to certain permitted circumstances) to
maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement. On June 15, 2006, we entered into an agreement with the
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accredited investors to amend the Registration Rights Agreement to cap the amount of liquidated damages we could
pay at 9% of the aggregate purchase price paid by each accredited investor.

The warrants, which were issued together with the Series B Stock, have a term of five years, and give the investors
the option to require us to repurchase the warrants for a purchase price, payable in cash within five (5) business
days after such request, equal to the Black Scholes value of any unexercised warrant shares, only if, while the
warrants are outstanding, any of the following change in control transactions occur: (i) we effect any merger or
consolidation, (ii) we effect any sale of all or substantially all of our assets, (iii) any tender offer or exchange offer
is completed whereby holders of our common stock are permitted to tender or exchange their shares for other
securities, cash or property, or (iv) we effect any reclassification of our common stock whereby it is effectively
converted into or exchanged for other securities, cash or property. On June 15, 2006, we entered into an agreement
with the accredited investors to amend the Warrant Agreement to give us the ability to repurchase the warrants, in
the case of a change in control transaction, using shares of stock, securities or assets, including cash.

Under EITF 00-19 “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a
Company’s Own Stock” (“EITF 00-19”), the fair value of the warrants issued under the PIPE Transaction were
previously reported as a liability due to the requirement to net-cash settle the transaction. There are two reasons for
this treatment: (i) there are liquidated damages, payable in cash, of 1% of the gross proceeds per month ($102,000)
should we fail to maintain effectiveness of the registration statement in accordance with the PIPE Transaction; and
(ii) our investors may put their warrants back to us for cash if we initiate a change in control that meets the
definition previously discussed. As a result of the amendments we structured with the accredited investors on June
15, 2006, we were allowed to account for the warrants as equity. As a result of this accounting change, we made a
final valuation of our warrant liability on June 15, 2006, which resulted in non-cash income of $406,694 for our
second quarter in 2006, and the remaining warrant liability of $1,369,674 was reclassified to additional paid in
capital. We are no longer required to revalue these warrants on a prospective basis.

On March 24, 2008, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $2.5 million of

the Company’s outstanding common stock. Under the plan, the Company may repurchase shares on the open
market in amounts and at times deemed appropriate by management and in accordance with Rule 10b-18 and other
securities and other rules and regulations. Share repurchases will be funded by the Company’s available working
capital. The timing and amount of any such repurchases under the plan will depend on share price, economic and
market conditions and applicable corporate and regulatory requirements. The share repurchase plan is effective on
April 1, 2008 and will continue for a period of six months, subject to the Company’s right to announce earlier
termination or an extension of the plan. The plan does not require the Company to repurchase a specific number of
shares, and may be modified, suspended, or discontinued at any time.

On a short and long-term basis, we believe that sources of capital to meet our obligations will be provided by cash

generated through operations and the Wells Loan. We also believe that our current and available resources will
enable us to finance our working capital needs without having to raise additional capital.
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The following table represents the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2007:

Payments Due By Period

Less Than More Than

Total 1 Year 1to3 Years 3to5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt obligations $-- $-- $-- $-- $--
Operating lease obligations $3,064,000  $651,000 $1,205,000  $1,208,000 $--

Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has significantly impacted our results of operations in any of the last three
completed fiscal years.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had no off-balance sheet arrangements or transactions with
unconsolidated, limited purpose entities. Refer to the footnotes to the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements contained herein for disclosure related to the Company’s “Commitments and Contingencies.”

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a "safe harbor" for forward-looking statements. Such
“forward-looking” information is included in this Form 10-K, including this Item 7, as well as in other materials
filed or to be filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (as well as information included
in oral statements or other written statements made or to be made by the Company).

Forward-looking statements include all statements based on future expectations and specifically include, among
other things, statements relating to management’s belief that the future growth of our Company may depend on our
Health Management segment, management’s belief that total revenue and gross profit from our Health Management
segment may outpace the total revenue and gross profit from our legacy Fitness Management segment,
management’s expectation that it will continue to invest resources to enhance the functionality of our web-based
software system, our belief that we can enhance our position as the leading integrator of fitness and health
management services for corporations and other large organizations, our belief that the market for population health
management programs will continue to grow, our believe that we can continue to add new customers and sell
additional fitness services to our current customers, our intent to invest in the Health Management business segment
commensurate with the addition of new business, our belief that we are well positioned to compete in the fitness
management services industry, our belief that we can build a sustainable competitive advantage in order to compete
for new business opportunities against larger competitors in the health management services industry, our belief
that many companies will be interested in addressing the health needs of employees and their dependents and
retirees and that we can provide the products, services, expertise and personnel to effectively meet this need, our
belief that price competition and the loss of a fitness management services contract with a large automotive
company will not materially affect results of operations, our belief that sources of capital to meet our obligations
will be provided by cash generated through operations and the Wells Loan, and our belief that our current and
available resources will enable us to finance our working capital needs without having to raise additional capital, as
well as statements regarding increasing revenue, improving margins, marketing efforts, competitive conditions, the
effect of price competition and changes to the economy, the sufficiency of our liquidity and capital resources, and
our share repurchase plan. In addition, the estimated annualized revenue value of our new and lost contracts is a
forward looking statement, which is based upon an estimate of the anticipated annualized revenue to be realized or
lost. Such information should be used only as an indication of the activity we have recently experienced in our two
business segments. These estimates, when considered together, should not be considered an indication of the total
net, incremental revenue growth we expect to generate in any year, as actual net growth may differ from these
estimates due to actual staffing levels, participation rates and contract duration, in addition to other revenue we may
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lose in the future due to contract termination. Any statements that are not based upon historical facts, including the
outcome of events that have not yet occurred and our expectations for future performance, are forward-looking
statements. The words “potential,” “believe,” “estimate, ? e

¢

” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “could,” “will,” “plan,”
“anticipate,” and similar words and expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such
statements are based upon the current beliefs and expectations of our management. Such forward-looking
information involves important risks and uncertainties that could significantly affect anticipated results in the future
and, accordingly, such results may differ from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by or on
behalf of the Company. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, our inability to deliver the
health management services demanded by major corporations and other clients, our inability to successfully cross-
sell health management services to our fitness management clients, our inability to successfully obtain new business
opportunities, our failure to have sufficient resources to make investments, our ability to make investments and
implement strategies successfully, continued delays in obtaining new commitments and implementing services, and
those matters identified and discussed in Item 1A of this Form 10-K under “Risk Factors.”

RECENTLY PASSED LEGISLATION

Sarbanes-Oxley. On July 30, 2002, President Bush signed into law the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, referred to
herein as the Act, which immediately impacts Securities and Exchange Commission registrants, public accounting
firms, lawyers and securities analysts. This legislation is the most comprehensive securities legislation since the
passage of the Securities Acts of 1933 and 1934. It has far reaching effects on the standards of integrity for
corporate management, board of directors, and executive management. We do not expect any material adverse
effect on our business as a result of the passage of this legislation. We were in compliance with the Act as of

December 31, 2007.

Refer to management’s certifications contained elsewhere in this report regarding our compliance with Sections 302
and 906 of the Act.

HIPAA. The Administrative Simplification provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
of 1996, referred to herein as HIPAA, require group health plans and health care providers who conduct certain
administrative and financial transactions electronically, referred to herein as Standard Transactions, to (a) comply
with a certain data format and coding standards when conducting electronic transactions; (b) use appropriate
technologies to protect the security and integrity of individually identifiable health information transmitted or
maintained in an electronic format; and (c) protect the privacy of patient health information. Our occupational
health, health risk assessment and health coaching services, in addition to the group health plan we sponsor for our
employees, are subject to HIPAA’s requirements. We are in compliance with HIPAA requirements for our affected
business segments. Our corporate, hospital, community and university-based fitness center management lines of
business are not subject to the requirements of HIPAA.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

We adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, on January 1,
2007. Previously, we had accounted for tax contingencies in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards 5, Accounting for Contingencies. As required by Interpretation 48, which clarifies Statement 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes, we recognize the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining
that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions
meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit
that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax
authority. At the adoption date, we applied Interpretation 48 to all tax positions for which the statute of limitations
remained open. As a result of the implementation of Interpretation 48, we recognized no liability for unrecognized
tax benefits, which would have been accounted for as a reduction to the January 1, 2007, balance of retained

earnings.
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We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various state, and Canadian jurisdictions. Tax
regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and regulations and
require significant judgment to apply. We completed US Federal (IRS) tax examinations for the 2005 tax year
during the past year. With few exceptions, we are no longer subject to US Federal or state and local tax
examinations by tax authorities for years before 2004. We have recorded no liability for unrecognized tax benefits
during the year. If we were to record a liability for unrecognized tax benefits, interest and penalties would be
recorded as a component of income tax expense.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” (“SFAS 157”), which is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and for interim periods within those years. This statement
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands the related disclosure
requirements. However, on December 14, 2007, the FASB issued proposed FSP FAS 157-b, which would delay
the effective date of SFAS 157 for all non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair
value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). This proposed FSP partially defers the
effective date of SFAS 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those
fiscal years for items within the scope of this FSP. Effective for 2008, we will adopt SFAS 157 except as it applies
to those non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities as noted in proposal FSP FAS 157-b. The partial adoption
of SFAS 157 will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operation or cash

flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities,” (“SFAS 159”) which permits entities to choose to measure many financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are
reported in earnings. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. We do not believe
that the adoption of SFAS 159 will have a material effect on our financial position or results of operation.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141(revised 2007), Business
Combinations (“SFAS 141R”). SFAS 141R will significantly change the accounting for business combinations in a
number of areas including the treatment of contingent consideration, contingencies, acquisition costs, IPR&D and
restructuring costs. In addition, under SFAS 141R, changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances and acquired
income tax uncertainties in a business combination after the measurement period will impact income tax expense.
SFAS 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 (our 2009 fiscal year). This statement
will impact us if we complete an acquisition after the effective date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160, Noncontrolling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 will
change the accounting and reporting for minority interests, which will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests
(NCI) and classified as a component of equity. This new consolidation method will significantly change the
accounting for transactions with minority interest holders. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008 (our 2009 fiscal year). We do not believe the adoption of SFAS 160 will have a material effect
on our consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We have no history of, nor do we anticipate in the future, investing in derivative financial instruments, derivative
commodity instruments or other such financial instruments. We invoice our Canadian customers in their local
currency, and such transactions are considered immaterial in relation to our total billings. As a result, the exposure
to foreign currency fluctuations and other market risks is not material.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related Consolidated
Statements of Operations, Stockholders’ Equity, and Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2007, and the notes thereto have been audited by Grant Thornton LLP, independent registered public
accounting firm.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Health Fitness Corporation
Minneapolis, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Health Fitness Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. Our audits
of the basic financial statements included the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item
15 (a)(2). These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Health Fitness Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the
Company changed its method of accounting for share-based payments to adopt Financial Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 123(R), Share-Based Payments.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 24, 2008
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HEALTH FITNESS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Trade and other accounts receivable, less allowances of $243,300 and $283,100
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other
Deferred tax assets
Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill
Software technology, less accumulated amortization of $795,100 and $370,200
Trademark, less accumulated amortization of $345,500 and $246,300
Other intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of $241,700 and $166,500
Deferred tax assets
Other

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade accounts payable
Accrued salaries, wages, and payroll taxes
Accrued acquisition earnout
Other accrued liabilities
Accrued self funded insurance
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 19,928,590 and
19,220,217 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated comprehensive income from foreign currency translation
Accumulated deficit

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2007 2006
$ 1,946,028 $ 987,465
14,686,879 12,404,856
569,458 326,065
226,891 375,824
406,367 217,476
17,835,623 14,311,686
1,400,570 767,675
14,546,250 14,509,469
1,734,920 1,658,575
147,561 246,809
287,334 362,528
- 437,010
9,807 24,597

$ 35,962,065

$ 32,318,349

$ 2,121,154 1,811,939
4,011,580 3,249,424
- 1,475,000
1,187,045 120,044
333,724 201,053
1,722,254 1,663,121
9,375,757 8,520,581
108,623 -
199,285 192,202
29,350,211 27,565,901
(56,413) (35,186)
(3,015,398) (3,925,149)
26,477,685 23,797,768

$ 35,962,065

$ 32,318,349




HEALTH FITNESS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

2007 2006 2005
REVENUE $ 69,958,051 63,578,540 $ 54,942,205
COSTS OF REVENUE 50,317,174 45,947,956 41,125,031
GROSS PROFIT 19,640,877 17,630,584 13,817,174
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 10,769,048 8,544,885 5,769,082
Other selling, general and administrative 6,840,621 5,040,709 3,712,429
Amortization of trademarks and other intangible assets 171,081 368,618 821,611
Total operating expenses 17,780,750 13,954,212 10,303,122
OPERATING INCOME 1,860,127 3,676,372 3,514,052
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest expense (35,771) (7,512) (25,965)
Change in fair value of warrants - 841,215 (634,435)
Other, net (8,627) 9,646 10,585
EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 1,815,729 4,519,721 2,864,237
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 905,978 1,495,184 1,518,946
NET EARNINGS 909,751 3,024,537 1,345,291
Deemed dividend to preferred shareholders - 1,576,454 -
Dividend to preferred shareholders - 96,410 140,890
NET EARNINGS APPLICABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $ 909,751 1,351,673 $ 1,204,401
NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:
Basic $ 0.05 $ 0.07 $ 0.09
Diluted 0.04 0.03 0.08
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING:
Basic 19,685,980 18,023,298 12,780,724
Diluted 20,593,112 18,772,675 16,929,636

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2005

Issuance of common stock through stock
purchase plan

Issuance of common stock for options

Issuance of common stock for acquisition

Issuance of common stock for warrants

Net repurchase of Series A preferred stock and
warrants

Payment of Series B preferred stock financing
costs

Reallocation of deferred financing costs

Dividend to preferred shareholders

Net earnings

Foreign currency translation

Comprehensive Income

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2005

Issuance of common stock through stock
purchase plan

Redemption of common stock for option
exercises

Issuance of common stock for options

Payment of Series B preferred stock financing
costs

Issuance of common stock for Series B
preferred stock

Reclassification of warrant liability

Issuance of common stock for board of directors
compensation

Stock option compensation

Deemed dividend to preferred shareholders

Dividend to preferred shareholders

Net earnings

Foreign currency translation

Comprehensive Income

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2006

Issuance of common stock through stock
purchase plan

Redemption of common stock for option
exercises

Issuance of common stock for option exercises

Issuance of common stock for executive
compensation

Redemption of common stock for executive
compensation

Issuance of common stock for accrued
acquisition earnout

Issuance of common stock for board of directors
compensation

Payment of Series B preferred stock financing
costs

Executive equity compensation program

Stock option compensation

Net earnings

Foreign currency translation

Comprehensive Income

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2007

Additional Accumulated Total
Common Stock Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’  Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Equity Income
12,582,170 $125,822 $17,836,675 $2,459 $(6,481,223) $11,483,733
89,227 892 162.116 - - 163,008
98,681 987 14,566 - - 15,553
847,281 8,473 1,991,527 - - 2,000,000
169,990 1,700 (1,700) - - -
- - (3,539,466) - - (3,539,466)
- - (813,021) - - (813,021)
. - (25,272) - - (25,272)
- - - - (140,890) (140,890)
- - - - 1,345,291 1,345,291 $1,345,291
- - - (1.214) - (1,214) (1.214)
$1,344,077
13,787,349  $ 137,874 § 15,625,425 $ 1,245  $ (5276,822) § 10,487,722
90,572 905 170,384 - - 171,289
(31,554) 315) (67,526) (67,841)
253,850 2,538 75,392 - - 77,930
(161,725) (161,725)
5,100,000 51,000 10,149,000 - - 10,200,000
1,369,674 1,369,674
20,000 200 31,800 - - 32,000
- - 373,477 - - 373,477
- - - - (1,576,454) (1,576,454)
. - - - (96,410) (96,410)
- - - - 3,024,537 3,024,537 $3,024,537
- - - (36.431) - (36,431) (36.431)
$2,988,106
19,220,217 § 192,202  § 27,565,901 $ (35,186) $ (3,925,149) $ 23,797,768
57,854 578 160,664 - - 161,242
(14,129) (141) (40,177) - - (40,318)
328,725 3,287 248,873 - - 252,160
50,000 500 109,917 - - 110,417
(16,667) (167) (41,968) - - (42,135)
262,590 2,626 734,874 - - 737,500
40,000 400 118,600 - - 119,000
- - (17,415) - - (17,415)
- - 53,097 - - 53,097
- - 457,845 - - 457,845
- - - - 909,751 909,751 $909,751
- - - (21.227) - (21,227) (21,227)
$888,524
19,928,590 199,285 § 29,350,211 § (56,413) $§ (3,015398) § 26,477,685

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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2007 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net earnings $909,751 $  3,024537 $§  1,345291
Adjustment to reconcile net earnings
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Common stock issued for Board of Directors compensation 119,000 32,000 -
Stock-based compensation 579,225 373,477 -
Depreciation and amortization 959,331 905,205 905,873
Warrant valuation adjustment - (841,215) 634,435
Deferred taxes 356,742 57,814 1,169,200
Loss on disposal of assets - - 1,897
Change in assets and liabilities, net of assets acquired:
Trade and other accounts receivable (2,282,023) (3,565,810) (554,637)
Inventory (243,393) (326,065) -
Prepaid expenses and other 148,933 133,449 (295,319)
Other assets 14,790 22,508 39,910
Trade accounts payable 287,985 1,088,382 (222,537)
Accrued liabilities and other 1,961,828 1,338,479 127,031
Deferred revenue 59,133 (205,325) (175.294)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,871,302 2,037,436 2,975,850
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (992,841) (588,180) (232,485)
Capitalized software development costs (501,285) (266,760) -
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (36,781) (1,589,780) (4,344,476)
Acquisition earnout payment (737,500) - -
Net cash payment made for acquisition - - (7,085)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,268,407) (2,444,720) (4,584,046)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under line of credit 22,042,206 - 13,899,950
Repayments under line of credit (22,042,206) - (15,512,709)
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock and warrants - - 9,386,979
Repurchase of equity securities - - (5,114,382)
Costs from the issuance of preferred stock (17,415) (161,725) -
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 161,242 171,288 163,008
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 211,841 10,091 15,553
Payment of Series B preferred stock dividend - (96.410) -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 355,668 (76.756) 2,838,399
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 958,563 (484,040) 1,230,203
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 987.465 1.471.,505 241,302
CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 1,946,028 $ 987,465 $ 1,471,505
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $31,295 $1,681 $30,366
Cash paid for taxes 348,650 1,502,987 672,147
Noncash investing and financing activities affecting cash flows:
Redemption of common stock for executive compensation (42,135) - -
Deemed dividend to preferred shareholders - (1,576,454) -
Dividend to preferred shareholders - - (140,890)
Common stock issued in business acquisition 737,500 - 2,000,000
Value of warrants issued to placement agents - - 114,191
Redemption of common stock (40,319) (67,841) -

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1.

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business — We provide fitness and health management services and programs to corporations, hospitals,
communities and universities located in the United States and Canada. Fitness and health management
services include the development, marketing and management of corporate, hospital, community and
university based fitness centers, worksite health promotion, injury prevention and work-injury management
consulting, and on-site physical therapy. Programs include fitness and health services for individual
customers, including health risk assessments, biometric screenings, nutrition and weight loss programs,
personal training, smoking cessation, massage therapy, back care and ergonomic injury prevention.

Segment Reporting — We reflect our business into two segments: Fitness Management and Health
Management. We made this decision based on the following factors: (i) the evolution of our Health
Management segment, and management’s belief that the future growth of our Company may depend on our
Health Management segment; (ii) management’s belief that total revenue and gross profit from our Health
Management segment may outpace the total revenue and gross profit from our legacy Fitness Management
segment; (iii) management has invested significant resources to hire additional service and account
management staff to handle the growth we have experienced, and expect to experience in the future; (iv)
management has invested, and expects to continue investing resources to enhance the functionality of our
web-based software system to appeal to a wider range of current and new customers for both of our
operating segments, and (v) on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis, we manage the performance of our
business by reviewing internally-generated financial reports that detail revenue and gross profit results for
each segment.

Management believes the Company does not have assets that are related solely to each segment, and thus
has not allocated assets to our reportable segments for the following reasons: (i) Health Fitness is a service
business that depends heavily on the joint efforts of our staff to operate and grow each segment of our
business, (ii) we do not require or maintain a large asset infrastructure. The tangible and intangible assets
we do own, including the web-based software system we acquired from HealthCalc, are deployed across
both segments of our business to generate segment revenue and gross profit results, (iii) our future growth
plans involve a tighter integration between our Fitness and Health Management segments, resulting in
significant opportunities to cross-sell our fitness and health management services to existing customers
within each segment, and (iv) management believes an arbitrary allocation of assets to each reportable
segment would not result in meaningful information regarding how management uses the Company’s assets
to grow the business.

Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of our Company and our
wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in

consolidation.

Cash — We maintain cash balances at several financial institutions, and at times, such balances exceed
insured limits. We have not experienced any losses in such accounts and we believe we are not exposed to
any significant credit risk on cash. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had cash of approximately
$59,400 and $36,900 (U.S. Dollars) in a Canadian bank account.

Trade and Other Accounts Receivable — Trade and other accounts receivable represent amounts due from
companies and individuals for services and products. We grant credit to customers in the ordinary course
of business, but generally do not require collateral or any other security to support amounts due.
Management performs ongoing credit evaluations of customers. Accounts receivable from sales of services
are typically due from customers within 30 to 90 days. Accounts outstanding longer than contractual
payment terms are considered past due. We determine our allowance for doubtful accounts by considering

39




HEALTH FITNESS CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

a number of factors, including the length of time trade accounts receivable are past due, our previous loss
history, the customer’s current ability to pay its obligation to us, and the condition of the general economy
and the industry as a whole. We write off accounts receivable when they become uncollectible, and
payments subsequently received on such receivable are credited to the allowance. Concentrations of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the large number of customers and their geographic
dispersion. We had bad debt expense of $30,000, $104,000 and $3,870 for the periods ended December
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Inventories — Inventories, which consist primarily of health management resource materials and supplies
used in our biometric screenings services, are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined
using average cost, which approximates the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are
computed using both straight-line and accelerated methods over the useful lives of the assets.

Software Development Costs - In connection with our December 23, 2005 acquisition of HealthCalc.Net,
Inc., the primary asset we acquired was a web-based software system that collects fitness and health related
data from, and delivers health related information to, employees of our corporate customers. We allocated
$1,762,000 of our total purchase price for HealthCalc to this web-based software system, which was the
fair value that resulted from an appraisal conducted by a third-party expert in accordance with SFAS 141,
Business Combinations. Commensurate with this acquisition, we also developed a strategic plan to
enhance this web-based software system to include additional electronic services that we could offer to our

customers.

Software development costs we incur subsequent to achieving technological feasibility are capitalized.
Capitalization of costs ceases and amortization of capitalized software development costs starts when the
products are available for general release. We amortize our capitalized software development costs using
the straight-line method over the estimated economic life of the product, which is generally three to five

years.

Capitalized software development costs are stated at the lower of amortized cost or net realizable value.
Recoverability of these capitalized costs is determined by comparing the forecasted future revenues from
the related products, based on management’s best estimates using appropriate assumptions and projections
at the time, to the carrying amount of the capitalized software development costs. If the carrying value is
determined not to be recoverable from future revenues, an impairment loss is recognized equal to the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the future revenues. We determined that no impairment loss
existed at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

During 2007 and 2006, we capitalized $501,000 and $267,000, respectively, of software development costs
related to enhancements we made to our eHealth platform. Such enhancements include the development of
a web-based health coaching program, a web-based point of sale system to electronically capture
transactions and improvements to our data management infrastructure with the platform. These capitalized
costs are captured within Software Technology, and will be amortized over the remaining economic life of
the eHealth platform, or five years, once the programs are placed into service. We expect to recover our
capitalized software development costs due to the growth of our business.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price and related costs over the fair value of net

assets of businesses acquired. The carrying value of goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment
on an annual basis or when factors indicating impairment are present. We elected to complete the annual
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impairment test of goodwill on December 31 of each year and determined that our goodwill relates to two
reporting units for purposes of impairment testing.

In connection with goodwill impairment testing as of December 31, 2006, and consistent with the guidance
provided in paragraphs 34 and 35 of SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangibles (SFAS 142), we allocated
our total goodwill of $14,546,250 to our Fitness and Health Management business segments based upon the
ratio of the estimated market value for each segment to the total estimated market value for the entire
company. In connection with this allocation, 24.4%, or $3,549,285 of our total goodwill was allocated to
our Fitness Management segment, and 75.6%, or $10,996,965 was allocated to our Health Management
segment. This initial allocation of goodwill to each segment will be the base amount that is subject to
write-down should we determine that impairment exists in future years.

In connection with goodwill impairment testing as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and consistent with the
guidance provided in paragraphs 32 and 33 of SFAS 142, we allocated our assets and liabilities of our
Fitness and Health Management business segments based upon the respective benefit received for each
segment. Assets were allocated based on the percentage of revenue generated as substantially all the assets
consisted of accounts receivable. Liabilities were allocated based on a percentage of cost of sales
contributed. The net asset allocation that resulted for each segment was then compared to an estimate of
market value for each segment.

Based upon the results of this test, we determined that no impairment of goodwill existed at December 31,
2007, 2006, and 2005.

Intangible Assets — Our intangible assets include customer contracts, trademarks and tradenames, software
and other intangible assets, all of which are amortized on a straight-line basis. Customer contracts
represent the fair value assigned to acquired customer contracts, which are amortized over the remaining
life of the contracts, approximately 13 to 23 months. Trademarks and tradenames represent the value
assigned to acquired trademarks and tradenames, and are amortized over a period of five years. Software
represents the value assigned to an acquired web-based software program, in addition to capitalized
development costs, and is amortized over a period of five years. Other intangible assets include the value
assigned to acquired customer lists, which is amortized over a period of six years, and deferred financing
costs, which are amortized over the term of the related credit agreement. Amortization expense for
intangible assets totaled $599,385, $736,878, and $828,355 for the twelve months ended December 31,
2007, 2006, and 2005.

Expected future amortization of intangible assets is as follows:

Years ending December 31

2008 $628,866
2009 591,616
2010 591,616
2011 194,232
Thereafter 96,435

Revenue Recognition — Revenue is recognized at the time the service is provided to the customer. We
determine our allowance for discounts by considering historical discount history and current payment
practices of our customers. For annual contracts, monthly amounts are recognized ratably over the term of
the contract. Certain services provided to the customer may vary on a periodic basis and are invoiced to the
customer in arrears. The revenues relating to theses services are estimated in the month that the service is
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performed. Accounts receivable related to estimated revenues were $2,245,497 and $1,644,211 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

We also provide services to companies located in Canada. Revenue recognized from our Canadian
customers totaled approximately $241,000, $259,300 and $277,600 for the periods ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005. Although we invoice these customers in their local currency, we do not believe there
is a risk of material loss due to foreign currency translation.

Amounts received from customers in advance of providing contracted services are treated as deferred
revenue and recognized when the services are provided. Accounts receivable relating to deferred revenue
were $1,720,146 and $1,663,121 at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

We have contracts with third-parties to provide ancillary services in connection with their fitness and
wellness management services and programs. Under such arrangements, the third-parties invoice and
receive payments from us based on transactions with the ultimate customer. We do not recognize revenues
related to such transactions as the ultimate customer assumes the risk and rewards of the contract and the
amounts billed to the customer are either at cost or with a fixed markup.

Advertising — The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense for the
periods ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $203,916, $159,646 and $119,364.

Comprehensive Income — Comprehensive income is net earnings plus certain other items that are recorded
directly to stockholders’ equity. Our comprehensive income represents net earnings adjusted for foreign
currency translation adjustments. Comprehensive income is disclosed in the consolidated statement of
stockholders’ equity.

Net Earnings Per Common Share — Basic net earnings per common share is computed by dividing net
earnings applicable to common shareholders by the number of basic weighted average common shares
outstanding. Diluted net earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings applicable to common
shareholders, plus dividends to preferred shareholders (net earnings), less the non-cash benefit related to a
change in fair value of warrants by the number of diluted weighted average common shares outstanding,
and common share equivalents relating to stock options, stock warrants and preferred stock, if dilutive.
Refer to Exhibit 11.0 attached hereto for a detail computation of earnings per share.

Common stock options and warrants to purchase 285,500, 2,393,681 and 517,163 shares of common stock
with weighted average exercise prices of $2.97, $2.51 and $2.78 were excluded from the 2007, 2006 and
2005 diluted computation because their exercise price exceeded the average trading price of our common
stock during each of the periods.

Stock-Based Compensation — We maintain a stock option plan for the benefit of certain eligible employees
and directors of the Company. Commencing January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 123R, “Share Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), using the modified prospective
method of adoption, which requires all share-based payments, including grants of stock options, to be
recognized in the income statement as an operating expense, based on their fair values over the requisite
service period. The compensation cost we record for these awards is based on their fair value on the date of
grant. The Company continues to use the Black Scholes option-pricing model as its method for valuing
stock options. The key assumptions for this valuation method include the expected term of the option, stock
price volatility, risk-free interest rate and dividend yield. Many of these assumptions are judgmental and
highly sensitive in the determination of compensation expense. Further information on our share-based
payments can be found in Note 8 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Fair Values of Financial Instruments - Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of our current
financial assets and liabilities approximates their fair values. The fair value of long-term obligations, if
recalculated based on current interest rates, would not significantly differ from the recorded amounts.

Valuation of Derivative Instruments — In accordance with the interpretive guidance in EITF Issue No. 05-4,
“The Effect of a Liquidated Damages Clause on a Freestanding Financial Instrument Subject to EITF Issue
No. 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a
Company’s Own Stock,” we valued warrants we issued in November 2005 in our financing transaction as a
derivative liability. We were required to make certain periodic assumptions and estimates to value the
derivative liability. Factors affecting the amount of this liability include changes in our stock price, the
computed volatility of our stock price and other assumptions. The change in value is reflected in our
statements of operations as non-cash income or expense, and the changes in the carrying value of
derivatives can have a material impact on our financial statements.

Income Taxes — The Company records income taxes in accordance with the liability method of accounting.
Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax basis
of assets and liabilities and federal operating loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of the enactment. Tax benefits are
recognized when management believes the benefit is more likely than not to be sustained upon review from
the relevant authorities. If the Company were to record a liability for unrecognized tax benefits, interest
and penalties would be recorded as a component of income tax expense. We do not record a tax liability or
benefit in connection with the change in fair value of certain of our warrants. Income taxes are calculated
based on management’s estimate of the Company’s effective tax rate, which takes into consideration a
federal tax rate of 34% and an effective state tax rate of approximately 7%. This normal effective tax rate
of 41% is less than the tax rate resulting from income tax expense we recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2007 due to the tax rate effects of compensation expense for incentive stock options.

Use of Estimates — Preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. FINANCING

On November 14, 2005 (the “Effective Date™), in a Private Investment in Public Equity transaction (the
“PIPE Transaction™), we issued an aggregate of 1,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the
“Series B Stock™), together with warrants to purchase 1,530,000 shares of common stock at $2.40 per
share, to a limited number of accredited investors for aggregate gross proceeds of $10.2 million. After
selling commissions and expenses, we received net proceeds of approximately $9.4 million. The Series B
Stock automatically converted into 5,100,000 shares of our common stock on March 10, 2006, the date the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) first declared effective a registration statement covering
these shares. On this date, we recorded a deemed dividend of $1,576,454 to these preferred shareholders.
This deemed dividend is a one-time, noncash adjustment related to the automatic conversion of these
preferred shares to common shares. We used the proceeds from this PIPE Transaction to redeem our Series
A Convertible Preferred Stock and to fund the acquisition of HealthCalc.Net, Inc.

In accordance with the terms of the PIPE Transaction, we were required to file with the SEC, within sixty
(60) days from the Effective Date, a registration statement covering the common shares issued and issuable
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in the PIPE Transaction. We were also required to cause the registration statement to be declared effective
on or before the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) days from the Effective Date. We would have been
subject to liquidated damages of one percent (1%) per month of the aggregate gross proceeds
(810,200,000), if we failed to meet these date requirements. On March 10, 2006, the SEC declared
effective our registration statement and, as a result, we did not pay any liquidated damages for failure to
meet the filing and effectiveness date requirements. We could nevertheless be subject to the foregoing
liquidated damages if we fail (subject to certain permitted circumstances) to maintain the effectiveness of
the registration statement. On June 15, 2006, we entered into an agreement with the accredited investors to
amend the Registration Rights Agreement to cap the amount of liquidated damages we could pay at 9% of
the aggregate purchase price paid by each accredited investor.

The warrants, which were issued together with the Series B Stock, have a term of five years, and give the
investors the option to require us to repurchase the warrants for a purchase price, payable in cash within
five (5) business days after such request, equal to the Black Scholes value of any unexercised warrant
shares, only if, while the warrants are outstanding, any of the following change in control transactions
occur: (i) we effect any merger or consolidation, (i) we effect any sale of all or substantially all of our
assets, (iii) any tender offer or exchange offer is completed whereby holders of our common stock are
permitted to tender or exchange their shares for other securities, cash or property, or (iv) we effect any
reclassification of our common stock whereby it is effectively converted into or exchanged for other
securities, cash or property. On June 15, 2006, we entered into an agreement with the accredited investors
to amend the Warrant Agreement to give us the ability to repurchase the warrants, in the case of a change in
control transaction, using shares of stock, securities or assets, including cash.

Under EITF 00-19 “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in,
a Company’s Own Stock” (EITF 00-19”), the fair value of the warrants issued under the PIPE Transaction
have been reported as a liability due to the requirement to net-cash settle the transaction. There are two
reasons for this treatment: (i) there are liquidated damages, payable in cash, of 1% of the gross proceeds per
month ($102,000) should we fail to maintain effectiveness of the registration statement in accordance with
the PIPE Transaction; and (ii) our investors may put their warrants back to us for cash if we initiate a
change in control that meets the definition previously discussed. As a result of the amendments we
structured with the accredited investors on June 15, 2006, we were allowed to account for the warrants as
equity. As a result of this accounting change, we made a final valuation of our warrant liability on June 15,
2006, which resulted in non-cash income of $406,694 for our second quarter in 2006, and the remaining
warrant liability of $1,369,674 was reclassified to additional paid in capital. We are no longer required to
revalue these warrants on a prospective basis.

3. BUSINESS ACQUISITION

In accordance with the Stock Purchase Agreement executed in connection with the acquisition of
HealthCalc.Net, Inc. on December 23, 2005, we agreed to pay the shareholders of HealthCalc, in cash,
stock or a combination thereof, a contingent earnout payment based upon the achievement of specific 2006
revenue objectives. At December 31, 2006, we recorded a liability of $1,475,000 in favor of the former
shareholders of HealthCalc in recognition of achieving certain 2006 revenue objectives, with the offset
reflected as an increase to goodwill. Management believes the increase to goodwill is consistent with the
guidance provided by EITF 95-8, Accounting for Contingent Consideration Paid to the Shareholders of an
Acquired Enterprise in a Purchase Business Combination, which speaks to specific guidance dealing with
the events surrounding negotiation of the purchase price, factors involving reasons for developing a
contingent payment provision, the development of performance measures to determine the achievement of
the contingent earnout and the factors involving the terms of continuing employment of the former
shareholders of HealthCalc.
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On March 27, 2007, our Board of Directors determined that this earnout payment would be made by a cash
payment of $737,500 and the issuance of 262,590 shares of common stock, which was determined using an
average closing share price of $2.81 for the twenty-one trading days preceding the date of payment. We
made the cash payment on March 28, 2007 and issued the common stock effective on March 27, 2007.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following at December 31:

Useful Life 2007 2006
Leasehold improvements Term of lease $ 17,438 $ 11,757
Office equipment 3-7 years 2,039,000 1,496,302
Software 3 years 338,517 235,371
Health care equipment 1-5 years 1,113,547 772,231
3,508,502 2,515,661
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 2.107.932 1.747.986

$ 1,400,570 $ 767,675

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Our primary source of liquidity and working capital is provided by a $7,500,000 Credit Agreement with
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (the “Wells Loan™). At our option, the Wells Loan bears interest at prime, or the
one-month LIBOR plus a margin of 2.25% to 2.75% based upon our Senior Leverage Ratio (effective rate
of 7.25% and 8.25% at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively). The availability of the Wells Loan
decreases $250,000 on the last day of each calendar quarter, beginning September 30, 2003, and matures on
June 30, 2009, as amended. Working capital advances from the Wells Loan are based upon a percentage of
our eligible accounts receivable, less any amounts previously drawn. The facility provided maximum
borrowing capacity of $3,250,000 and $4,000,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and no
debt was outstanding on those dates. All borrowings are collateralized by substantially all of our assets. At
December 31, 2007, we were not in compliance with a financial covenant. Wells Fargo was made aware of
this noncompliance and has agreed to waive its default rights with respect to this breach. Wells Fargo has
also agreed to continue making capital advances available to us as new loan covenants are negotiated. This
noncompliance had no impact on our liquidity, capital resources or results of operations.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases — We lease office space and equipment under various operating leases. In addition to base rental
payments, these leases require us to pay a proportionate share of real estate taxes, special assessments, and
maintenance costs. The lease for our corporate headquarters, as well as our office lease in Plano, Texas,
has escalating lease payments through 2012. Costs incurred under operating leases are recorded as rent
expense and totaled approximately $581,000, $404,000, and $302,000 for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006, and 2005.

Minimum rent payments due under operating leases are as follows:

Years ending December 31:
2008 $651,000
2009 611,000
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2010 593,000
2011 596,000
Thereafter 612,000

Legal Proceedings — We are involved in various claims and lawsuits incident to the operation of our
business. We believe that the outcome of such claims will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operation, or cash flows.

Liguidated Damages — In accordance with the terms of the PIPE Transaction, we were required to file with
the SEC, within sixty (60) days from the Effective Date, a registration statement covering the common
shares issued and issuable in the PIPE Transaction. We were also required to cause the registration
statement to be declared effective on or before the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) days from the
Effective Date. We would have been subject to liquidated damages of one percent (1%) per month of the
aggregate gross proceeds ($10,200,000), if we failed to meet these date requirements. On March 10, 2006,
the SEC declared effective our registration statement and, as a result, we did not pay any liquidated
damages for failure to meet the filing and effectiveness date requirements. We could nevertheless be
subject to the foregoing liquidated damages if we fail (subject to certain permitted circumstances) to
maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement. On June 15, 2006, we entered into an agreement
with the accredited investors to amend the Registration Rights Agreement to cap the amount of liquidated
damages we could pay at 9% of the aggregate purchase price paid by each accredited investor.

Patent Matter — In March 2007, we received a letter from a patent holder inquiring about our interest in
negotiating a license for certain technology patents owned by the patent holder, which pertain to certain
aspects of the electronic collection, use and management of health-related electronic data. We do not
believe these patents are material based on our initial review, and it is unlikely we will be interested in a
license on any material terms. However, we are currently conducting a more detailed review of this matter.

7. BENEFIT PLAN

We maintain a 401(k) plan whereby employees are eligible to participate in the plan providing they have
attained the age of 18 and have completed one month of service. The plan allows participants to contribute
up to 20% of their earnings. We may make certain matching contributions, which were approximately
$292,000, $297,000, and $261,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005.

8. EQUITY

Stock Options — We maintain a stock option plan for the benefit of certain eligible employees and our
directors. We have authorized 4,000,000 shares for grant under our 2005 Stock Option Plan, and a total of
897,150 shares of common stock are reserved for additional grants of options at December 31, 2007.
Generally, the options outstanding are granted at prices equal to the market value of our stock on the date
of grant, generally vest over four years and expire over a period of six or ten years from the date of grant.

Commencing January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123R, “Share
Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), which requires all share-based payments, including grants of stock
options, to be recognized in the income statement as an operating expense, based on their fair values over
the requisite service period. Prior to 2006, the compensation cost we recorded for option awards was based
on their grant date fair value as calculated for the proforma disclosures required by Statement 123.

We recorded $457,845 and $373,477 of stock option compensation expense for the years ended December
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. We also recorded a deferred tax benefit of $183,138 and $149,392 for the
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twelve months ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 in connection with recording this non-cash expense.
This deferred tax benefit will be adjusted based upon the actual tax benefit realized from the exercise of the
underlying stock options. The compensation expense reduced diluted earnings per share by approximately
$0.02 and $0.01 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

In 2005, we utilized the intrinsic value method of accounting for our stock- based employee compensation
plans. All options granted had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock
on the date of grant and accordingly, no compensation cost is reflected in net earnings for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

The following table illustrates the effect on net earnings and earnings per share if we had applied the fair
value method:

005
Net earnings applicable to common shareholders - basic $ 1,204,401
Add: Dividends to preferred shareholders 140,890
Net earnings - diluted 1,345,291

Less: Compensation expense determined under the fair value method, net of tax (187,898)

Proforma net earnings, basic $ 1,016,503

Proforma net earnings, diluted $ 1,157,393

Net earnings per common share:

Basic-as reported $0.09
Basic-proforma 0.08
Diluted-as reported $0.08

$0.07

Diluted-proforma

As of December 31, 2007, approximately $724,000 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to
non-vested awards is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately
2.60 years.

Prior to adopting SFAS 123R, we accounted for stock-based compensation under Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” We have applied the modified
prospective method in adopting SFAS 123R. Accordingly, periods prior to adoption have not been
restated.

The following table summarizes information about our stock options at December 31, 2007:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average

Range of Number Contractual Life Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Qutstanding In Years Price Exercisable Price
$0.30 - $0.39 145,200 1.12 $0.39 145,200 $0.39
0.47 - 0.69 327,500 1.15 0.52 327,500 0.52
0.95-1.25 239,000 2.76 1.15 216,500 1.17
1.26-2.27 436,100 4.43 1.86 372,075 1.85
2.28 -3.05 1,190.500 4.46 2.74 402.375 2.70
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2,338,300 3.61 $1.96 1,463,650 $1.54

Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2007 have an aggregate intrinsic value of $1,752,933, and a
weighted average remaining term of 3.61 years. Stock options exercisable at December 31, 2007 have an
aggregate intrinsic value of $1,663,218, and a weighted average remaining term of 2.98 years.

We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model using weighted average assumptions for options granted to
determine the fair value of options. The fair value of options at date of grant and the assumptions utilized to
determine such values are indicated in the following table:

Fiscal Year Ending

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rate 4.68% 4.48% 2.79%
Expected volatility 49.9% 68.9%  72.4%
Expected life (in years) 3.99 3.96 3.04
Dividend yield — — —
A summary of the stock option activity is as follows:
Weighted
Number of Average
Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2005 1,921,550 1.06
Granted 357,500 2.58
Exercised (109,625) 0.39
Forfeited (12.000) 1.94
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 2,157,425 1.34
Granted 515,500 243
Exercised (253,850) 0.31
Forfeited (168.175) 2.33
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 2,250,900 $1.64
Granted 640,500 2.82
Exercised (328,725) 0.77
Forfeited (224.375) 2.96
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 2,338.300 $1.96

Stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 had an aggregate
intrinsic value of $226,739, $469,218 and $673,368, respectively.

A summary of exercisable stock options is as follows:

Weighted
Number of Average
Shares Exercise Price
Options exercisable at December 31:
2007 1,463,650 $1.54
2006 1,606,000 $1.39
2005 1,520,900 $1.18
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan — We maintain an Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which allows employees
to purchase shares of our common stock at 95% of the fair market value. A total of 1,000,000 shares of
common stock are reserved for issuance under this plan, of which 333,708 shares are unissued and remain
available for issuance at December 31, 2007. There were 57,854, 90,572 and 89,227 shares issued under

the plan during 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Warrants — We have outstanding warrants to selling agents and investors that were issued in connection
with financing transactions.

A summary of the stock warrants activity is as follows:

Exercise
Number of Price
Shares Per Share
Outstanding at January 1, 2005 1,415,320 $0.30-0.50

Granted 1,697,143 0.50-2.70

Exercised (1,086,448) 0.30-0.50

Forfeited (331,584) 0.30-0.50
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 1,694,431 2.00-2.70

Granted - --

Exercised - -

Forfeited - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 1,694,431 2.00-2.70

Granted -- -

Exercised - -

Forfeited - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 1,694.431 2.00-2.70
Warrants exercisable at December 31:

2007 1,694,431 $2.00-2.70

2006 1,694,431 2.00-2.70

2005 1,694,431 2.00-2.70

Restricted Stock - In connection with our employment agreement dated as of December 1, 2006 with Gregg
O. Lehman, Ph.D., our President and Chief Executive Officer, on January 1, 2007 we granted an award of
50,000 shares of restricted common stock to Mr. Lehman, which was valued at a price of $2.65 per share
on the date of grant. This restricted common stock vests in three equal installments on the first of the year
for each of 2007, 2008 and 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded $110,400 of stock-
based compensation related to this grant. As of December 31, 2007, $22,100 of unrecognized
compensation expense related to the non-vested portion of this award will be recognized through December

31, 2008.

Equity Incentive Plan — At our Annual Meeting of Shareholders on May 21, 2007, our shareholders
approved the implementation of our 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Equity Plan”). The Equity Plan was
developed to provide our executives with restricted stock incentives if certain financial targets are achieved
for calendar years 2007 through 2009. In lieu of selecting restricted stock, executives can choose to receive
a cash bonus under our 2007 Cash Incentive Plan (the “Cash Plan”). The performance objectives, and
monetary potential of the Cash Plan would be the same as those under the Equity Plan and participants
would receive their cash bonuses at the same time as the restricted stock vests under the Equity Plan.
Restricted stock granted under the Equity Plan is earned on an annual basis upon achievement of certain

49




HEALTH FITNESS CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

financial objectives for each of 2007, 2008 and 2009. All shares earned during these years will vest upon
completion of our 2009 annual audit. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded $53,100 of
stock-based compensation related to elections under the Equity Plan, which was valued using a price of
$2.78 per share, the market value of our common stock on the grant date. We also accrued $5,800 of bonus
expense related to elections under the Cash Plan. As of December 31, 2007, $1,629,400 of unrecognized
compensation costs related to the non-vested portion of this program will be recognized through March
2010.

Accrued Acquisition Earnout - In accordance with the Stock Purchase Agreement executed in connection
with our acquisition of HealthCalc.Net, Inc. on December 23, 2005, we agreed to pay the shareholders of
HealthCalc a contingent earnout payment based upon the achievement of specific 2006 revenue objectives.
In accordance with this Stock Purchase Agreement the contingent earnout payment could be made by us in
cash, stock or a combination thereof. At December 31, 2006, we recorded a liability of $1,475,000 in favor
of the former shareholders of HealthCalc representing the contingent earnout payment, with the offset
reflected as an increase to goodwill. On March 27, 2007, our Board of Directors determined that this
earnout payment would be made by a cash payment of $737,500 and the issuance of 262,590 shares of
common stock, which was determined using an average closing share price of $2.81 for the twenty-one
trading days preceding the date of payment. We made the cash payment on March 28, 2007 and issued the
common stock effective on March 27, 2007.

Common Stock Repurchase Plan — On March 24, 2008, we announced that our Board of Directors
authorized the repurchase of up to $2.5 million of the Company’s outstanding common stock. Under the
plan, the Company may repurchase shares on the open market in amounts and at times deemed appropriate
by management and in accordance with applicable securities rules and regulations. Share repurchases will
be funded by the Company’s available working capital. The timing and amount of any such repurchases
under the plan will depend on share price, economic and market conditions and applicable corporate and
regulatory requirements. The share repurchase plan is effective on April 1, 2008 and will continue for a
period of six months, subject to the Company’s right to announce earlier termination or an extension of the
plan. The plan does not require the Company to repurchase a specific number of shares, and may be
modified, suspended, or discontinued at any time.
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9. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense consists of the following for the years ended December 31:

2007 2006 2005
Current $ 740,602  $1,435,000 § 412,346
Deferred 165.376 60,184 1,106,600

$ 905,978 $1495,184 $1.518.946

A reconciliation between taxes computed at the expected federal income tax rate and the effective tax rate
for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Tax expense computed at statutory rates $ 617,348 $ 1,567,910 $ 973,800
State tax benefit, net of federal effect 93,692 181,745 205,800
Nontaxable warrant expense (income) - (286,913) 215,700
Adjustment to income tax provision accruals 99,356 - 110,700
Stock-based compensation 67,241 - -
Other 28,341 32,442 12,946

$ 905,979 $1,518,946 $1,518,946

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had no remaining federal operating loss carryforwards. For 2005,
federal operating loss carryforwards were used to reduce federal taxes payable by approximately

$1,091,000.

The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) at December 31 consist of the following:

2007 2006
Current:
Allowances $ - $ 69,500
Accrued employee benefits 388,700 84,000
State tax loss carryforwards - 64,000
Other 17,667 -
Net current asset $ 406,367 $ 217,500
Noncurrent:
Depreciation and amortization (308,927) $ 295,200
Accrued employee benefits 131,994 141,800
State tax loss carryforwards 68.310 -
Net noncurrent (liabilities) assets $ (108,623) $ 437,000

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various state, and Canadian jurisdictions.
Tax regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. We completed a US Federal (IRS) tax examination
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10.

for tax year 2005 during the past year. With few exceptions, we are no longer subject to US Federal or state
and local tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2004.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

We adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, on
January 1, 2007. Previously, we had accounted for tax contingencies in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards 5, Accounting for Contingencies. As required by Interpretation 48, which
clarifies Statement 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, we recognize the financial statement benefit of a tax
position only after determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the
position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold, the amount
recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of
being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority. At the adoption date, we applied
Interpretation 48 to all tax positions for which the statute of limitations remained open. As a result of the
implementation of Interpretation 48, we recognized no liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which would
have been accounted for as a reduction to the January 1, 2007, balance of retained earnings.

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various state, and Canadian jurisdictions.
Tax regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. We completed US Federal (IRS) tax examinations
for the 2005 tax year during the past year. With few exceptions, we are no longer subject to US Federal or
state and local tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2004. We have recorded no liability for
unrecognized tax benefits during the year. If we were to record a liability for unrecognized tax benefits,
interest and penalties would be recorded as a component of income tax expense.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Bound (“FASB”) issued FIN No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48~). FIN 48 clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” (“SFAS 109”). FIN 48 clarifies the
application of SFAS No. 109 by defining a criterion that an individual tax position must meet for any part
of the benefit of that position to be recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements. Additionally, FIN 48
provides guidance on measurement, derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure, and transition. FIN 48 was effective for us on January 1, 2007.

Previously, the Company had accounted for tax contingencies in accordance with SFAS No. 5,
“Accounting for Contingencies.” As required by FIN 48, the Company recognizes the financial statement
benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not
sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold, the
amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50 percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority. At the adoption date,
the Company applied FIN 48 to all tax positions for which the statute of limitations remained open. At
January 1, 2007, the Company’s existing reserve for income tax uncertainties was not material. The
Company recognized no additional liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits as a result of the
implementation of FIN 48.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” (“SFAS 157”), which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and for interim periods within those years.
This statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands the related
disclosure requirements. However, on December 14, 2007, the FASB issued proposed FSP FAS 157-b,
which would delay the effective date of SFAS 157 for all non-financial liabilities, except those that are
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recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually).
This proposed FSP partially defers the effective date of SFAS 157 to fiscal years beginning after November
15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the scope of this FSP. Effective for
2008, we will adopt SFAS 157 except as it applies to those non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities
as noted in proposal FSP FAS 157-b. The partial adoption of SFAS 157 will not have a material impact on
our consolidated financial position, results of operation or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities,” (“SFAS 159) which permits entities to choose to measure many financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has
been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007. We do not believe that the adoption of SFAS 159 will have a material effect on our financial
position or results of operation.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141(revised 2007),
Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R”). SFAS 141R will significantly change the accounting for business
combinations in a number of areas including the treatment of contingent consideration, contingencies,
acquisition costs, [IPR&D and restructuring costs. In addition, under SFAS 141R, changes in deferred tax
asset valuation allowances and acquired income tax uncertainties in a business combination after the
measurement period will impact income tax expense. SFAS 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008 (our 2009 fiscal year). This statement will impact us if we complete an acquisition
after the effective date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160, Noncontrolling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160
will change the accounting and reporting for minority interests, which will be recharacterized as
noncontrolling interests (NCI) and classified as a component of equity. This new consolidation method will
significantly change the accounting for transactions with minority interest holders. SFAS 160 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 (our 2009 fiscal year). We do not believe the adoption
of SFAS 160 will have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP

At December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we had one customer relationship that provided 9.8%, 10.3% and
11.9% of our total revenue. For this customer, we provide fitness center management and employee
wellness administration services for approximately 50 locations. The agreement with this customer was
recently renewed and expires December 31, 2009, and will automatically renew for successive one year
periods unless either party delivers written notice at least 90 days prior to termination. We believe that our
relationship with this customer is good.
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12. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The following table provides an analysis of business segment revenue and gross profit for each of the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
Revenue
Fitness Management Services
Staffing Services $39,747,239 $39,670,546 $38,226,444
Program and Consulting Services 2,679,881 2,574,463 2,392,272
42,427,120 42,245,009 40,618,716
Health Management Services
Staffing Services 15,819,481 13,669,201 12,267,973
Program and Consulting Services 11,711,450 7,664,330 2,055,516
27,530,931 21,333,531 14,323,489
Total Revenue
Staffing Services 55,566,720 53,339,747 50,494,417
Program and Consulting Services 14,391,331 10,238,793 4,447,788
$69,958,051 $63,578,540 $54,942,205
Gross Profit
Fitness Management Services
Staffing Services $8,643,280 $8,861,829 $8,772,194
Program and Consulting Services 1,155,217 1,129,585 810,401
9,798,497 9,991,414 9,582,595
Health Management Services
Staffing Services 3,974,348 3,399,875 3,499,117
Program and Consulting Services 5,868,032 4,239,295 735,462
9,842,380 7,639,170 4,234,579
Total Gross Profit
Staffing Services 12,617,628 12,261,704 12,271,311
Program and Consulting Services 7,023,249 5,368,880 1,545,863
$19,640,877 $17,630,584 $13,817,174
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13. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

2007
Revenue
Gross profit
Net earnings applicable to common
shareholders

Net earnings per common share
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted

2006
Revenue
Gross profit
Net earnings (loss) applicable to common
shareholders

Net earnings (loss) per common share
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted

Quarter ended
March 31 June 30, September 30, December 31
$ 16,590,033 $ 16,979,167 $ 17,153,058 $ 19,235,793
4,809,894 4,755,433 4,884,726 5,190,824
511,667 173,004 17,023 208,057
$ 0.03 $ 0.01 $ 0.00 $ 0.01
0.03 0.01 0.00 0.01
19,306,797 19,702,693 19,834,858 19,887,125
20,252,110 20,558,007 20,866,935 20,828,832
Quarter ended
March 31 June 30, September 30, December 31,
$ 14,567,261 $ 15,575,130 $ 16,340,380 $ 17,095,769
3,604,480 4,160,014 5,278,628 4,587,462
(1,013,191) 727,474 1,173,841 463,549
$ (0.07) $ 0.04 $ 0.06 $ 0.02
(0.07) 0.02 0.06 0.02
15,001,832 18,831,169 18,963,948 19,085,789
15,001,832 20,310,830 19,550,662 19,823,346
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Balance at Charged to Balance
Beginning Costs and at End
Description of Period Expenses _ Deductions of Period
Trade and other accounts
receivable allowances:
Year ended December 31, 2007 $ 283,100 $ 30,000 $(68,800) (a) $ 243,300
Year ended December 31, 2006 $ 200,700 $ 104,000 $(21,600) (a) $ 283,100
Year ended December 31, 2005 $ 210,700 $ 12,400 $(22,400) (a) $ 200,700

(a) Accounts receivable written off as uncollectible
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, referred to collectively herein as the Certifying Officers,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining our disclosure controls and procedures. The Certifying Officers
have reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 240.13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of December 31,
2007. Based on that review and evaluation, which included inquiries made to certain other employees of the
Company, the Certifying Officers have concluded that the Company’s current disclosure controls and procedures,
as designed and implemented, are effective in ensuring that information relating to the Company required to be
disclosed in the reports that the Company files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms, including ensuring that such information is accumulated and communicated to the
Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting,
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and with the
participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO”). Based on this evaluation, management has concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management's report was not subject to attestation by the
company's registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission that permit us to provide only management's report in this annual report.

Limitations on Controls

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our
disclosure controls or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A
control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance
that the control system’s objectives will be met. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves
human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human
failures. In addition, the design of any system of controls is based in part on certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, and controls may become inadequate if conditions change. There can be no assurance
that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.
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Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 2007 that may have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On October 31, 2007, we entered into the Sixth Amendment to the Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association. The Sixth Amendment adds a subfeature to the Credit Agreement pursuant to which Wells
Fargo has agreed to issue standby letters of credit for our account from time to time, with an aggregate undrawn
limit of $250,000. Each drawing paid under a letter of credit shall be deemed an advance under the revolving
facility under the Credit Agreement. The foregoing description of the Sixth Amendment is qualified by the
provisions of the Sixth Amendment, which is filed herewith as Exhibit 10.11.

On March 21, 2008, our Board of Directors approved the 2008 Executive Bonus Plan, which is set forth in Exhibit
10.45 filed herewith and incorporated by reference herein. Under this bonus plan, the Chief Executive Officer may
receive a bonus of between 9.0% and 67.5% of base salary, the Chief Financial Officer may receive a bonus of
between 4.6% and 34.5% of base salary and other executive officers may receive between 3.6% and 34.5% of their
base salary. The level of bonus to be earned corresponds with the Company achieving between 93.4% to 110% of
budgeted revenue objectives, and 78% to 110% of budgeted EBITDA objectives. No bonuses are earned if the
Company achieves less than 93.4% of the planned revenue targets and less than 78% of the planned EBITDA

targets.

Effective March 23, 2008, the 2008 fiscal year base salaries for the Company’s Section 16 officers as approved by
our Board of Directors are as set forth in Exhibit 10.46 filed herewith and incorporated by reference herein.

On March 24, 2008, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $2.5 million of
the Company’s outstanding common stock. Please see Item 5 for a description of this share repurchase plan.
PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Other than the information included in this Form 10-K under the heading “Executive Officers of the
Registrant,” which is set forth at the end of Part I, the information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference
to the sections labeled “Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership

Reporting Compliance,” all of which appear in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Executive

Compensation,” “2007 Director Compensation,” and “Compensation/Human Capital Committee,” all of which
appear in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Principal
Shareholders and Management Shareholdings” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information,” which appear in our
definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Corporate
Governance — Independence” and “Certain Transactions,” which appear in our definitive proxy statement for our
2008 Annual Meeting.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Audit
Fees,” which appears in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting.
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ITEM 15.

(a)

PART IV

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Documents filed as part of this report.

(M

@

©))

Financial Statements. The following financial statements are included in Part II, Item 8 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Report of Grant Thornton LLP on Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial
Statement Schedule as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2007

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2007

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2007

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2007

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules. The following consolidated financial statement schedule is
included in Item 8:

Schedule II-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
All other financial statement schedules have been omitted, because they are not applicable,

are not required, or the information is included in the Financial Statements or Notes thereto

Exhibits. See “Exhibit Index to Form 10-K” immediately following the signature page of
this Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: March 26, 2008

HEALTH FITNESS CORPORATION

By _/s/ Gregg O. Lehman By _/s/ Wesley W. Winnekins

Gregg O. Lehman, Ph.D. Wesley W. Winnekins

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person -whose signature appears below constitutes GREGG O. LEHMAN and WESLEY W.
WINNEKINS his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, each acting alone, with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any or all amendments to this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, each acting
alone, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and
about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and
confirming all said attorneys-in-fact and agents, each acting alone, or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or
cause to be done by virtue thereof. Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has
been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures Title
/s/ Gregg O. Lehman Chief Executive Officer, President (principal March 26, 2008
Gregg O. Lehman, Ph.D. executive officer) and Director
/s/ Wesley W. Winnekins Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and March 26, 2008
Wesley W. Winnekins accounting officer)
/s/ Mark W. Sheffert Chairman March 26, 2008

Mark W. Sheffert

/s/ Jerry V. Noyce Director March 26, 2008
Jerry V. Noyce
/s/ K. James Ehlen, M.D. Director March 26, 2008

K. James Ehlen, M.D.

/s/ Robert J. Marzec Director March 26, 2008
Robert J. Marzec
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/s/_John C. Penn
John C. Penn

/s/_Linda Hall Whitman, Ph.D.
Linda Hall Whitman, Ph.D.

/s/ Rodney A. Young
Rodney A. Young

/s/_David F. Durenberger
David F. Durenberger

/s/_Curtis M. Selquist
Curtis M. Selquist

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit No.

EXHIBIT INDEX
HEALTH FITNESS CORPORATION
FORM 10-K
Description

3.1

32

33

*3.4

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Articles of Incorporation, as amended on September 20, 2004 — incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2004

Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Registration Statement on
Form S-1 filed January 13, 2006, File No. 333-131045

Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
dated November 14, 2005

Restated Bylaws of the Company, as amended February 11, 2008

Specimen of Common Stock Certificate — incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2, File No. 33-83784C

Lease Agreement dated May 2, 2007 between United Properties Investment LLC and
the Company — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007

Office Lease dated September 29, 2003 between CMD Realty Investment Fund II,
L.P. and HealthCalc.Net, Inc. — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007

First Amendment, dated April 29, 2005, to Office Lease dated September 29, 2003
between Parkway Commons, L.P. (f/k/a CMD Realty Investment Fund II, L.P.) and
HealthCalc.Net, Inc. — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007

Second Amendment, dated January 31, 2006, to Office Lease dated September 29,
2003 between Parkway Commons, L.P. and HealthCalc.Net, Inc. — incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended June 30, 2007

Third Amendment, dated May 9, 2007, to Lease dated September 29, 2003 between
Parkway Commons, L.P. and the Company — incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.5 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007
Credit Agreement dated August 22, 2003 between the Company and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2003
Second Amendment and Waiver of Defaults, dated May 14, 2004, to Credit
Agreement dated August 22, 2003 between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
— incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2004

Third Amendment and Consent, dated December 29, 2004, to Credit Agreement dated
August 22, 2003 between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. — incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2004
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.9

10.10

*10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

Fourth Amendment, dated June 6, 2006, to Credit Agreement dated August 22, 2003
between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June

30, 2006
Fifth Amendment, dated September 27, 2007, to Credit Agreement dated August 22,
2003 between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. — incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 27,
2007

Sixth Amendment, dated October 31, 2007, to Credit Agreement dated August 22,
2003 between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Securities Purchase Agreement dated November 14, 2005 — incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to our report on Form 8-K filed November 16,2005

Form of Warrant issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement dated
November 14, 2005 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 14, 2005

Form of Amendment No. 1 to Warrants issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase
Agreement dated November 14, 2005 — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2006
Registration Rights Agreement dated November 14, 2005 — incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to our report on Form 8-K filed November 16, 2005

Form of Amendment No. 1 to Registration Rights Agreement — incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2006

Shareholders’ Agreement dated December 23, 2005 between the Company, Peter A.
Egan and John F. Ellis — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 23, 2005

2005 Stock Option Plan — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K dated June 7, 2005 (1)

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 2005 Stock Option Plan —
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 5, 2005 (1)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the 2005 Stock Option Plan —
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 5, 2005 (1)

Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option Plan — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 21, 2007 (1)

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Amended and Restated 2005
Stock Option Plan — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K dated May 21, 2007 (1)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Amended and Restated
2005 Stock Option Plan — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K dated May 21, 2007 (1)

Company’s 2007 Equity Incentive Plan — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 21, 2007 (1)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan —
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
May 21, 2007 (1)
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

Cash Incentive Plan — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (1)

Employment Agreement dated December 1, 2006 between the Company and Gregg
O. Lehman, Ph.D. — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 30, 2006 (1)

Restricted Stock Agreement dated January 1, 2007 between the Company and Gregg
O. Lehman, Ph.D. — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (1)

Employment Agreement dated February 9, 2001 between the Company and Wesley
W. Winnekins — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, File No. 000-25064 (1)
Amendment, dated December 21, 2006, to Employment Agreement dated February 9,
2001 between the Company and Wesley W. Winnekins — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31,2006 (1)

Employment Agreement dated March 1, 2003 between the Company and Jeanne
Crawford — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, File No. 000-25064 (1)
Amendment, dated December 21, 2006, to Employment Agreement dated March 1,
2003 between the Company and Jeanne Crawford — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31,2006 (1)

Employment Agreement dated December 8, 2003 between the Company and Brian
Gagne — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to our Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2005 (1)

Amendment, dated December 21, 2006, to Employment Agreement dated December
8, 2003 between the Company and Brian Gagne — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2006 (1)

Employment Agreement dated August 13, 2001 between the Company and Dave Hurt
— incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (1)

Employment Agreement dated December 8, 2003 between the Company and
Katherine Hamlin — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to our Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (1)

Amendment, dated December 21, 2006, to Employment Agreement dated December
8, 2003 between the Company and Katherine Hamlin — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.20 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31,2006 (1)

Employment Agreement dated December 23, 2005 between the Company and John F.
Ellis — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to our Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (1)

Amendment, dated December 21, 2006, to Employment Agreement dated December
23, 2005 between the Company and John F. Ellis — incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.22 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31,2006 (1)

Employment Agreement, dated February 1, 2008, between the Company and John E.
Griffin — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-
K dated January 31, 2008 (1)
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.41 Employment Agreement, dated February 1, 2008, between the Company and James
O. Reynolds — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K dated January 31, 2008 (1)
10.42 Agreement for Separation From Employment, dated January 31, 2008, between the
Company and Jerry V. Noyce — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 31, 2008 (1)
10.43 Consulting Agreement, dated January 31, 2008, between the Company and Jerry V.
Noyce — incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
dated January 31, 2008 (1)
*10.44 Director Compensation Arrangements for fiscal year 2008 (1)
*10.45 2008 Executive Bonus Plan (1)
*10.46 Compensation Arrangements for Executive Officers for Fiscal Year 2008 (1)
*11.1 Statement re: Computation of Earnings per Share
21.1 Subsidiaries - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004
*23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
*31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
*31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
*32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
*32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
* Filed herewith

(1) Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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Condition Management Proposal for State of Nebraska

HealthFitness is pleased to offer this proposal to integrate the State’s condition management program
into our EMPOWERED® Coaching program effective in April, 2012, providing an end-to-end coaching
continuum in which participants are assigned to work with the coach who is most appropriate for their
needs at any given time.

Program Overview

Individuals who are identified through claims and/or other data (HRA, biometrics) as having a chronic
condition will be stratified into one of two coaching levels: Advanced Practice Coaches, who will work
with participants who are chronic but who are already effectively managing their condition; and Nurse
Coaches, who will work with chronic participants whose clinical needs are more significant.

Advanced Practice Coach (~75% of chronics)

Our Advanced Practice Coaches (APCs) are our most skilled/senior health coaches, all of whom have
additional training in the basic clinical guidelines of chronic condition management. Chronic members
who work with an APC will not spend their time focused on clinical issues — the fact that our triage
process placed them with an APC is indicative of the fact that they are managing their clinical care plans
fairly well. Rather, the APC will work with these individuals on lifestyle-focused goals and the behaviors
that support healthy lifestyle changes. APCs are also, however, cognizant of the participant’s underlying
chronic condition, and they will focus their interventions on those lifestyle risks that both underlie and
exacerbate the condition. Furthermore, APCs are trained to look out for “red flags” in a participant’s
clinical profile that could merit either a consult with or transfer to a Nurse Coach.

Nurse Coach (~25% of chronics)

Our Nurse Coaches are just that — registered nurses who are skilled not just in helping participants
understand and adhere to their clinical care plan, but who are also trained in the behavior change
techniques that make our EMPOWERED® coaching so effective. Participants who are assigned to work
with a Nurse Coach have conditions that are not being managed appropriately, have multiple gaps in
care, and/or comorbidities. Interactions between a participant and a Nurse Coach will be focused on
addressing the participant’s clinical needs, e.g. gaps in care, medication adherence and care
coordination. Once a participant has their clinical issues under control, the Nurse Coach will transfer
them to work with an APC on their lifestyle issues. This is a seamless transition designed with the




participant experience of utmost importance. All data related to the participant’s prior interventions is
available to the new coach as well as for reporting purposes.

Transition

Our primary objective throughout the transition process will be to ensure a smooth experience for
participants who are actively working with a Nurtur coach today (548 as of 9/30/11). Once we have
successfully transitioned current participants into their new coaching relationships, we will begin the
process of stratifying and outreaching to the rest of the State’s condition-identified population.

If the State decides to move forward, our detailed transition plan/timeline will include the following
elements:

Interface with current vendor (Nurtur)

e Provide Nurtur with notice of termination {120 day notice required per contract)
o Hold introductory transition meeting to:

Discuss transition process

Identify appropriate contacts

Introduce NDA process

Determine next steps

o O O O O

Determine need for ongoing transition meetings

Participant Communications

e Develop plan for Nurtur contact with active participants
o Introduce program change
o Describe transition timing
o Develop scripting for inbound and outbound calls
e Develop/send transition mailing to active participants
| e Perform transition outreach/enrollment
e Develop communications plan for non-active participants

Data

Since we are already receiving a monthly medical and pharmacy claims data from (CARRIER) and (PBM),
respectively, we anticipate little to no additional data requirements on the State’s part. Once we get the
go-ahead to move forward, we will begin the process of mapping the State’s data into our systems.

High-Level Timeline (assuming April 1, 2012 implementation)

November 15, 2011 Obtain State of Nebraska approval




December 1, 2011

January, 2012

February, 2012

March, 2012

April, 2012

May, 2012

Pricing

Notify Nurtur of contract termination

Finalize detailed transition timeline

Meet with Nurtur to structure transition plan

Begin loading claims/Rx data into HealthFitness triage engine
Draft transition communication materials & scripting

Finalize transition communication materials & scripting

Nurtur begins to communicate transition on calls

Mailing to active CM participants communicating program change
Outreach to enroll active CM participants

Continue outreach to enroll active CM participants

First HealthFitness coaching sessions for active CM participants
Continue outreach to enroll active CM participants

Stratification of remainder of State’s condition-identified population

Begin outreach to larger population

We are pleased to offer a pricing model that provides the State with economies given our existing

relationship.
“Current (Nurtur) Per Participant Per Month Fees [ Active Active | Mail Only
. ' : - | Coaching - |Coaching -
APC NC
Asthma na 26.36 26.36
Congestive Heart Failure n/a 36.87 36.87
Coronary Artery Disease (CAD) n/a 30.16 30.16
COPD n/a 28.18 28.18
Diabetes n/a 37.84 37.84
Back Pain n/a 42.18 42.18
Depression n/a 42.18 42.18




5 —F

Proposed (HealthFitness) Per Participant Per Month Active Active | Mail Only
Fees , Coaching - |Coaching -
' APC NC
Asthm.a, CHF, CAD, COPD, Diabetes, Back Pain, 48.50 53.00 500
Depression
Maternity Management Fees:
Screening for Maternity Management Services $14.00 Per Participant
Low Risk Maternity Management $93.00 Per Participant
Estimated Monthly/Annual Fees Based on Current Enrollment Levels (as of 9/30/11)
Active Active Mail Only | Monthly Fees | Annual Fees
Coaching - APC | Coaching - NC
Current CM Pricing N/A 548 945 50,953.89 611,446.68
Proposed CM Pricing | 438 110 945 35,098.00 421,176.00

(estimated based on
stratification
assumptions)

Notes:

This pricing would be effective for the remainder of the State’s contract with HealthFitness .

Participants who are currently being co-managed by HealthFitness and Nurtur will be assigned to one

HealthFitness coach. If HealthFitness has already billed the State for lifestyle coaching for a chronic

participant we will transfer that participant to either an Advanced Practice Coach or a Nurse Coach, but

will not begin charging the Per Participant Per Month fees outlined above until the next program year.




@ Carlos Castillo, Jr.
AdministrativeServices Director
Dave Heineman, Governor

ADDENDUM TWO

DATE: February 11, 2009
TO: All Vendors
FROM: Ruth Gray, Buyer

State Purchasing Bureau

RE: RFP Number 278771

SCOPE OF ADDENDUM

Addendum One is hereby amended as follows:

Please disregard the map attached to Addendum One. The corrected map of
Nebraska State Employees by County is attached.

This addendum will become part of the proposal and should be acknowledged with the
RFP.

Materiel Division * Steve Sulek, Acting Administrator
Administrative Services * 301 Centennial Mall South ¢ PO.Box 94847 <« Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847 < Phone: 402-471-2401 + Fax: 402-471-2089
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For RFP #2787Z71
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@ Carlos Castillo, Jr.
AdministrativeServices Director
Dave Heineman, Governor

ADDENDUM ONE

DATE: February 10, 2009
TO: All Vendors
FROM: Ruth Gray, Buyer

State Purchasing Bureau

RE: Questions and Answers for RFP Number 278771
to be opened February 20, 2009 at 2:00 PM Central Time

Following are the questions submitted and answers provided for the above mentioned
Request For Proposal. The questions and answers are to be considered as part of the
Request For Proposal.

QUESTIONS ANSWERS

Materiel Division = Steve Sulek, Acting Administrator
Administrative Services ¢ 301 Centennial Mall South ¢ PO.Box 94847 < Lincoln, Nebraska 68509-4847 < Phone: 402-471-2401 = Fax: 402-471-2089




QUESTIONS

ANSWERS

I understand that the State is deploying a new
PPO plan, which | am sure represents a
lower cost option to the State. However,
noting that the State has decided to offer the
wellness program only to employees who
select this new plan, “Employees enrolled in
other health plans offered by the State will not
have the ability to enroll in the Wellness
Program, “ it appears this policy position may
not be entirely consistent with the project
requirements, viz., (see below)

PROJECT REQUIREMENTS

The State’s long-term strategy is to develop
and implement plans and programs that:

1. Are based on current and future cost
drivers, using State-specific data (where
available) to support initiatives and measure
program effectiveness

2. Have a total population focus

3. Lead to long-term, sustainable behavior
change

4. Address a broad view of health and well-
being issues

5. Are flexible, repeatable and scalable

6. Are all inclusive

I think | can safely assume that the reason
behind this position is the desire to move
more employees into this new PPO. If this is
not a correct assumption, please help me
understand the reason. Additionally, | would
like to suggest that consideration be given to
the option of allowing all state employees to
receive the benefit from the lifestyle
improvement programs and perhaps using
other incentives to entice employees into the
PPO plan, rather than narrowing the
opportunity for the State to benefit from the
medical cost savings from all employees.

Pag

Itis the State’s intent to allow all eligible
employees to have access to the wellness
program. However to take advantage of the
wellness medical plan design benefits, they
must complete the wellness program criteria.
Following is a description of the expected
eligibility criteria for the wellness program and
wellness medical plan designs, including
future enhancements.

Wellness Program Eligibility

All benefit eligible employees will have
access to complete the health assessment
during 2009/2010 open enrollment, which is
the entry point for access to the Wellness
Medical Plan for this benefits year only. All
benefit eligible employees will have access to
all on-line tools and resources. Additional
programs will be determined by vendor
engagement.

This allows a comprehensive program
approach to be rolled out to the entire
population, creating a supportive culture of
health and driving behavior change
throughout the organization.

Wellness Medical Plan Eligibility
Access to this plan, for the benefits year
2009/2010, is dependent upon employees
completing the Health Assessment during
open enroliment (April 20 — May 18, 2009).

Access to this plan going forward, will require
benefit eligible employees to complete
defined activities, prior to open enroliment of
the following year.

Three Year Approach:

Access to the Wellness Medical Plan for
benefits year 2010/2011 requirements:
Completion of the following between July 1,
2009 & March 31, 2010

- Health Assessment

- Biometric Screening

- One Wellness Activity
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QUESTIONS

ANSWERS

I will simply add that in my experience
with many companies across the
country who have taken such a
position have ended up changing this
position sooner or later. Although we
would love to participate in the RFP,
we will have to decline if this remains
the current policy. We have
unfortunately experienced the
repercussions of similar
implementations which prevent us in
good faith from supporting the
approach (essentially our success
would be significantly impacted by the
potential disfavor among employees
this policy could create). | hope you
understand | am simply offering an
observation and perspective.

Access to the Wellness Medical Plan for
benefits year 2011/2012 requirements:
Completion of the following between April 1,
2010 & March 31, 2011

- Health Assessment

- Biometric Screening

- Two Wellness Activities

Access to the Wellness Medical Plan for
benefits year 2012/2013 requirements:
Completion of the following between April 1,
2011 & March 31, 2012

- Health Assessment

- Biometric Screening

- Three Wellness Activities

The RFP Schedule of Events indicates the
contract will be awarded on March 20, 2009,
and the contractor start date is April 1, 2009.
Section II.C. states that the selected
contractor is prohibited from communicated
with State staff until a contract is signed and
Section I11.0. states that no billable work may
begin until a valid contract has been fully
executed by the State and the selected
contractor. Further, Section IV.A. indicates
that the State is requesting proposals for a
Wellness Program to be launched with Open
Enrollment on April 13, 2009.

a) lIs it the State’s expectation that the
chosen vendor would implement the
Wellness Program within the one-
and-one-half-week period between
April 1 and April 13, 20097

b) If so, which specific program
elements would be required for the
April 13, 2009 launch? Section IV.A.
references Health Assessment Tools
and communication pieces; Section
IV.E. states the Wellness Program
would include health risk assessment
tools, educational content, health
tools and resources, on-line and on-
site educational programs, on-line
activity tracking, telephonic health
coaching, comprehensive reporting,
and day-to-day on-site management.

a) The State intends to start the contract with
the wellness vendor on April 1, 2009. The
State intends to conduct statewide
educational meetings the week of April 13,
2009. The wellness vendor is expected to
participate in these statewide educational
meetings. The State intends for the wellness
vendor to have the Health Assessment up
and running by April 20, 2009, the start of the
open enroliment period. Communication
pieces for this initial launch are nearly
complete and will just need vendor details
laid into the designed communication piece.
Moving forward the State will work with the
selected vendor to utilize communication
templates and verbiage.

b) The only program element required for the
launch on April 13, 2009, is the Health
Assessment. The State will incorporate any
wellness vendor communication materials
available with the State’s overall
communication strategy.

c) The State is looking for a dedicated
wellness coordinator that would be
accessible to each State location to manage
the program, interact with employees and be
the face of wellness for the State. The
Wellness Coordinator must meet the
requirements as shown in Section IV.F.6 on
page 28 of the RFP. The full time wellness
coordinator is not required as of April 13,
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c) Is the State expecting the selected
vendor to provide a dedicated
Wellness Coordinator to manage all
wellness program activities on-site by
April 13, 2009?

2009. The State will work with the selected
vendor to establish reasonable expectations
of when the full time coordinator should be in
place. Initial expectations would be no later
than July 1, 2009.

Please provide more details regarding the
State’s expectations for customization of a
health assessment, communications and
educational materials, and would the State
expect these customizations to be
implemented for the April 13, 2009 Open
Enrollment program launch?

The State does not have specific health
assessment customization needs at this time,
but would like to know the capability,
timeframes needed and cost if the need does
arise.

Communication pieces for the initial launch
are nearly complete and will just need vendor
details laid into the designed communication
piece. Moving forward the State will work
with the selected vendor to utilize
communication templates and verbiage and
customize as appropriate.

The word document that is titled "State of
Nebraska (State Purchasing Bureau)
Request for Proposal for contractual services
Form" In section IV. Section D, it ask's
guestions, do we type the answers into the
document and print it, or do you want those in
a seperate format?

Please provide all answers on an attachment
with the page, section and subsection
indicated such as Page 23, Section IV, D —
Business Requirements or you can type the
answers into the document and include this
as a separate section in your proposal.

I am in the Process of preparing a RFP for
278721, and it asks for a proposal. We need
to know the number of employees that the
insurance benefits cover, the insurance
coverage renewal date, and whether you are
self funded, or fully insured in order to submit
a proposal accuratly of our services.

There are approximately 17,000 state
employees eligible for employee benefits
coverage of which 14,000 currently are
enrolled in one of the health plans. The
health insurance renewal date is July 1 of
each year.. The State of Nebraska is self
funded.
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How many screening locations are desired
and what is the eligible count for each
location?

The number of screening locations will be
dependent upon the enrollment in the
wellness health plan. The State will work with
the selected vendor to determine the
threshold of employees participating in the
wellness health plan to determine where on
site biometric screenings will be conducted.
In areas with less than the threshold of
employees participating in the wellness
health plan, it is expected that the screenings
will be conducted at a local lab or physician’s
office and sent to the wellness vendor.

Pricing for screenings should reflect the
vendor’s preferred approach to conducting
screenings in rural areas with low head count.
See attached map of Nebraska State
Employees by County as part of this
document.

Is there flexibility around the launch date?
Our typical implementation period is
approximately 90 days.

See answer to Question 2 for the expected
implementation timeline for the launch of the
wellness program.

Please clarify that you are interested in
disease management as part of this rfp.

Currently the State does not have a Disease
Management (DM) program and is interested
in Disease Management capabilities as they
integrate with wellness. Please describe your
approach to DM, whether it is a traditional
model or a modified DM approach, if you
outsource or manage internally and costs for
such services. If you do not provide these
services, please indicate as such. The State
will evaluate the scope of all available
services and determine which services make
most sense to implement now and consider
for a later date.

Section IV states the bidder must provide the
following information, including D.1-5
Business Requirements. In which section of
the proposal would the State prefer to have
these Business Requirements addressed?

Please provide all answers on an attachment
with the page, section and subsection
indicated such as Page 23, Section IV, D —
Business Requirements or you can type the
answers into the document and include this
as a separate section in your proposal.

Section F.1. Technical
Requirements/Program Components states
“Check how the employee receives program
assistance and whether they are proprietary
or outsourced.” Can you please clarify what
this is referencing and what information the
State is looking for in response?

This section refers to the table on page 24.
The State requests that for each program
description listed the vendor should indicate
how the service is delivered — either online,
telephone, face-to-face or mail based — and
whether the service is proprietary or
outsourced.
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Can the cost of screenings be billed and
reimbursed by the health plan

The costs of the screenings will be paid by
the State’s wellness program budget.

For what conditions, and at what level will
your current Disease Management vendor
provide coaching; what coaching level would
you want from the selected wellness vendor
to avoid duplication.

See answer to Question 8.

Please provide a summary of benefits for the
two health plans that will be available to
employees, and your assumptions regarding
the number of employees that will enroll in
each plan

The wellness health plan has not been
finalized. However, the State is targeting first
year participation in the wellness health plan
of 20%.

Please provide a list with location and the
number of employees eligible for the wellness
program

See attached map of Nebraska State
Employees by County as part of this
document.

Please provide a list of the locations that you
intend to conduct biometric screenings at

See answer to Question 6.

I. Scope of Proposal

5-year rate guarantee period, with option to
renew in 2 one-year intervals. Please verify if
5-year guarantee can be by quoted with per
year fees?

The State is looking for vendors to provide
component pricing for each of the various
program requirements on a fixed price basis.
It is not the desire of the State to pay one
annual fee. The State does not require that
the same fee apply to all 5 years, however a
fee must be provided for each of the 5 years.

IV. Project description and Scope

Section F.6

Bidder is to provide a dedicated "Wellness
Coordinator". Is there a similar position at the
State? Or is the intent that the bidder’s
coordinator maintains all the records for the
program; notifies the State only who is on the
coverage for payroll and advises the member
which plans they should be enrolled in? This
position will then be responsible for directing
the State's program?

There is no current wellness coordinator
position within the State. The State is looking
for a vendor to provide a dedicated person
who will help coordinate all wellness
activities, manage the day to day operations
of the program, and interface with the State’s
Benefit and HR team to achieve designated
goals and to be the outward employee face of
the program.

IV. Project description and Scope

Section F.6

Will there be regional coordinators or
wellness coaches throughout theState to
assist? One Coordinator working with a team
approach at various locations? Explain the
hierarchy of the "employee committees".

There are no wellness coaches or
coordinators throughout the State. The State
will be looking for the wellness coordinator to
establish and manage “wellness champions”
throughout the organization.
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Pages 7-21, lll. Terms and Conditions,
Sections A-ZZ. Please clarify whether or not
the Terms and Conditions, as stated on
pages 7-21, must be affirmatively accepted
and included in bidders’ proposal responses?

If yes, should the pages be included behind
the Contractual Services Form or elsewhere
as part of the proposal response?

Yes, Section Ill. Terms and Conditions, A-ZZ
must be included as a tab as part of the
bidder's proposal response.

Page 22, IV. Project Descriptions and Scope
of Work, B. Project Environment. The RFP
clearly states that the “State of Nebraska
does not have a comprehensive Wellness
Program.” Please clarify whether or not the
State has a Disease Management Program?
If yes, who is the vendor and how long have
they provided services for the State’s
employees?

The State does not currently have a Disease
Management Program.

Page 22, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, B. Project Environment. The RFP
states that a number of agencies have
worksite wellness activities or programs
already in place. Which activities have
generated the highest levels of employee
participation?

Which activities have generated positive
results? Please describe so that we can
better understand your culture.

A few agencies have implemented their
programs independently; therefore, that data
is not available.

Page 22, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, C. Project Requirements. The RFP
states that the State of Nebraska is
implementing a new PPO health plan. Who
are the State Purchasing Bureau’s other
external vendor partners under contract,
including the PPO health plan?

The State of Nebraska’s health plan
administrator is Blue Cross Blue Shield of
Nebraska and the PBM is Express Scripts.

Page 22, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, A. Project Overview and C. Project
Requirements. The RFP states that the
State’s employees enrolled in the PPO health
plan will be enrolled and participate in the
Wellness Program. Please confirm that
14,000 employees are enrolled in the PPO
health plan and that bidder’s pricing should
be based on 14,000 employees.

Please also confirm that employees enrolled
in another health plan, will not be eligible for
the Wellness Program.

All benefit eligible employees will have
access to complete the health assessment
during 2009/2010 open enrollment, which is
the entry point for access to the Wellness
Medical Plan for this benefits year only. All
benefit eligible employees will have access to
all on-line tools and resources. Additional
programs will be determined by vendor
engagement.

This allows a comprehensive program
approach to be rolled out to the entire
population, creating a supportive culture of
health and driving behavior change
throughout the organization.
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Page 22, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, C. Project Requirements. How does
the State define “active participation?”

How does the State envision reinforcing the
requirement that each employee “actively
participate” in the Wellness Program in order
to continue to be eligible for the PPO Plan?

The State’s current vision is that employees
will jJump start into the Wellness Medical Plan
by taking the Health Assessment during the
2009/2010 open enrollment period, beginning
April 20, 2009. From that point forward,
employees will be required to meet the
following standards each year, prior to open
enrollment, to be eligible for the Wellness
Medical plan. If they do not meet the
requirements for participation, they will not
have access to the Wellness Medical Plan
during open enrollment and will have the
option to choose one of the other State health
plans.

Access to the Wellness Medical Plan for
benefits year 2010/2011 requirements:
Completion of the following between July 1,
2009 & March 31, 2010

- Health Assessment

- Biometric Screening

- One Wellness Activity

Access to the Wellness Medical Plan for
benefits year 2011/2012 requirements:
Completion of the following between April 1,
2010 & March 31, 2011

- Health Assessment

- Biometric Screening

- Two Wellness Activities

Access to the Wellness Medical Plan for
benefits year 2012/2013 requirements:
Completion of the following between April 1,
2011 & March 31, 2012

- Health Assessment

- Biometric Screening

- Three Wellness Activities

The State is open to working with the chosen
vendor to tailor this approach, depending on
capabilities and tracking sophistication (i.e.
meeting defined goals or making health
status improvement).

Page 22, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, C. Project Requirements. How does
the State define “active participation?”

Will there be timeframes established and
specific engagement behaviors defined that
equal “participation”?

See answer to Question 24 for the
timeframes. The State will work with the
selected vendor to determine the specific
engagement behaviors.
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Page 22, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, C. Project Requirements. How does
the State define “active participation?”
Specifically, we are trying to understand
where the State is on the Wellness
continuum in order to make
recommendations. Is participation measured
quarterly or annually and reported back to the
PPO?

The State anticipates participation will be
reported annually and eligibility compliance
will be reported back to the State.

Page 22, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, C. Project Requirements. How does
the State define “active participation?”

What happens if a participant does not
continue “active” participation in the Wellness
program?

If they do not meet the requirements for
participation, they will not have access to the
Wellness Medical Plan during open
enrollment and will have the option to choose
one of the other State health plans.

Page 22, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, C. Project Requirements. How does
the State define “active participation?”

What type of medical coverage will they
default to for failure to participate in the
Wellness Program?

If an employee failed to meet eligibility
requirements in the Wellness Program, they
will be defaulted to the Regular PPO plan.

Are only the State’s employees included in
the Wellness Program or will the Wellness
Program also be offered to the employees’
dependents?

If the Wellness Program will be offered to the
employees’ dependents, what dependency
factor should bidders use in their pricing
calculations?

At this point in time the wellness program is
only for State employees, Spouses are being
considered for year 2. There are 6,090
spouses currently enrolled in one of the
current health plans. Bidders should price
accordingly.

Page 23, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, E. Scope of Work. Specific to the
State’s evaluation of which risk assessment
approach is preferred, what is the State’s
point of view as to the advantage of an
individual being identified for services via the
HRA over a Biometric Screening or vice
versa? We are interested in your
perspective of choosing one over the other
and/or the consideration of both as a vehicle
for assessing the overall health status of an
individual. In our experience the majority of
clients choose both methods as a means to
increase enrollment and active engagement,
thus leading to improved health and reduced
overall costs.

The State understands the value of biometric
screenings and the role those values play in
assessing an individuals health. With this,
biometrics will be part of the overall
programming moving forward, but due to time
constraints, it is not feasible to do biometric
screenings with the initial launch. The State
requests that employees could self-report
these values if they have them, but biometric
values will NOT be required for health
assessment completion during the initial
launch.
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Page 24, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, F. Technical Requirements. Please
clarify whether or not the successful vendor
will be expected to manage the chronic
conditions listed in the grid on page 24 —
Asthma, COPD, Diabetes, CHF, CAD,
Musculoskeletal, Depression, Back Pain,
Cancer, and Pregnancy?

Currently the State does not have a DM
program and is interested in Disease
Management capabilities as they integrate
with wellness. Please describe your
approach to DM, whether it is a traditional
model or a modified DM approach, if you
outsource or manage internally and costs for
such services. If you do not provide these
services, please indicate as such. The State
will evaluate the scope of all available
services and determine which services to
implement now and those considered for a
later date.

Page 24, IV. Project Description and Scope
of Work, F. Technical Requirements. How
does the State define “Care Gaps” which is
listed under Chronic Conditions (DM)?

The State is interested in both DM focused
and wellness/preventive focused care gaps,
that follow evidence-based medicine and
standards of care. The State understands
that different vendors may have different
definitions of care gaps. Please respond with
an explanation of your approach to care

gaps.

Where in Attachment A, Pricing for Wellness
Program should pricing be provided for the
Chronic Condition (DM) programs?

Please provide your DM pricing based on
your program model and fee structure.
Attachment A defines an Other category
under #9 Incidentals. Please provide all DM
programs and pricing under this category.

What prevalence assumptions should bidders
use for each of the Chronic Conditions? To
facilitate the State’s efforts to conduct an
“apples to apples” bidders’ comparison,
pricing should be based on consistent
prevalence numbers instead of bidders’
individual book of business numbers.

The State does not have any prevalence data
available. Please use either industry
standard averages or averages based on
your book of business.
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Page 22, Section IV. Project Description and
Scope of Work, B. Project Environment. We
are trying to understand to what degree
Disease Management (DM) plays a role in
the State’s Wellness Program based on the
language in the RFP — “For the Purpose of
this RFP, Wellness Program(s) is assumed to
include Disease Management Programs as
required for various Chronic Conditions for
those enrolled.” Are we to assume that the
State desires more of a “DM Lite” program
model whereby participants are managed
based on their input in the Health Risk
Assessment (HRA) tool and/or Biometric
Screening results? Or will the successful
vendor manage a more comprehensive DM
program and receive claims data from the
State in order to proactively identify, outreach
and engage individuals with the Chronic
Conditions?

See answer to Question 8.

Page 31, V. Proposal Instructions. Should
responses to the subdivisions of the Project
Description and Scope of Work section — C.
Project Requirements, D. Business
Requirements, E. Scope of Work, F.
Technical Requirements, G. Project Planning
and Management, H. Perform
Implementation, I, Provide Post
Implementation Support and J. Deliverables —
be provided before or after the four (4)
sections of the Technical Proposal in the
hardcopy submission? We are assuming
that the subdivisions should follow A. 4.
Technical Approach, but wish to confirm the
order desired by the State.

The State recommends your proposal
response be structured in the same order as
the RFP.

Page 35, V. Proposal Instructions, B. Cost
Proposal Requirements, 1. Pricing Summary.
The RFP states that bidders must present
the total fixed price. Please clarify if the “total
fixed price” should be a fixed program fee
that remains constant for all five (5) contract
years or are CPI escalators acceptable?

The State is looking for vendors to provide
component pricing for each of the various
program requirements on a fixed price basis.
It is not the desire of the State to pay one
annual fee. The State does not require that
the same fee apply to all 5 years, however a
fee must be provided for each of the 5 years.

CPI escalators are not acceptable.

Attachment A, Pricing for Wellness Program.
Is the Onsite Client Manager in Attachment A
the same as the Wellness Coordinator
referenced in the RFP?

If no, what are the duties/responsibilities of
the Onsite Client Manager?

The Attachment A of RFP is hereby amended
to omit any reference to an “Onsite Client
Manager (assumes full time at State)” to be
replaced by “Wellness Coordinator”. The
State does not require the Wellness
Coordinator to be full time at the State.
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What is the State’s projected budget for the
Wellness Program, including the
management of Chronic Conditions (DM)?

The total estimated value of the contract or
projected budget for this project is not
included in the Request for Proposal as the
State urges all prospective bidders to
respond with their most competitive bid based
on their proposed solution to the project
objectives as outlined in the Request for
Proposal and not one based on an estimated
value of the contract or projected budget.
The State has developed an adequate
budget for the scope of services included in
this RFP.

Page 16, lll. Terms and Conditions, DD.
Performance Bond. Will there be measurable
performance objectives that are defined and
agreed upon prior to the contract start date
relative to the exercise of the $200,000
Bond?

No, the performance bond is required as
listed in Section I.A Schedule of Events, #10.

Page 1, I. Scope of the Request for Proposal,
A. Schedule of Events. Can the State define
Contractor Start Date?

Is the successful vendor expected to have
successfully established an eligibility feed by
this date and be fully operational from a
systems perspective in order to have
participants take the HRA online? Or is this
the date that the State would like to begin the
visibility campaign for the program via Open
Enrollment activities with the formal launch of
the program occurring the following month?

The State intends to start the contract with
the wellness vendor on April 1, 2009. The
State intends to conduct statewide
educational meetings the week of April 13,
2009. The wellness vendor is expected to
participate in these statewide educational
meetings. The State intends for the wellness
vendor to have the Health Assessment up
and running by April 20, 2009, the start of the
open enroliment period. Communication
pieces for this initial launch are nearly
complete and will just need vendor details
laid into the designed communication piece.
Moving forward the State will work with the
selected vendor to utilize communication
templates and verbiage.

Does the State collect both employees’ home
and cellular phone numbers? What
percentage of the phone numbers received
are accurate?

The State collects home and cellular phone
numbers through their online open enroliment
process. Accuracy of these numbers is not
confirmed by the State.

What percentage of the State’s employees
has access to computers and the internet in
order to access online educational
information or complete a health risk
assessment (HRA)?

To the best of our knowledge, all employees
would have access to a computer through
their State Agency.
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The State desires a contractor start date of
4/1/09, however, the employee benefit plan
start date is reflected as 7/1. Itis also noted
that HRA tools and member communications
should be available for Open Enrollment on
4/13/09. Please clarify which services are
expected to be available on 4/1/09, any
additional services that should be available
on 4/13/09, and those that can commence on
the plan start date, 7/1/09, when claims data
becomes available (eg., in order to start the
Disease Management ID and Stratification
process).

The State intends to start the contract with
the wellness vendor on April 1, 2009. The
State intends to conduct statewide
educational meetings the week of April 13,
2009. The wellness vendor is expected to
participate in these statewide educational
meetings. The State intends for the wellness
vendor to have the Health Assessment up
and running by April 20, 2009, the start of the
open enroliment period. Communication
pieces for this initial launch are nearly
complete and will just need vendor details
laid into the designed communication piece.
Moving forward the State will work with the
selected vendor to utilize communication
templates and verbiage.

Please clarify what is meant by a "fixed-price
contract.”" Is the state looking for a fixed total
contract price, fixed year-over-year rates for
PMPM pricing, etc?

The State is looking for vendors to provide
component pricing for each of the various
program requirements on a fixed price basis.
It is not the desire of the State to pay one
annual fee. The State is open to an activity
based pricing model based on participant
engagement.

Re: Terms and Conditions, Section A:
General -- outlines various pieces of
documents that will be incorporated into the
contract, but can the contract also
incorporate additional items (such as our
standard contract and work order language)?

These items are not among those specified.
Bidder is free to submit any material in
bidder’s proposal response as it wishes. The
State will accept or reject the additional
materiel as necessary and appropriate.

Re: Section Y. Early Termination, Clause #3i.
Please clarify what is meant by a "Vendor
Performance Report.

Please find a link to the “Vendor Performance
Report” referenced in 111.Y.3.i.
http://www.das.state.ne.us/materiel/purchasin
g/agencycommoditiesprocurementmanual/Ve
ndorPerformanceReport.doc

Re: Page 18, Section OO. Proprietary
Information -- It states that all proprietary
information the bidder wishes the State to
withhold must be submitted in a sealed
package, which is separate from the
remainder of the proposal. Do we still need
to submit an original and 6 copies of all
proprietary materials in the separate
package?

Yes, an original and six (6) copies of all
proprietary materials should be submitted in a
separate package.
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Please define/describe Population Based
Health Challenges as a program, as
referenced on page 24 of the RFP. Does this
refer to something like 10,000 Steps” or a
"Biggest Loser" program, for example?

Yes, the State is looking for population based
activities that reinforce healthy behaviors and
encourage the entire group to participate, not
just targeted individuals.

Is it the State's expectation that the dedicated
Wellness Coordinator and the on-site Client
Manager be separate roles, or can the two
functions be performed by one person?

See answer to Question 38.

Is the selected vendor expected to
incorporate existing worksite wellness
programs into the comprehensive State of
Nebraska wellness program at inception?

The State does not intend to incorporate
existing worksite wellness programs into the
comprehensive State wellness program at
inception.

Is it a budgetary or state policy not to offer
monetary incentives as part of the wellness
program for participant engagement?

State statute does not allow the State to offer
monetary incentives to employees.

Is the State considering benefit plan design
as a vehicle to replace monetary incentives?

Yes.

Please identify the State's PPO carrier, PBM
and TPA?

The State of Nebraska health plan
administrator is Blue Cross Blue Shield of
Nebraska and the PBM is Express Scripts.

What are the demographics and
characteristics of the State's population?
What percent of the population has access to
computers?

An employee census with age, gender and
Zip code is available upon request from the
point of contact listed in 8 Il (A).

To the best of our knowledge all employees
would have access to a computer through
their State Agency.

Is the Wellness Coordinator required to be
on-site at State location during the normal
workweek? |s there the opportunity to
conduct Wellness Coordinator responsibilities
remotely and travel to State sites as
required?

No, the Wellness Coordinator is not required
to be on site during the normal work week.
The State is looking for a dedicated wellness
coordinator that would be accessible to each
State location to manage the program,
interact with employees and be the face of
wellness for the State. The Wellness
Coordinator must meet the requirements as
shown in Section IV.F.6 on page 28 of the
RFP.

Will selected vendor of Wellness Program
have access to claims and Rx data? If yes,
what is the historical period of data available?

Yes, claims and Rx data will be available for
the prior two (2) years.

Does the State have experience with an
existing Disease Management program? If
yes, what is the % of the population
engaged? If yes, what have been the results
in terms of savings or return on investment?

Currently the State does not have a DM
program.
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Can you confirm that all 14,000 ee's under
benefit coverage would be eligible to
participate in these Wellness Programs?

See answer to Question 23.

Will be there be an incentive to participate in
these programs? (i.e. $25 for completing the
HRA?) If so, do you want us to provide
Incentive Administration?

There will not be an incentive to participate in
the wellness program. The wellness health
plan is available only to employees
participating in the wellness program.

If we have any requested changes to the
wording in the terms & conditions, do we
provide the suggested change in a separate
"Deviations" document?, and then sign &
initial the line next to that section/paragraph?
(for example, our insurance requirements
may be different, but still meet requirements)

Yes.

Can you provide the criteria in terms of

weighting the final evaluation? (i.e. 30%
price, 50% response to questions, 20%
adherence to terms, etc.)

Please reference Section I1.K that states as
follows: ...“Evaluation criteria will become
public information at the time of the Request
for Proposal opening. Evaluation criteria and
a list of respondents will be posted to the
State Purchasing Bureau website at
http://www.das.state.ne.us/materiel/purchasin
ag/rfp.htm Evaluation criteria will not be
released prior to the proposal opening.”

The scope of work states that the State of
Nebraska is requesting proposals for an
integrated Wellness Program that includes
health risk assessment tools, educational
content, health tools and resources, on-line
and on-site educational programs, on-line
activity tracking, telephonic health coaching,
comprehensive reporting, and day-to-day on-
site management. Is the State of Nebraska
seeking one vendor who will provide all of
these services or can a vendor bid on a
portion of the services? If the provider
doesn’t have to provide all of the services, but
specific services are required, please outline
the mandatory services. Please confirm that
providing a Wellness Coordinator is
mandatory and also confirm whether or not
this individual needs to reside in Nebraska.

The State is seeking one vendor to provide
all of the services. Providing a Wellness
Coordinator is mandatory. The Wellness
Coordinator is not required to be on site
during the normal work week. The State is
looking for a dedicated wellness coordinator
that would be accessible to each State
location to manage the program, interact with
employees and be the face of wellness for
the State. The Wellness Coordinator must
meet the requirements as shown in Section
IV.F.6 on page 28 of the RFP.
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QUESTIONS

ANSWERS

The Cost Proposal Requirements Section
states this is a “fixed price proposal”. That
being said is it the desire of the State of
Nebraska to pay one annual fee to the
provider regardless of the employee
engagement and employee activity? Is the
State of Nebraska open to an activity based
pricing model?

The State is looking for vendors to provide
component pricing for each of the various
program requirements on a fixed price basis.
It is not the desire of the State to pay one
annual fee. The State is open to an activity
based pricing model based on participant
engagement.

Does this proposal only cover the 14,000
employees or are adult dependents also
included?

The initial implementation includes only
benefit eligible employees. Spouses are
being considered for year 2. Adult children
are not being considered at this time.

Does the State of Nebraska have a budget
for this program and can you share this dollar
amount?

See answer to Question 39.

The contract period begins on 4/1 and open
enrollment begins on 4/13, but the plan year
begins on 7/1. Are we correct in assuming
that the state wishes to communicate the
wellness program to its employees during
open enroliment, but the employees will not
actually participate in the program until 7/1?

The State intends to start the contract with
the wellness vendor on April 1, 2009. The
State intends to conduct statewide
educational meetings the week of April 13,
2009. The wellness vendor is expected to
participate in these statewide educational
meetings. The State intends for the wellness
vendor to have the Health Assessment up
and running by April 20, 2009, the start of the
open enroliment period. Communication
pieces for this initial launch are nearly
complete and will just need vendor details
laid into the designed communication piece.
Moving forward the State will work with the
selected vendor to utilize communication
templates and verbiage.

Is eligibility limited to those employees who
select the new PPO plan coverage? What
about dependents?

It is the State’s intent to allow all eligible
employees to have access to the wellness
program. However to take advantage of the
wellness medical plan design benefits, they
must complete the wellness program criteria.
Spouses are being considered for year 2.
Adult children are not being considered at
this time.

The RFP indicates that the state cannot offer
financial incentives. Can the vendor? If not,
why not?

State Statutes prohibit State employees from
accepting incentives in any form from any
entity at any time.

Who is the TPA for the new PPO plan?

The State of Nebraska health plan
administrator is Blue Cross Blue Shield of
Nebraska and the PBM is Express Scripts.
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What wellness/DM programs are currently
offered state employees and what is the
participation experience?

Several state agencies offer worksite
wellness programs. The State does not offer
DM programs. No participation experience is
available.

What are the success criteria for this new
wellness program?

A reduction in medical trend for the State of
Nebraska over time.

What portion of state employees have a
state-issued email address?

99.4% of State employees have State e-mail
addresses.

Il. Procurement Instructions

Section G

QUESTION/REQUEST: The instructions
state “the technical and cost proposals
should be presented in separate sections”.
To clarify, can they be included in the same
binder, separated by tabs or do they need to
be in separate binders?

Technical and cost proposals can be
provided in a single binder separated by tabs.

I1l. Terms and Conditions

Terms and Conditions F.4
QUESTION/REQUEST: Should the
certificate of insurance be included as an
attachment to the terms and conditions or
should it be included within a different section
of our response?

The Certificate of Insurance should be
included as a separate tab within the bidder’s
proposal response.
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I1l. Terms and Conditions

Terms and Conditions Instructions
QUESTION/REQUEST: Is a binding
signature of intent to comply with the terms
and conditions needed in addition to
accepting and initialing where indicated?

Please reference Section lll. first three (3)
paragraphs that state as follows:

“By signing the “Request For Proposal For
Contractual Services” form, the bidder
guarantees compliance with the provisions
stated in this Request for Proposal, agrees to
the terms and conditions and certifies bidder
maintains a drug free work place environment.

Bidders are expected to closely read the Terms
and Conditions and provide a binding signature
of intent to comply with such terms and
conditions. Additionally, bidder must clearly
identify by subsection number, and exceptions
to the terms and conditions and include an
explanation as to why the bidder cannot comply
with the specific term and condition and a
statement recommending terms and conditions
the bidder would find acceptable. Rejection of
these terms and conditions may be cause for
rejection of a bidder’s proposal.

Bidders must affirmatively accept each and all
of the terms and conditions of this RFP by
affixing their initials on the space provided,
which is indicated by the words “Accept &
Initial.”

lll. Terms and Conditions

Terms and Conditions WW
QUESTION/REQUEST: Is the disaster
recovery plan required with our proposal
response or upon contract award?

The disaster recovery plan should be
included in bidder’s proposal response.

lll. Terms and Conditions

Form A- Bidder Contact Sheet
QUESTION/REQUEST: Where should the
signed copy of Form A be included in our
response? As part of the technical response
or as a separate piece?

Form A should be included as a separate tab
within the bidder’s proposal response.

IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

A. Project Overview:

Employee Locations

QUESTION/REQUEST: Can you provide a
census of your employees and locations? It
would be beneficial to know the number of
locations employees are located and the
number of employees per location by town or
city and zip code.

An employee census with age, gender and
Zip code is available upon request from the
point of contact listed in 8 Il (A).
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IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

A. Project Overview:

Eligible employees/participation:

You mention 17,000 total employees, of
which suggest 14,000 enroll in benefits.
However, you also suggest in the proposal
that those employees who not enrolled in the
“‘new” PPO plan with wellness will not have
access to any of the wellness programs. We
are seeking clarity on the population elgibility
for the wellness program, especially in light of
your project requirements, need for
participation projections and pricing from
vendors.

QUESTIONS/REQUESTS: Provided our
interpretation of the RFP, please clarify or
answer the following:

d) What will be the criteria for
enroliment into the new PPO health
plan? Is it completion of the HRA
only? If that is the case an the HRA
is embedded in the wellness website,
how will you want to address
employee access to the wellness
website (provided by the vendor)
which is part of the wellness program
for those employees who did not take
the HRA or meet the criteria (yet are
on the eligibility file)? Do you plan to
remove their access to the website

e) Do you have a projection for what
level of employee enroliment in the
new PPO plan? Please confirm
number of employees and total lives
(including dependents) eligible for the
wellness Programs. Also confirm
number for the disease management
and related programs.

Itis the State’s intent to allow all eligible
employees to have access to the wellness
program. However to take advantage of the
wellness medical plan design benefits, they
must complete the wellness program criteria.
Following is a description of the expected
eligibility criteria for the wellness program and
wellness medical plan designs, including
future enhancements.

a) Wellness Medical Plan Eligibility
Access to this plan, for the benefits year
2009/2010, is dependent upon employees
completing the Health Assessment during
open enroliment (April 20 — May 18, 2009).
Access to this plan going forward, will require
benefit eligible employees to complete
defined activities, prior to open enroliment of
the following year.

Three Year Approach:

Access to the Wellness Medical Plan for
benefits year 2010/2011 requirements:
Completion of the following between July 1,
2009 & March 31, 2010

- Health Assessment

- Biometric Screening

- One Wellness Activity

Access to the Wellness Medical Plan for
benefits year 2011/2012 requirements:
Completion of the following between April 1,
2010 & March 31, 2011

- Health Assessment

- Biometric Screening

- Two Wellness Activities

Access to the Wellness Medical Plan for
benefits year 2012/2013 requirements:
Completion of the following between April 1,
2011 & March 31, 2012

- Health Assessment

- Biometric Screening

- Three Wellness Activities
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f) Stated as one of your project

requirements is to “have a total
population focus.” Can you address
or clarify this objective in light of your
offering the wellness program only to
a select group based on some form
of criteria (initial HRA completion),
you may be eliminating the
opportunity for a full and total
population approach to your entire
employee base. Additionally, this
creates additional communication
burdens in ensuring who gets what
communications, or qualifying each
population announcement. Also, this
may also affect long term
receptiveness to outreach in ongoing
years.

Wellness Program Eligibility

All benefit eligible employees will have
access to complete the health assessment
during 2009/2010 open enrollment, which is
the entry point for access to the Wellness
Medical Plan for this benefits year only. All
benefit eligible employees will have access to
all on-line tools and resources. Additional
programs will be determined by vendor
engagement.

This allows a comprehensive program
approach to be rolled out to the entire
population, creating a supportive culture of
health and driving behavior change
throughout the organization.

b) The State’s goal for participation in the
wellness health plan design for the July 1,
2009 plan year is 20%. Spouses are being
considered for year 2. Adult children are not
being considered at this time. In addition to
the total benefit eligible employees, there are
6,090 spouses currently on the health plans.
The same number of employees and
spouses would be eligible for the DM
programs.

c) See answer to 80 a) above.
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IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

A. Project Overview:

Timeline & Launch; Communications &
Incentive

The RFP indicates that there could be as little
as a 2 week timeline for program
implementation—from projected contractor
start date of 4/1/09 to required or planned go
live date of 4/13/09 (communications and
health assessment). Please address the
following related questions and information
requests (below) relative to program
implementation, incentive design and
execution, communications, program launch
scope and overall timeline—especially in light
of the fact that most standard launches
require 8-16 weeks based on scope, level of
advanced communication, etc. from a best
practice standpoint.
QUESTIONS/REQUESTS:

g) What is your proposed Health
Assessment campaign schedule—
including communications,
assessment availability to
employees, and tie in to benefit
incentive?

a, b and c) The State intends to start the
contract with the wellness vendor on April 1,
2009. The State intends to conduct
statewide educational meetings the week of
April 13, 2009. The wellness vendor is
expected to participate in these statewide
educational meetings. The State intends for
the wellness vendor to have the Health
Assessment up and running by April 20,
2009, the start of the open enrollment period.
Communication pieces for this initial launch
are nearly complete and will just need vendor
details laid into the designed communication
piece. Moving forward the State will work
with the selected vendor to utilize
communication templates and verbiage.

d) To be eligible to participate in the wellness
health plan design, employees must
complete the requirements of the wellness
program. The relative financial value has not
been determined as yet. See answer to
Question 1 for the development of the
wellness health plan eligibility over three
years and beyond.
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h) Do you expect the selected vendor-

K)

partner to provide communication
suite of templates to be used
effective 4/13, or prior? If so, will this
be sufficient time to promote the
program?

Has there already been advanced
communication and promotion of the
wellness program and health
assessment? If so, can you share
the communications plan and
materials so we may align our
proposal responses with your
marketing efforts?

What is your specific incentive design
and how will it be applied? What is
its relative financial value to
employees? And how will your
incentive plan develop over the
coming 5 years (e.g., will it only be for
assessment, or will it apply to other
health improvement initiatives?)

Do you envision or plan for annual
health assessment every year during
benefit enroliment? Or do you plan
to re-adjust your assessment and
annual wellness program cycle to a
different time frame? And if so, what
is it?

Is the state aware of the necessary
role(s) it will also have in the
suggested timeline for program
launch (e.g., Unique id for
participants (e.g. employee id);
Eligibility file — file upload using
specified process; URL decision and
branding; etc.)

e) See answer to Question 1 for the
development of the wellness health plan
eligibility over three (3) years and beyond.

f) Yes, the state is aware of the
necessary roles it will also have in the
suggested timeline for program launch.
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IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

B. Project Environment

"The Wellness Program is expected to evolve
over the first three years of the program.”
QUESTION/REQUEST: Can the State
provide some insight into how you expect the
programs to evolve over the 3 years? When
would the disease management programs roll
out for example?

"The State is considering alternative
participation strategies to ensure a high level
of engagement”

See answer to Question 1.

IV. Project Description & Scope of Work
B. Project Environment
QUESTION/REQUEST: What is the State
considering as alternative participation
strategies?

The State is evaluating participation
strategies allowed within the boundaries of
state statute.

IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

B. Project Environment

General Questions

QUESTION/REQUEST: Is there a current
Chronic Condition (DM) program in place? Is
so, who is the vendor and what programs?

Currently the State does not have a DM
program in place.

IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

B. Project Environment

General Questions

QUESTION/REQUEST: Does the State have
prevalence rates or claims costs for the
desired chronic conditions?

See answer to Question 34.

IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

C. Project Requirements-

"The employee must actively participate in
the Wellness Programs to continue to have
access to this PPO plan."
QUESTION/REQUEST: Does active
participation include mandatory participation
in DM programs- if applicable?

The State has not defined the DM program
criteria at this time.

IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

C. Project Requirements-

State of Nebraska Health Plan
QUESTION/REQUEST: Who is your carrier
for your health plan(s) and PPO? And who
will provide the “wellness plan” PPO? Do
they offer condition management and will that
be accessible to employees?

The State of Nebraska’s health plan
administrator is Blue Cross Blue Shield of
Nebraska and the PBM is Express Scripts.
The administrators for the wellness health
plan will be the same. Disease management
is not currently offered through these
administrators.
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IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

F. Technical Requirements and Program
Scope

1. Program Components

The pricing document provided and the
Technical Requirements questions sections
does reflect several of the scope of service
areas listed in your program Description
Table in the Technical Requirements
section—specifically: Chronic Condition
programs; pregnancy; Care Gaps and
preventive/self-care reminders; newsletter.
QUESTION/REQUEST: please clarify how
these scope of services fit into the overall
program plan, its timing, and priorities—e.g.,
are these “later stage” initiatives that you are
assessing if the vendor has the ability to
deliver, but may not need the selected vendor
to deliver on in the first year? Please address
and outline your projected 5-year plan

See answer to Question 1.

IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

F. Technical Requirements and Program
Scope

1. Program Components

The pricing document provided and the
Technical Requirements questions sections
does reflect several of the scope of service
areas listed in your program Description
Table in the Technical Requirements
section—specifically: Chronic Condition
programs; pregnancy; Care Gaps and
preventive/self-care reminders; newsletter.
QUESTION/REQUEST: What is the State's
expectation of a pregnancy program listed
under Chronic Conditions (DM)? High risk
pregnancy only or a program available to all
employees/dependents who are pregnant?

The State has not defined the pregnancy
program criteria at this time and will assess
vendor responses.

IV. Project Description & Scope of Work

F. Technical Requirements and Program
Scope

6. Dedicated Wellness Coordinator

You provide a thorough description o